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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

RAFHA  BXEZBMEN

“Acting in Concert Parties”
[—HiTEHAL]

"AGM"

[RRBFRE ]

“Articles of Association”
[RAIER]

"associate(s)”

Rk YN

“Beijing OriginWater”

[ b B KR ]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
==

“Chairman”

[BEFK]

“Company”, “our Company” or
“Yunnan Water”

[ARRA [ EmKE]

“connected person(s)”

[BEE AL

“controlling shareholder(s)”
[ AR AR 2R

“Corporate Governance Code”

(% /R<rall
“Director(s)”

[E%]

TFHARAGUTES

Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong

RIBE 4 EERLEE TBELE

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held on or before 30 June 2022
ARABR B _FRA=ZTHFIZARTZRRBAFRE

the articles of association of the Company

RRABHRFER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HA MBI T ZE 88

Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (3t 5 E R B i% {5 5 BR 2 &), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300070)

IERBKEEEROMER AT  RPBEKIHRODBERAF ERODEFINEHR S LT
(B& 2 L 5%  300070)

the board of directors of the Company
RARMEES

the Chairman of the Company
ARAREFER

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (EmM/KEEERMD B R A F), a joint stock limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC, the H Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6839)

EEKBREBRNERAT  RPBEEMALOBROERAR - EHIRERE AT £k Em (IR
7R 5% - 6839)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
HA EmHRRE T ZA0 8 E
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
EBELWRANETZANRE

the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules

FHRBIESE T A E AR EERTARPEE RS
the director(s) of our Company

KARESE
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Definitions

“Domestic Share(s)”

Nak-9d
"ESG"
[ESG]

"ESG Guide”

[ESG#E 5l |

“Group” or “our Group”

[R&EE ]

“H Share(s)"”

THE
“HKS "
el

“HKFRS"

[ & B HmE 2R

“Hong Kong”
(&%
“Listing Rules”
[EmRA

“Model Code”

M2 257 Al

"PRC” or “China”

[ |

"Reporting Period”
[ & 5 |

“"RMB"

[AR®]

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of the
Company which are subscribed for or credited as paid up in RMB

NARBRBIAIER RN ARTDRATFREEARK1.00THE HTEBR
environmental, social, and governance
REHEgRER

the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules

RIE -HERERMEES - 0 EHRBIKEE27
the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time
AR A RETE KB A A

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of the
Company which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

EHRXMERLTHOARAARBRAPETREEARE1.00TH B EHTEBR
Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BBEEERBT

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations promulgated by the Hong Kong Accounting Standard Board

ERVMBHEEL BEEEGHEALNEEGHEINZE@RMNRE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEBFNTR R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B S FTRE 25 AR B

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules

FHRBMESETAEN LT ETAEFETES R INFLESFR

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report only, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

FEARANE  EAREME - TEESE PEARANMBRASITERE R A E
the 12-month period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

B-E - F-A—HEE-ZTE-_—F+-A=+—HLE+=-@AAHE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEEEERARE
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“SFO"
(B REE GG

“Share(s)"”

R n |

“Shareholder(s)”

[ARER |

“Stock Exchange”

[ B 22 Py |
“subsidiary(ies)”

[P 88 2 7 ]
“Supervisor(s)”

=

“Supervisory Committee”
[EExg]

“Undertaking Shareholders”
[ & H R R

"YHTH"

[ Ak E

“EP]”

[EE&ERERER]

"o
[% ]

For identification purposes only

* AT

Definitions

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEREEPEST1ECEF RBEERDD

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
including the H Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)

ARABRAFEREBEARK 100 EBER - BEHRERAER
the holder(s) of the Share(s)

S SESE=DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBARXHMBRAF

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
HA EmHRIE T ZE 88

supervisor(s) of the Company

RARMES

the supervisory committee of the Company
RARANEEEES

namely YHTH, YEPI and Beijing OriginWater
EEERER  ZEZERAEE R REBKR

Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.* (Ef & EREREBGRE Q)
(formerly known as Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd.* (£ F & ¥ T 12 % 4%
AL EABPRAF)), alimited liability company established in the PRC and is the sole shareholder of
YEPI, the Company’s controlling shareholder and one of the Undertaking Shareholders

EHERIREREEERAR(IREHEARTERREEBARAAF)  RABKINAR
AERARAREESERAREENKE —BRR  SEAARERBRREER —REAHEHNRRE

Yunnan Green Environmental Protection Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (EE A HBRREXEEE
IR X 7)) (formerly known as Yunnan Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd (B & KB E XK EAR
& 2 @), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC

THERECRREXEEERAR(FREHEEBELREARAR) R BEEMAILIE
BEREAFERAF

per cent

AL
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Financial Highlights

The Board is pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

EFZ@MAETH N INPHHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+-BHLEE

2021 2020 Change
=B —F —EEF 2%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR AREFTT
Revenue g 25 5,280,743 8,396,630 -37.1%
Gross profit EH 1,316,564 2,096,132 -37.2%
(Loss)/profit before income tax Fris®im (&18),/ & F (1,030,933) 502,624 -305.1%

EBITDAMNe BAE - BIE - ER

B85 A 2 R ) 1,158,649 2,346,764 -50.6%
(Loss)/profit for the year FRN(EE),&F (1,055,254) 341,311 -409.2%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) BREE2ERE(%) -13.89% 4.49% N/A 38 A
(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB) BR(EBR),/ B (AR T) (0.840) 0.187 -549.2%

Note: EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of finance cost — net, income tax,
depreciation and amortisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s audited loss attributable to ordinary
Shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,001.9 million (for the year ended
31 December 2020: profit attributable to ordinary Shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB223.1 million).

Basic loss per share for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB0.840 per
share (for the year ended 31 December 2020: basic earnings approximately
RMBO0.187 per share), the calculation of such basic earnings per share
amount is based on the profit attributable to ordinary Shareholders, and the
weighted average number of Shares of approximately of 1,193,213,000 (2020:
1,193,213,000) in issue during the Reporting Period.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 31 December 2020: RMB0.06 per
ordinary share). The Company did not declare or pay any interim dividend or
special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Chairman’s Statement/General Manager’s Report

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

In 2021, the global COVID-19 pandemic has repeated several rounds. Affected
by the pandemic, the global economy fluctuated greatly and its structure was
differentiated. Developed countries launched loose monetary and fiscal policies to
stimulate economic recovery, while emerging economies have different policies and
their economic development is also different.

In 2021, China scientifically coordinated the prevention and control of COVID-19
pandemic and economic and social development, the national economy maintained
a general recovery trend, and the main indicators exceeded expectations. The year
of 2021 was the first year for China to take “double carbon (E1jx)" strategy.
Environmental protection industry has placed a vital role in the construction of
ecological civilization and fighting with pollution prevention and control, and it
has provided important supports to co-ordinate the high-quality development
of economy and the high-level protection of ecological environment and to
realize the development of green transformation. Based on this, although the
environmental protection industry in China was exposed to many difficulties in
recent years, it was still in the period of strategic opportunities. Currently, the
basic layout of the traditional environmental infrastructure construction market in
China’s environmental protection industry has been completed, the growth rate
has gradually slowed down, and the environmental protection industry has entered
a period of structural adjustment. With the continuous introduction of national
environmental protection policies, the business model and market space of various
sub-sectors are gradually opening up.

Facing the complicated domestic and international economic situation, the Board
has conducted in-depth analysis in this regard, focused on the established work
objectives and strategic positioning with firm confidence, overcame difficulties and
made every effort to improve quality and efficiency, and to avoid risks.

SRR R

AANBRREZS  MAREAEEHZE-
E_—F+ A=+ HULURFEZFR -

TR K 2RHERBELZHBRE 2K
REXEBYERIRK BBEMDL -
HEEZERERNEEBUR AN BBERR
HMEEER MELHABERREROAN K
FERBALZATR -

—E-—F hEMEGRENEREHEM
rEdEER EEREBRSMERS B

REBEXTEEEBRBEEY — T - —F&%F
B[ TF  REREXERZERHERMN
ERMBRABHEHNTRENE  ERELES
mMEERMEBRESKERE ERZE
HAZRMNBEXH ELEAR L &EE
FRPBRRITEREFESZRR - BNER
BREHBH B PRERFRITEERRE
EMREERTSERNMBTK - EEEW
Wi BROTEXEABZBEEHERD - BE
BRRERENTE LG SEADFEEHH
ERMTISEMETRITH -

EHEGEROBANMNEETLS EE28R
ADITBEARMNEERS  BERETHERR
MEEE TR - BEREL  WBRE 2 HRE
B e RAREE -
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Chairman’s Statement/General Manager’s Report

EERHE AEERE

During the Reporting Period, under the leadership of the Board, the Group
proactively adjusted its asset structure and continuously improved its project
operation management. During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a total
annual revenue of approximately RMB5,280.7 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 37.1% as compared to approximately RMB8,396.6 million of
last year. Loss for the year was approximately RMB1,055.3 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 409.2% as compared to the profit of approximately
RMB341.3 million of last year. Through investment in new construction and equity
acquisition, the Group has owned 227 water treatment projects with a total
treatment volume of approximately 6,365,200 tonnes per day. The Group has
owned 24 solid waste treatment projects with treatment capacity of approximately
4,081,900 tonnes per year.

Since the listing of the Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2015,
the Group has distributed final dividends to shareholders continuously based on
its sound operating performance and financial position, in return for their long-
term support and contributions to the Group. At present, the Group is faced with
the complicated domestic and international economic situation, considering the
actual operating situation of the Group, the Board has decided not to recommend
the payment of final dividends for the year ended 31 December 2021, and such
non-recommended payment of final dividends is subject to the Shareholders’
review and approval at the AGM. Under the leadership of the Board, the Group
will overcome challenges, further improve its operating conditions and to bring
greater investment returns to the Shareholders in the future, thereby thanking the
Shareholders for their long-term support and contributions to the Company.

In 2022, facing the complicated domestic and international economic situation and
the persistently sluggish market environment, the Group will continue to focus on
the two main businesses of “water + solid waste” and go all out in production
and operation. In particular, the Group will further improve its operation
and management level, speed up the construction progress of projects under
construction, prudently expand advantageous projects, reduce financial leverage,
and focus on market opportunities in comprehensive solid waste treatment, sludge
carbonization, integration of rural water supply and drainage, intelligent water
business and other fields, so as to enable the Group’s core business to achieve
sound development.
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Chairman’s Statement/General Manager’s Report

Focus on operations to improve quality and efficiency. In the future
development strategy, the Group will focus on operations to improve quality
and efficiency, continue to refine management standards, and promote energy
conservation and consumption reduction. To this end, the Group will fully
implement the scientific budgeting system, and reasonably calculate the operation
indicators of each project based on the current operating conditions. The Group
will also further strengthen checking and eliminate the unstable factors in the
operation process, so as to realize the stable operation of the Group’s projects in
operation.

Accelerate the progress of construction in progress. The Group will further
improve the construction progress of projects under construction, release the
dividends of early-stage investment as soon as possible, and lay a more solid
foundation for the Group’s sustained and stable cash flow.

Reduce gearing ratio. Firstly, the Group will promote equity financing, focusing
on capital operation in the solid waste sector and other advantageous sectors;
secondly, the Group will optimize the financing structure, and match the Group’s
business operations based on the loan terms by gradually adjusting the structure
of long-term and short-term liabilities; thirdly, the Group will further strengthen
debt collection to increase net operating cash inflow.

Accelerate technology research and development and promotion. The Group
will continue to enhance its innovation and sustainable development capabilities,
and establish innovation mechanism and reward system. According to the current
market demand, the Group will improve the current core technologies, especially
strengthen our low-temperature aerobic pyrolysis and carbonization technology
of organic solid waste, and strive to fully realize the reduction, harmlessness,
stabilization and resource utilization of solid organic waste treatment.

On behalf of the Board and the management of Yunnan Water, | would like
to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the management
and employees of the Group for their loyalty and diligence, and also to the
Shareholders, our Board members, investors and partners for their long-term
support. The Group will create great value for the Shareholders with excellent
performance and contribute to the development of environmental industry and the

construction of ecological civilization.

Yu Long
Acting Chairman & General Manager

Kunming, the PRC
29 April 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2021, the global economic situation continued to be affected by the spread
of COVID-19 and was full of uncertainties. The developed economies in the
world have ushered in a policy transition, and suffered from intensified inflation,
posing risks to global economic growth. Against the backdrop of a complex
global economy, China’s economic environment at domestic and abroad was full
of difficulties and challenges, and trade protectionism and anti-globalization are
rising around the world. China was faced with deep-seated structural and cyclical
challenges, as well as epidemics and natural disasters. In 2021, China overcame
numerous difficulties and the main indicators of the national economy exceeded

expectations.

The year of 2021 was the first year for China to take “double carbon (&
fix)" strategy. Environmental protection industry has placed a vital role in the
construction of ecological civilization and fighting with pollution prevention and
control, and it has provided important supports to co-ordinate the high-quality
development of economy and the high-level protection of ecological environment
and to realize the development of green transformation. Based on this, although
the environmental protection industry in China was exposed to many difficulties in
recent years, it was still in the period of strategic opportunities.

In the first quarter, soil contamination prevention and control became a hot topic
of discussion in the industry. The identification method of responsible persons
for soil contamination in construction land and agricultural land was introduced,
which further refined the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ( {(FEAR
HMBEIREREL) ), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Soil Contamination ( {2 A R AFE + 3252574875 ) ) and other
relevant laws. The technical catalogue in the field of the solid waste and soil
contamination prevention and control was released, which also further clarified
the direction and standards of soil contamination prevention and control in the
future. In the second quarter, each provinces successively issued regulations on
the prevention and control of environment pollution caused by solid wastes, to
further elaborate and implement the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste ( (A R4
B [E BEEE Y5 AR R AL) ). In the third quarter, the State issued the Notice on
the Relevant Work for Promoting the National Eco-industrial Demonstration Parks
to Achieve Carbon Dioxide Peaking and Carbon Neutrality ( B f#EHEBIR AR
T X E R pEERPFAEETENBA) ), which clarified the demonstration
and leading role of the national eco-industrial demonstration parks in promoting
the synergy of pollution reduction and carbon reduction and promoting the green
development of the region. In the fourth quarter, ecological partition control
guidance for “three lines and one list (Z#R—2)" was promulgated, which further
defined the scopes and contents of the red line of ecological protection, bottom
line of environmental quality, upper line of resource utilization and ecological
environment access list, which is conducive to the further comprehensive control,
system management and precise management, promoting to build a new pattern
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Management Discussion and Analysis

of the development of environmental protection. At the end of the year, the
“Work Plan for the Construction of “Wasteless City (FEEE3 )" during the Period
(CT+HEAE] B [EERT] ZRIES

%) )" was introduced, which clarified that approximately 100 cities at prefectural

of the “Fourteenth Five-Year Plan”

level and above will be promoted to carry out the construction of “wasteless
. By the year of 2025,
; solid waste generation intensity will rapidly decrease; the

city” during the period of the “Fourteenth Five-year Plan”
in “wasteless city”
comprehensive utilization level will significantly increase; the harmless disposal
capacity will be effectively guaranteed; the synergy of pollution reduction and
carbon reduction will be fully brought into play; the solid waste management
information will be generally integrated into “one network (—5&49)"; the concept
of "wasteless (#[E)” will be widely recognized; and the solid waste management

system and capacity will be significantly improved.

The water industry is an important municipal public utility and an important
basic industry to guarantee the normal development of economy and society.
Since 2021, the policies of the water industry have mainly focused on guiding
documents of laws and regulations, and national policies have pointed
the direction of the development of the industry from various aspects of
environmental protection. With the release of the policy benefits, the competition
in the water industry has intensified, the industry concentration has been
further enhanced, and the improvement of quality and efficiency and sustainable
development have been further valued by the industry. Since 2021, several
hot fields of water industry have been attached great importance. Firstly, it is
intelligent transformation of water industry. With the development of digitization,
intelligence upgrading of water industry becomes absolutely necessary, because
intelligent water-related affairs can meet the needs of water treatment in the
scattered areas, villages and towns to a greater extent and will become an
essential industry technology in the future; secondly, it is the sludge harmless
treatment. With the popularity of sewage treatment, sludge treatment volume
has increased significantly, at the same time, due to the strengthening of the
national policy, it attaches great attention to accelerate the reduction of treatment
technology in the industry, and it will have a huge market in the future; thirdly,
it is rural water treatment. It is one of the country’s major strategic decision
deployments to improve the rural living environment. Compared with cities and
towns, China’s rural environmental infrastructure seriously lag behind. Therefore, it
will become a hot spot of industry development in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

The year of 2021 is the first year for China to implement the strategy of “Carbon
Dioxide Peaking e Carbon Neutrality (fikiZE&effk /)", The implementation of the
dual carbon strategy puts forward new requirements for the development of solid
waste treatment industry in the future. Firstly, the scale of solid waste treatment
industry will further expand, especially the large and medium-sized enterprises in
the industry will continue to grow. Secondly, “wasteless city” will interact with
"Carbon Dioxide Peaking e Carbon Neutrality” to jointly promote urban green
transformation. In addition, the recycling of solid waste will become the top
priority of the solid waste industry, and the reduction and recycling of solid waste
will accelerate and release a broader market. Among them, rural waste disposal
and waste resource utilization will become a new hot spot in the industry over
a period in the future, and enterprises that are specialized in the harmless and
recycling disposal of small-scale solid waste will usher in new opportunities.

With the implementation of the “Fourteenth Five-Year Plan” in the ecological
environmental protection industry, the ecological environmental protection
industry has entered into an era in which it requires intensive cultivation
and equal attention to scale and technology. The Group will overcome the
current competition and difficulties in the industry, strive to enhance its core
competitiveness, and contribute to the development of environmental protection
industry and the construction of ecological civilization.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

In 2021, facing the complicated domestic and international economic situation
and the persistently sluggish market environment, the Group focused on the
established work objectives and strategic positioning with firm confidence,
overcame difficulties and made every effort to improve quality and efficiency.

As at 31 December 2021, the total defaulted and cross-defaulted borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB16,397,304,000, of which lenders of certain
Overdue Borrowings had applied for property preservation measures by judicatory.
In view of the above defaults, the Group has taken positive measures to mitigate
the liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position, including: (1) actively
negotiates with lenders in respect of overdue borrowings for renewal of relevant
borrowings and for grant of waivers for defaults or cross-defaults; (2) disposes
its certain concession and construction projects in batches to supplement liquidity
in time; (3) actively communicates with the financial institutions involved in the
lawsuit, seeks solutions from the professional lawyer team, and ensure the smooth
implementation of the settlement agreements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2022, while making every effort to solve the liquidity problem, the Group
will continue to focus on the two main businesses of “water + solid waste”
and go all out in production and operation. In particular, the Group will further
improve its operation and management level, speed up the construction progress
of projects under construction, prudently expand advantageous projects, reduce
financial leverage, and focus on market opportunities in comprehensive solid waste
treatment, sludge carbonization, integration of rural water supply and drainage,
intelligent water business and other fields, so as to enable the Group’s core
business to achieve sound development.

Focus on operations to improve quality and efficiency. In the future development
strategy, the Group will focus on operations to improve quality and efficiency,
continue to refine management standards, and promote energy conservation and
consumption reduction. To this end, the Group will fully implement the scientific
budgeting system, and reasonably calculate the operation indicators of each
project based on the current operating conditions. The Group will also further
strengthen checking and eliminate the unstable factors and hidden dangers of
exceeding standards in the operation process, so as to realize the stable operation
of the Group’s projects in operation.

Reduce gearing ratio. Firstly, the Group will promote equity financing, focusing
on capital operation in the solid waste sector and other advantageous sectors;
secondly, the Group will optimize the financing structure, and match the Group’s
business operations based on the loan terms by gradually adjusting the structure
of long-term and short-term liabilities; thirdly, the Group will further strengthen
debt collection to increase net operating cash inflow.

Accelerate technology research and development and promotion. The Group will
continue to enhance its innovation and sustainable development capabilities, and
establish innovation mechanism and reward system. According to the current
market demand, the Group will improve the current core technologies, especially
strengthen our low-temperature aerobic pyrolysis and carbonization technology
of organic solid waste, and strive to fully realize the reduction, harmlessness,
stabilization and resource utilization of solid organic waste treatment.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to adhere to the development goal of
“based in Yunnan, covering the nation and going global, striving to be a leading
integrated environmental services provider at the municipal level ((Z 2 Zf  EA
2E - EMBE - B ABELEOHBRELR S RIS, and pay close attention to
the development of the industry, grasp the industry development trend, overcome
the current shortcomings and difficulties, improve the Group’s technical strength,
core competitiveness and social influence, and create substantial value for the
Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is one of the leading integrated service providers in the urban
environmental protection industry in China. The Group mainly adopts the Build-
Operate-Transfer (“BOT"), Build-Own-Operate (“BOO"), Transfer-Operate-
Transfer (“TOT"), Transfer-Own-Operate (“TOO"), Build and Transfer (“BT"),
Engineering-Procurement-Construction (“EPC"), Rehabilitate-Operate-Transfer
("ROT"), Operation and Maintenance (“O&M") and licensed operation models to
provide customized and integrated turnkey solutions for water supply, wastewater
treatment and solid waste treatment as well as system integration services of
core technologies to customers. The Group’s businesses are carried out in the
PRC and the Southeast Asian countries, the Group’s principal businesses comprise
five major segments, namely, wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste

treatment, construction and sales of equipment and others.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's water related projects (including the
following wastewater treatment projects, water supply projects and all water
related projects under other business segments) had the total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 6,365,200 tonnes. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group's solid waste treatment related projects (including the following solid waste
treatment projects and all solid waste treatment related projects under other
business segments) had the total annual treatment capacity of approximately
4,081,900 tonnes. The volume of water and solid waste treatment of the Group
remained stable on the whole.

Wastewater Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 134 concession wastewater
treatment projects, including 7 BOO projects, 69 BOT projects, 2 TOO projects,
27 TOT projects, 1T ROT project and 28 municipal environment comprehensive
treatment projects, with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 3,553,400
tonnes, representing an addition of 7 TOT projects, and a reduction of 1 ROT
project year-on-year, and a decrease in the daily wastewater treatment capacity
of approximately 15,400 tonnes as compared with the year ended 31 December

2020, which remained basically stable year-on-year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2021, 106 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 2,814,500 tonnes had commenced commercial
operation (including 4 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects
with a total daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 121,500
tonnes), representing an addition of 3 BOT projects and 3 municipal environment
comprehensive treatment projects which commenced operation year-on-year,
an addition of 7 TOT projects, and an increase in total daily treatment capacity
of approximately 281,500 tonnes or a growth rate of approximately 11% as
compared with the year ended 31 December 2020. During the Reporting Period,
the Group's effective wastewater treatment utilization rate was approximately
78.5%, and the average unit charge of wastewater treatment was approximately
RMB1.59 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2021, 28 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 738,900 tonnes had not commenced commercial
operation (including 24 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects
with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 673,900 tonnes), representing
a reduction of 1 ROT project, and 3 municipal environment comprehensive
treatment projects and 3 BOT projects under construction converted to operation.

Water Supply Projects

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 67 concession water supply
projects with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 2,449,100 tonnes,
including 15 BOO projects, 35 BOT projects, 11 TOT projects and 6 municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects, representing a reduction of
1 BOT project year-on-year, and an increase in total daily treatment capacity
of approximately 31,000 tonnes as compared with 31 December 2020, which
remained basically stable year-on-year.

As at 31 December 2021, 49 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 1,595,000 tonnes had commenced commercial operation
(including 1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project with a total
daily treatment capacity of approximately 30,000 tonnes), representing an addition
of 2 BOT projects and 1 BOO project, and an increase in the total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 65,000 tonnes as compared with 31 December 2020.
During the Reporting Period, the Group’s commercial water supply decreased due
to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. the Group's effective water supply
utilization rate was approximately 64.3%, and the average unit charge of water
supply was approximately RMB2.24 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2021, 18 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 854,100 tonnes had not commenced commercial
operation (including 5 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects
with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 389,700 tonnes), representing
2 BOT projects and 1 BOO project under construction converted to operation, and
a reduction of 1 BOT project as compared with 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

Solid Waste Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 24 solid waste treatment projects
with total annual treatment capacity of approximately 4,081,900 tonnes, 13 of
which with an annual treatment capacity of approximately 2,186,600 tonnes
had commenced commercial operation (including 1 municipal environment
comprehensive treatment project with an annual treatment capacity of
approximately 219,000 tonnes), representing 5 additional projects which
commenced operation with total annual treatment capacity of approximately
1,017,200 tonnes as compared with 31 December 2020; 11 of them with
an annual treatment capacity of approximately 1,895,300 tonnes were under
construction (including 2 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects
with the total annual treatment capacity of approximately 900,800 tonnes),
representing an addition of 1 project under construction as compared with 31
December 2020. During the Reporting Period, the Group's effective solid waste
treatment utilization rate was approximately 73.15%. The utilization rate of solid
waste treatment in 2021 decreased as compared with 2020, due to the large
number of new projects put into operation and the low annual utilization rate in

the early stage when new projects put into operation.

Construction and Sales of Equipment

The Group’s construction and sales of equipment segment comprises BT projects,
EPC projects and sales of equipment. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a
total of 10 BT projects, which were either under construction and/or completed,
among which revenue of 9 BT projects was recognised during the Reporting

Period.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 13 EPC projects.

The Group engages in the production, sales and installation of equipment
for wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste treatment and other
infrastructure facilities. The major category of water related equipment in the
Group’s production is membrane products. Most of the membrane products are
produced by the own plant of the Group.

Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also undertook O&M projects for
wastewater treatment and water supply owned by third parties as well as
provision of technical and consultancy services in relation to environmental
protection. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 26 O&M projects,
representing a reduction of 3 projects as compared with 31 December 2020.
These projects included 25 wastewater treatment projects with total daily
treatment capacity of approximately 357,700 tonnes (including the capacity of
wastewater treatment projects adopting O&M model within municipal environment
comprehensive treatment projects), and 1 water supply project with daily
treatment capacity of approximately 5,000 tonnes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMBS5,280.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately 37.1% compared
with the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group realized a net loss of
approximately RMB1,055.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
409.2% compared with the year ended 31 December 2020. Loss attributable to
the ordinary Shareholders was approximately RMB1,001.9 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 549.1% as compared with 31 December 2020. Loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB0.84.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group decreased from approximately RMB8,396.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB5,280.7 million for the
Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 37.1%.

In respect of the business segments of the Group, revenue from wastewater
treatment decreased from approximately RMB5,286.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB3,387.3 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from water supply decreased by approximately 5.5% from approximately
RMB975.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB921.8 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from solid waste treatment
decreased by approximately 44.0% from RMB1,346.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB754.8 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from construction and sales of equipment decreased by approximately
77.9% from approximately RMB621.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB137.1 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from
other business decreased from approximately RMB166.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB79.8 million for the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the wastewater treatment segment was mainly
attributable to the decrease in construction revenue of the existing wastewater
treatment projects under construction during the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the water supply segment was mainly attributable
to the decrease in construction revenue as some water supply projects were
completed during the Reporting Period. The increase in operating revenue from
the water supply projects was less than the decrease in construction revenue.

The decrease in revenue from the solid waste treatment segment was mainly
attributable to the decrease in construction revenue as some solid waste projects
entered the trial operation during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

The decrease in revenue from the construction and sales of equipment segment
was mainly attributable to the decrease in scale of EPC construction services and
equipment sales during the Reporting Period.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB3,964.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately 37.1% as compared
with approximately RMB6,300.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in cost for construction which
was in line with the decrease in construction revenue of the existing solid
waste projects and wastewater treatment projects under construction during the
construction period.

Gross Profit Margin

During the Reporting Period, gross profit margin of the Group was approximately
24.93%, representing a decrease of approximately 0.03% as compared to
approximately 24.96% for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Other Income

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income of approximately
RMB54.1 million as compared with approximately RMB86.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease of approximately 37.6%.
The decrease in other income was mainly due to a decrease in income of

miscellaneous income.

Other Gains — net

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net gains of approximately
RMB164.3 million, representing an increase of approximately RMB115.5 million as
compared with a net gains of approximately RMB48.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase in other gains was mainly due to the increase in

gains from fair value gain on re-measurement of investment in an associate.

Selling Expenses

During the Reporting Period, selling expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB48.4 million, representing an increase of approximately RMB6.0 million or
14.2% as compared with approximately RMB42.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately RMB209.0
million from approximately RMB441.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB650.7 million for the Reporting Period, representing
an increase of approximately 47.3%. The increase in administrative expenses was
primarily due to the provision for impairment of long-term assets in the current
period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs — net

Net finance costs increased by approximately RMB273.0 million from approximately
RMB1,253.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB1,526.3 million for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of
approximately 21.8%. The increase in net finance costs was primarily due to the
fact that certain projects under construction of the Group are in the early stage
during which significant investment is required to be made on an ongoing basis,
resulting in an increase in financial cost during the Reporting Period.

The average interest rate on borrowings of the Group for the Reporting Period
was approximately 5.73% per annum, representing a decrease compared with
approximately 5.74% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Loss Before Income Tax

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded loss before income tax
of approximately RMB1,030.9 million for the Reporting Period, representing a
decrease of approximately 305.1% as compared with the profit before income
tax of approximately RMB502.6 million recorded for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased by RMB137.0 million from approximately
RMB161.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB24.3 million for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of
approximately 84.9%. The decrease is caused by a change in the profitability of
the Group’s subsidiaries in respective countries and regions as a result of different
corporate income tax rates being applied during the Reporting Period.

(Loss)/Profit for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, loss for the Reporting Period decreased by
approximately RMB1,396.6 million from the profit of approximately RMB341.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to the loss of approximately
RMB1,055.3 million for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of
approximately 409.2%.

Receivables under Service Concession Arrangements

The Group's receivables under service concession arrangements increased by
approximately RMB1,191.7 million from approximately RMB5,301.4 million as
at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB6,493.1 million as at 31 December
2021, representing an increase of approximately 22.5%. Such increase was due
to a number of concession projects commenced commercial operation during the
Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

Trade and Other Receivables and Prepayments

The Group's trade and other receivables and prepayments decreased by
approximately RMB653.8 million from approximately RMB9,604.8 million as at 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB8,951.0 million as at 31 December 2021,
representing a decrease of approximately 6.8%. Such decrease was primarily due
to the decrease in receivables from related parties and project owners due to the

collection of receivables during the Reporting Period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents decreased by approximately RMB1,269.3
million from approximately RMB1,697.7 million as at 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB428.4 million as at 31 December 2021, representing a decrease
of approximately 74.8%. Such decrease was primarily due to the net cash used in
operating and investment activities was greater than the net cash generated from
financing activities during the Reporting Period.

Trade and Other Payables

The Group's trade and other payables decreased by approximately RMB228.6
million from approximately RMB9,036.4 million as at 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB8,807.8 million as at 31 December 2021, representing
a decrease of approximately 2.5%. Such decrease was primarily due to the
reimbursement of construction and installation payables during the Reporting

Period.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB28,655.5 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB27,541.8 million).
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had unsecured borrowings of approximately
RMB14,708.6 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB15,365.8 million),
and secured borrowings of approximately RMB13,946.9 million (31 December
2020: approximately RMB12,176.0 million).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, borrowing of approximately RMB13,946.9 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB12,176.0 million) were secured by the Group’s
receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets, right-of-
use assets, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s

investments in subsidiaries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total capital)
increased from approximately 77.26% as at 31 December 2020 to approximately
78.79% as at 31 December 2021. The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to
the increased scale of debt financing during the Reporting Period.

The Board will closely monitor and improve the gearing ratio of the Group.

Going Concern and Mitigation Measures

the Group reported a net loss of RMB1,055,254,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB19,359,615,000 as at 31 December 2021. As at the same date, the Group's
total borrowings amounted to RMB28,655,546,000, of which current borrowings
amounted to RMB20,685,107,000, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMB428,427,000 only. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB11,963,708,000, which were mainly related to
various concession projects and construction projects of the Group.

In addition, as at 31 December 2021, the Group was in default in respect of
borrowings totaling RMB5,616,161,000 due to either late or overdue payment of
loan principals and interests of RMB1,157,710,000, or breach of certain terms and
conditions of borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2021. These events
of default also resulted in cross-default of certain borrowings other than those
mentioned above of RMB10,781,143,000 as at 31 December 2021. Subsequent
to the balance sheet date, the Group further failed to repay certain scheduled
instalments and interest of its borrowings which caused default of additional
borrowings other than those mentioned above amounted to RMB1,454,385,000.
In addition, lenders of certain of the abovementioned overdue borrowings had
taken property preservation measures and obtained enforcement order for
settlement from the court through legal proceedings. These conditions, together
with other matters described in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of multiple uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEE ®
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The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of measures to

mitigate the Group’s liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position, and to

remediate certain delayed repayments to financial institutions, which include:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

24

The Group had corporate bonds of RMB852,721,000 with early redemption
option exercisable by bondholders in March 2022, out of which
RMB577,028,000 was exercised by the bondholders and redeemed by the
Group, while the bondholders for the remaining RMB275,693,000 did not
exercise the option and such amount will be due for repayment by March
2024.

In March 2022, the Group obtained a borrowing of RMB990,000,000 from
its immediate holding company, Yunnan Green Environmental Protection
Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“YEPI"). The proceed was partly used to redeem
the corporate bonds of RMB577,028,000 as mentioned above, partly used
to repay the Group’s borrowings of RMB154,436,000 which were due for
repayment in March 2022, which the remaining portion was used to repay
the interest and other financing charges due to Yunnan Health & Cultural
Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“YHTH"), an intermediate holding
company. The Group also obtained borrowings of RMB212,000,000 from
a subsidiary of YHTH to repay another corporate bonds which were due in
March 2022.

The Group will continue its ongoing effort to convince the respective
lenders not to take any actions against the Group for immediate repayment
of the Defaulted Borrowings. Other than the property preservation measures
and enforcement incidents mentioned above, the directors are not aware of
any indication that other lenders have any current intention to take actions
against the Group to demand immediate payments.

The Group is also in active negotiations with the respective lenders for
renewal and extension of the relevant borrowings and for grant of waivers
for non-compliance of financial covenants, defaults and cross defaults,
and the directors are confident that agreements will be reached and
appropriate waivers will be granted in a timely manner. Since 1 January
2022, the Group has successfully extended RMB412,984,000 of the Overdue
Borrowings under the same terms of the original agreement despite the
continuing defaulted status.

The Directors are confident that the Group will be able to renew certain
uncommitted revolving loan facilities as at 31 December 2021 as well as
to obtain new facilities as planned given the long standing relationship the
Group has with the respective banks.
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has plans to divest certain of the Group’s concession projects
and construction projects. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has received
deposit from a potential acquirer amounted to RMB200,000,000 and the
completion of the disposal is expected to take place before June 2022 with
a further consideration of approximately RMB220,000,000 to be received.
In the meantime, the Group is also actively looking for strategic investors to
invest in certain existing projects of the Group so as to enhance the capital
structure and reduce overall financing expenses of the Group.

The Directors are of the view that they have the ability to manage
the progress of the projects from time to time and defer the payment
schedule of the borrowings in these projects, if necessary. The Group has
uncommitted project loan facilities from banks to provide financing of up
to RMB5,506,109,000 to satisfy part of the construction cost payable and
committed capital expenditure in the next twelve months from 31 December
2021. The Group has also initiated the process to obtain new project loans
to fund the Group’s existing and new concession projects and construction
projects. Despite the default situation as described above, the Directors
believe that these uncommitted facilities will continue to be available to the
Group and they are confident that they will be able to obtain such project
loans from banks and other financial institutions as and when needed.

The borrowings from YHTH was RMB4,366,330,000 as at 31 December
2021, of which RMB4,302,589,000 was classified as non-current. In
addition, in order to facilitate the Group to issue perpetual bonds during
the year, YHTH has undertaken to the bondholders to acquire the Group’s
perpetual bonds of RMB1,622,300,000 under certain circumstance and
also provided certain properties of YHTH as security. Moreover, YHTH also
issued a letter to the Group and agreed to provide financial support to the
Group for a period up to 18 months from 31 December 2021 and to take
measures to enable the Group to have sufficient working capital to meet its
liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due and to continue to carry
on its business.

The Group is actively communicating with the relevant lenders that
have taken property preservation measures and enforcement through
legal proceedings, seeking solutions from the professional lawyer team,
hoping to reach a settlement through mediation and ensure the smooth
implementation of relevant settlement agreements.

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE TR

Disclaimer of Opinion

As disclosed in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 80 to 83 of this
annual report, the Company’s auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers (the “Auditor”)
expressed a disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year 2021 (the “Disclaimer of Opinion”).

Due to multiple uncertainties relating to going concern, the Auditor did not
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021. As stated in note 2 of the financial statements
and notes to this report, in view of the Disclaimer of Opinion, the Group has
taken certain measures and actions. Should the Group fail to achieve the planned
measures and actions, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of
these adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. Disclaimer of Opinion is only
related to going concern of the Group as a whole, not to the specific matters
or things of the Group’s financial position at the end of the above-mentioned
reporting period. By far, we have not noticed any impact of the audit opinion on
the future financial position of the Group.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 6,998 employees (31 December
2020: 7,007). During the Reporting Period, staff cost was approximately RMB666.5
million (for the year ended 31 December 2020: RMB588.9 million). The Group will
strive to ensure that the remuneration level of employees is in line with industry
practices and prevailing market conditions, and remunerations of employees will
be determined based on their performance. The remuneration package provided to
employees also includes basic and floating salaries, discretionary bonus and staff
benefits. The Group also provides external and internal training programs for its
employees.

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes causing any material
impact on its normal business operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most of the transactions being
settled in RMB, which is the functional currency of most of the group entities.
The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises from the recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through financing activities denominated in the

relevant foreign currencies.

The group entities are exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies
other than their functional currencies, primarily with respect to the US dollars
("“US$"), Euro ("EUR") and Hong Kong dollars (“"HKD") (together “Non-
functional Currencies”). The Group seeks to limit its exposure to foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring and minimizing its net foreign currency
position. Management considers the fluctuations in exchange rates between the
functional currencies of respective group entities and Non-functional Currencies in
which the group entities conduct business will not have significant effect on the

Group's financial position and results of operations.

Contingent Liabilities

Affected by the cases of financial leasing contract dispute, some assets of the
Group were taken property preservation measures by the relevant courts from
December 2021 to January 2022. The above assets relate to the equity interest
of some subsidiaries/associates held by the Group and some bank accounts of the
Group. According to the inside information announcement issued by the Company
on 25 March 2022, due to the continuous impact of one of the above financial
leasing contract dispute cases, the Company has been listed as a person subject
to enforcement by Urumgi Intermediate People’s Court, and the subject matter
of enforcement was the assets of the Group with a total value of no more than
RMB371,502,848.

At present, the Company is actively communicating with relevant financial
institutions involved in the lawsuit, seeking solutions from the professional lawyer
team, hoping to reach a settlement through mediation and ensuring the smooth
implementation of relevant settlement agreements. If the relevant settlement
matters can be reached, the Company’s assets subject to preservation measures
and enforcement may be unfrozen, and such release will not have any adverse
impact on the ownership of relevant assets and the circulation of funds in the
account. Therefore, the Company believes that the property preservation and
enforcement caused by relevant financial lease contract disputes will not constitute

major contingent liabilities of the Group.

Final Dividend
The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEE ®

DT

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

On 6 June 2021,
Share Issuance Agreement with Zhejiang Qianjiang Biochemical Co., Ltd.*
CI8IEMICERNBIRAR)
Municipal Water Investment Group Co.,
BRAF]

Haining Water Investment Group conditionally agreed to sell and Qianjiang

the Company entered into the Equity Acquisition and

("Qianjiang Biochemical”) and Haining
Limited* (BEmMKEREEE
(“Haining Water Investment Group”), pursuant to which

Biochemical conditionally agreed to acquire 51% equity interest in Zhejiang
Haiyun Environmental Protection, 40% equity interest in Capital Water,
40% equity interest in Shikang Water, 40% equity interest in Lvdong
Haiyun held by Haining Water Investment Group, and 49% equity interest
in Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental Protection held by the Company at a total
consideration of RMB2,103,200,000. Upon completion of the Acquisition,
Qianjiang Biochemical will hold 100% equity interest in Zhejiang Haiyun
Environmental Protection, 40% equity interest in Capital Water, 40% equity
interest in Shikang Water and 40% equity interest in Lvdong Haiyun, and
the Company will cease to hold any equity interest in Zhejiang Haiyun
Environmental Protection and will hold approximately 20.24% equity interest
in Qianjiang Biochemical (assuming there will be no other change in the
registered capital of Qianjiang Biochemical), which will be accounted for as
an associated company of the Company.

For details of the above-mentioned significant investment and acquisition, please

refer to the announcement published by the Company on 6 June 2021.

Subsequent Events:

On 11 January 2022, the name of the Company’s Controlling Shareholder
has been formally changed from “Yunnan Province Water Industry
Investment Co., Ltd.* (EEEKBEEIREBRAF)" to “Yunnan Green
Environmental Protection Industry Group Co., Ltd* (EEEGEIRREEXEE
BRAR)".

For details of the above-mentioned subsequent event, please refer to the

announcement published by the Company on 11 January 2022.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

I

-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Long (“Mr. Yu”), aged 50, joined the Group in June 2011, and
currently serves as an executive Director, vice chairman and the general manager
of the Company. Mr. Yu obtained a MBA degree from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University in July 2013, and is now studying as a doctor
at the School of Economics and Management at University of Chinese Academy
of Sciences. Mr. Yu has more than 18 years of experience in environmental and
water works industry, market development, project management, investment
capital management, and risk control management, and he is mainly responsible
for the overall operation and management, strategic planning and business
development of the Company. Mr. Yu was appointed as general manager of
water works division and deputy general manager of Beijing Tsinghua Novel
Environmental Protection Company Limited between July 2003 and August 2007.
Mr. Yu was appointed as project management director of Kardan Water Group
Limited* (SFf/KISEIBR R ER) between August 2007 and July 2008. Between
July 2008 and April 2009, Mr. Yu was appointed as the deputy general manager
of Ruoshi (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (BA (dtFR) EEHGR2AF]). Between
May 2009 and October 2012, Mr. Yu was appointed as the sales director and the
deputy general manager of Beijing OriginWater. Between June 2011 and August
2017, Mr. Yu served as General Manager and executive Director of the Company,
and as General Manager of the Company between August 2017 and December
2018. Mr. Yu has served as an executive Director, vice chairman and General
Manager of the Company from December 2018 till now, and Mr. Yu has been
elected by the Board to act as the Acting Chairman from September 2021 till
now. In addition, Mr. Yu has been appointed as chairman or director of various
subsidiaries of our Group since January 2011.

F EFLERERAER

HITESRFHUTES

FEEETFERE]D 505 TAER-T
——FEXRAMAREER  BECEAQB®NIT
EE REETRRALE - TEAER-_T—=
FLAMBLERAEXEETRERTIHER
B2 BRPERSRXELERER
BRETEE TEERBRREKKTE
MHFHE  HEEHE REAEAEERERE
GIERHAAISFLAR TZ2AFAQAN
BREBLENERE FHRBRIALREHSEE -
—EE-FLAE_EELFNASME T
FEEFILRBEEXRTERAERAANE &
I RKBEHPINBEE - R LFN
REZFTZN\FLAHPHE - FRAETINT
KEEEBEREENEEEERLE N
TZNFLtRE-ZTTNFNAEBEE T4t
EAEAER)REBR RGN BLE -
RZZEZAFRAZ=-Z—Z=-F+AHM -
FRAEETLEREKENHEERERE B
B - RZZE——FRNAZZZE—tFN\AH
M TREECTARRBEBLRATES -
BT +tFNARE-_Z—N\F+=-AH
M FRAEREAAQARBLERE B2 /\F
+ZAZES  FEEEAAQABDNTES @ &
EERNAERKE B-E-—FhLAES
FERARNREESSHRRTESRBE -
o - BZE——F—ARBRTEAERAER
LERNBRAAIEZEEIESERNUES -

Annual Report 2021 4 £ 5 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Zf/KKEER B ER A 7 29



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 EFNEAEBEAER

Mr. Zhou Zhimi (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 48, joined the Group in March 2011,
and currently serves as an executive Director and Chief Financial Controller of
the Company. Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in statistics from Shanxi
University of Finance and Economics in July 1999, and obtained the title certificate
of senior accountant in March 2022. Mr. Zhou has over 22 years of experience in
corporate finance management. From July 1999 to March 2006, Mr. Zhou worked
in Yunnan Beifang Optical Electronics Group Co., Ltd.* (EEit A HEETEH
ABR2AA]); from August 2005 to March 2011, Mr. Zhou served as the deputy
director in the finance, accounting and audit department of Yunnan Yunguang
Development Co., Ltd.* (EFE}XERABRAF]), from March 2011 to June 2014,
Mr. Zhou successively served as the deputy manager and the manager of the
finance department of Yunnan Green Environmental Protection Group Industrial
Investment Co., Ltd.* (EFMZERREEEZEREARAF), and also acted as the
chief financial controller of its subsidiary; from June 2014 to September 2015,
Mr. Zhou served as the manager of the finance department of the Company, and
also the chief financial controller of various subsidiaries; from September 2015
to September 2021, Mr. Zhou served as the deputy financial controller of the
Company, and successively served as the deputy general manager of its associated
company and the financial controller of Shanghai Center of the Company. From
September 2021 till now, Mr. Zhou has served as the financial controller of the
Company. Mr. Zhou also serves as director and chairman of several subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. Dai Richeng (“Mr. Dai”), aged 57, joined the Group in October 2020, and
currently serves as a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Dai holds a
master’'s degree in environmental engineering from the Department of Chemical
Engineering in Nanjing University of Science and Technology and a doctoral
degree in environmental engineering of the Department of Environmental
Engineering from Tsinghua University. Mr. Dai has extensive experience for about
30 years in the water treatment industry. He was an engineer at the Water
Pollution Research Office of the Quan Jun Environmental Science Research Centre*
(FERERIEMIETHLKTLHRE) and later acted as a senior engineer in the
China Water Pollution Research Centre* (FREIZK)5LMFTH ). From 1998 to
2010, Mr. Dai acted as the general manager and senior engineer in a subsidiary
principally engaged in wastewater treatment of Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* (/&
EEFRHBABMRAF]) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 600100). From 2010 to 2012, he was the vice-president and senior engineer
of Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited (JLIZ/KIEEEBR A &) (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 371). Mr. Dai has
been the general manager of Beijing OriginWater from October 2012 to April
2016, has been the director of Beijing OriginWater from April 2014 to September
2020 and has been the general manager and executive general manager of Beijing
OriginWater since March 2018; Mr. Dai was the executive Director and vice-
chairman of the Company from June 2016 to August 2018, and the non-executive
Director of the Company from August 2018 to December 2018, and from
December 2018 till now, he has been the non-executive Director of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Ex EFMEREEAER

Mr. Chen Yong (“Mr. Chen”), aged 49, joined the Group in June 2019, and
currently serves as a non-executive Director of the Company. He is a postgraduate
and senior accountant. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’'s degree in computer
science from Xinjiang University (¥ A2) in July 1999 and a master’s degree
in business administration from Xinjiang University of Finance and Economics in
June 2009. Mr. Chen has over 26 years of extensive experience in accounting
and management. From February 1992 to July 2008, Mr. Chen worked for
CNPC Xinjiang Sales Company* (F Bl /A 5845 E 2 7)) and served as a Deputy
Director of the Finance Department and a Director of the Corporate Management
Department. Since September 2010, Mr. Chen has been the General Manager of
the Equity Investment Department of Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.* (Em{ELBRET
‘A \]), the General Manager of the Equity Investment Department of CNPC Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* (& EEE AR ARF]), the Managing Director of Ningbo
Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (%)% E
WBELREETEAELE (BRA%) ) and an Authorized Representative of the
Executive Partner of Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity Investment Center (Limited
Partnership)* (& s EAZREIREF L (BRAF) ). In addition, Mr. Chen has
been a supervisor of Shandong International Trust Co., Ltd.* (IIERABRELR
BB TF]) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1697) since September 2014. He has been a director of Tianjin Climate
Exchange Co., Ltd. (RKEBFHER ZAR QA since December 2015. He has
been a director of Jiemian (Shanghai) Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (@ (Lt
g) MBI AR AR since July 2016, and a director of Beijing Wuerzhilu
Technology Co., Ltd.* Qb RE = ZIREHEBBR A F]) since April 2017, and a
director of Beijing Weiche Technology Co., Ltd* (At REHERIFZER A F) since
May 2017. Mr. Chen has been a director of Shandong Provincial Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* (LRESHMEEERRHBRAE) since July 2018, the
vice chairman of Beijing Kunlun Zhihui Technology Co., Ltd.* (It RE®mBERTHE
PR /A F]) since February 2018, and from June 2019 till now, he has been the non-
executive Director of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 EFNEAEBEAER

Mr. Liu Hui (“Mr. Liu”), aged 49, joined the Group in June 2021,
serves as a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s

and currently

degree in medical insurance from Nanjing Railway Medical College in August
1999 and a master’s degree in political economics from Yunnan University in July
2008. Mr. Liu has over 22 years of extensive experience in corporate financial
management. From August 1999 to September 2005, Mr. Liu acted as an
assistant economist in the Third People’s Hospital of Yunnan Province* (Ef%& S
= AREBxR); from July 2008 to January 2011,
department of the Rural Credit Cooperative Union of Wuhua District, Kunming

Mr. Liu worked in the accounting

City; from January 2011 to August 2013, Mr. Liu served as the business supervisor
in the financial management department of Yunnan Metropolitan Construction
(EMEWMMEREEEEFRAF]), from August 2013 to
September 2014, Mr. Liu served as the chief financial offlcer of Yunnan Urban
Ltd.* (EEHRAIZEREFRAF);
September 2014 to August 2016, Mr. Liu worked as a business supervisor in the

Investment Co., Ltd.*

Investment and Venture Capital Co., from
financial management center of Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment

0., Ltd.; from August 2016 to November 2020, Mr. Liu worked as a deputy
general manager of the financial management center of Yunnan Metropolitan
from June 2019 to December 2019, Mr. Liu
concurrently served as the chief financial officer of Chengdu Global Century
Convention & Exhibition Tourism Group Co., Ltd.* (AR&PIRERI 42 & R IRz EE
BBRAF]); and since November 2020, Mr. Liu has acted as the deputy general
manager of the financial management center of Yunnan Health & Cultural
(EHERIREREEERA

shareholder of the Company. From June 2021 till now, Mr. Liu has been the non-

Construction Investment Co., Ltd.;

Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.* , the controlling

executive Director of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

I

-

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (“Mr. Liu”), aged 50, joined the Group in June 2018, and
currently serves as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Liu
obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting and a master’s degree in accounting
from RMIT University of Australia in 1996 and 2002, respectively. He subsequently
obtained a master’'s degree in business administration from Deakin University of
Australia in 2004. Mr. Liu has more than 21 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and management and is a qualified accountant of CPA Australia and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Liu has worked at KPMG
since 1996 as a manager, senior manager and supervisor. From 1996 to 1999, he
worked in the audit department of the Hong Kong office of KPMG. From 1999 to
2010, he worked in the financial advisory service department of the Guangzhou
office and Shenzhen office of KPMG. From October 2010 to December 2013,
Mr. Liu was chief financial officer and company secretary of Leoch International
Technology Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 842). From December 2013 to May 2017, Mr. Liu was executive
director, chief financial officer and company secretary of Yestock Car Rental
Company Limited. Since May 2017, Mr. Liu has been the managing director of
member companies of Heungkong Financial Group. From June 2018 till now, Mr.
Liu has been the independent non-executive Director of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

55 EFNEAEBEAER

Mr. Zhong Wei (“Mr. Zhong”), aged 53, joined the Group in October 2020,
and currently serves as an independent non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Zhong graduated from Nanjing University in 1990 majoring in applied
physics and from Southeast University in 1994 majoring in industrial economics
management. Mr. Zhong received his doctorate’s degree in 1999 from Beijing
Normal University majoring in international economics. Between September 2001
and July 2004, Mr. Zhong engaged in postdoctoral research in management
science at Tongji University. Mr. Zhong served as an assistant engineer at
Wuxi Alarm Devices Factory from July 1990 to July 1992. Mr. Zhong worked
as a lecturer at the Business School of Jiangnan University from July 1994 to
July 1997. Mr. Zhong served as an associate professor at the Business School
of Beijing Normal University between 1999 and 2003. Mr. Zhong has been a
professor of the department of Economics and Business Management of Beijing
Normal University since July 2003. Mr. Zhong has long been engaged in the field
of finance and macroeconomic research. He was selected by the PRC Ministry
of Education and the Beijing Supported by Program for New Century Excellent
Talents in University* (Jt Rt EF TS @RIEZ A 5TE]). From April 2017
till now, Mr. Zhong has served as an independent non-executive director of China
Resources Land Limited GEEZ#ER A a]) (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1109). From August 2020 till now, he has
served as an independent non-executive director of China Jinmao Holdings Group
Limited (FEEEIZREBBGR AR (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 817). From October 2020 till now, he has been the
independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Beihai (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 59, joined the Group in October 2020, and
currently serves as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Zhou Beihai obtained a doctoral degree in engineering from the Department of
Environmental Engineering at Tsinghua University (BE#EAXZIRIETIZXK) in March
1992. Mr. Zhou carried out research on solid waste landfill technology at The
University of Fukuoka in Japan from March 1992 to March 1994, and conducted
research on photocatalysis water treatment technology at Saitama University in
Japan from January 1995 to March 1995. Mr. Zhou served as the director of
the Registration and Management Centre for the solid waste under the State
Administration of Environmental Protection (BIZRIR{R 4B E 48R Y S E B L)
from October 1996 to August 2001, and served as diplomatic officer of science
and technology at the Chinese Embassy in Japan from October 2001 to December
2004. Mr. Zhou has been appointed as the professor at the School of Energy and
Environmental Engineering of University of Science and Technology Beijing since
January 2005. From October 2020 till now, he has been the independent non-
executive Director of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

I

-

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Long Limin (“Mr. Long”), aged 53, joined the Group in August 2017, and
currently serves as a shareholder representative Supervisor and chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company. Mr. Long obtained a bachelor’s degree in
engineering from Chongqging University in 1991 and a master’s degree in business
administration from Tsinghua University in 2004. Between 1991 and 2000, Mr.
Long acted as deputy factory director of Beijing Plumbing Equipment Factory 1
(AL = T7KEE 254 —BR). Between 2000 and 2010, Mr. Long served as vice general
manager of Tsinghua Tongfang Artificial Environment Co., Ltd* (BZERH A TIRE
BFR7AF]). Between 2010 and 2011, Mr. Long was the director of operation and
the manager of procurement department of Beijing OriginWater. Between 2011
and 2013, Mr. Long served as the general manager of Shandong Yashi Co., Ltd.*
(I FELTID BB A A]). Between 2013 and 2016, Mr. Long was the director
of enquiry and procurement department of Beijing OriginWater. From 2016 to
March 2018, Mr. Long was the director of operation planning center of Beijing
OriginWater, and he has been the director and deputy general manager of Beijing
OriginWater since March 2018.

Mr. Zhu Zhen (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 37, joined the Group in August 2017, and
currently serves as a shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Zhu obtained his master’s degree in law from Tsinghua University in September
2009. Mr. Zhu has almost 10 years of experience in law and investment related
industries. Mr. Zhu was the deputy general manager of the auditing and legal
department of YHTH from October 2013 to September 2016, and he was
promoted as the general manager of the legal department of YHTH in September
2016. Mr. Zhu has also acted as the general manager of the leisure industry
department under the investment and management center of YHTH since 2018. In
addition, Mr. Zhu has served as director and supervisor in various subsidiaries of
YHTH since September 2014.
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Mr. Huang Yi (“Mr. Huang”), aged 46, joined the Group in June 2011, and
currently serves as an employee representative Supervisor, the deputy general
manager of the technology and risk control center and the general manager of
the southwest region of the Company. Mr. Huang obtained a bachelor’s degree
in Computer and Application from Yunnan University in July 1998 and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from Nanjing Normal University in July 2001.
From July 2001 to November 2003, Mr. Huang served as a principal staff member
of the economic and trade division in the Kunming Resident Office of the National
Audit Office. From November 2003 to June 2009, Mr. Huang served successively
as senior analyst in the planning and development department, assistant to the
director of the audit department and deputy director of the discipline inspection
office of Yunnan Malong Industry Group Company Limited* (EfEGREEXEE
&7 BBR A R])

manager of the investment development department, manager of the investment

. Since August 2009, Mr. Huang has served successively as deputy

development department, deputy general manager of the market and investment
center, the deputy general manager of the technology and risk control center and
the general manager of the southwest region of the Company. In addition, since
August 2007, Mr. Huang has served as chairman or general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Tang Shuang (“Ms. Tang”), aged 38, joined the Group in January 2015,
and currently serves as the deputy manager of the business department and
an employee representative Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Tang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in management from Yunnan University in Yunnan in July
2007, and she obtained the qualification as an accountant in May 2006 awarded
by the Ministry of Finance. Ms. Tang is mainly responsible for supervising the
Directors, managers and other management personnel of the Company to
ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and
the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Tang has more than 11 years of
working experience in large-scale enterprises. Ms. Tang was an employee of the
Yunnan branch office of Ping An Life Insurance Limited between July 2007 and
June 2008, later she served as the accountant for the Beijing branch office of Ping
An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of China Limited from July 2008 to
March 2010. From March 2010 to February 2015, Ms. Tang served in the business
department of Yunnan OriginWater Technology Company Limited. Ms. Tang
served as the deputy manager of the bidding and procurement department of the
Company from March 2015 to November 2015. Since December 2015, she has
been the deputy manager of the business department of the Company.
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Mr. Tan Hairui (“Mr. Tan"”), aged 51,
currently serves as an independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Tan obtained

joined the Group in January 2015, and

a bachelor’s degree in economics from Yunnan Finance and Trade College
(now known as Yunnan University of Finance and Economics) in July 1993.
Mr. Tan obtained the certificate as a registered accountant issued by Accountant
Examination Committee of Ministry of Finance of the PRC in April 1999 and a
Lawyer’s License in August 2004. Mr. Tan has more than 19 years of working
experience in large-scale enterprises, and he is mainly responsible for supervising
the Directors, managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance
with laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
Shareholders’ meetings. Mr. Tan was the deputy manager of the financial
department of Yunda Science & Technology Industry Company from 2000 to
December 2001. Mr. Tan joined Yunnan Hengxin Law Firm as trainee solicitor and
lawyer from January 2002 to August 2007. Mr. Tan joined the Yunnan Quzhi Law
Firm as lawyer between September 2007 and March 2009. Mr. Tan worked in
Yunnan Geyuan Law Firm as a lawyer from March 2009 to January 2018. Since
January 2018, Mr. Tan has been working in Beijing Yingke (Kunming) Law Firm

GEmBE (BRA) EREHEE) as a lawyer.

Ms. Zhang Ling (“Ms. Zhang"), aged 46, joined the Group in January 2018, and
currently serves as an independent Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Zhang is the
deputy professor and Master’s tutor of law school of Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics and director of the collaborated regional resources law research
center of law school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Zhang
obtained her law degree in July 1997 at Wuhan University and master degree in
international business law and European Union law at University of Sheffield in
November 2004. Since September 2005, Ms. Zhang has been working at the law
school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics, responsible for teaching,
research and application of law. Ms. Zhang had published dozens of professional
academic papers on law, held discussions on national social topics and research
on provincial laws. She was invited by the Legal Affairs Office of the State
Council* (BFFTEFIH), the Ministry of Civil Affairs* (RIEXEB) and the Ministry
of Foreign Affairs* (4N32EB) to participate in the amendments of two laws and
regulations and legislative consultation. She has received the research award of
(EFEE T2 SR 2T ERD) twice.

In addition, Ms. Zhang had approximately 21 years of solid experience in the legal

Yunnan Philosophical Social Science Society*

field. Since she was qualified as a practicing lawyer in November 1999, Ms. Zhang
had worked in five different law firms in Yunnan Province and is currently working

(Z//\GhRERDEFEFR).

on or part-time basis at Yunnan Bagian Law Firm*
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Fang (“Mr. Yang"”), aged 48, joined the Group in June 2012, and
currently serves as the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Yang
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accounting and statistics from Yunnan University
of Finance and Economics in July 1998, and further obtained an executive master’s
degree in business administration from Dalian University of Technology in June
2008. Mr. Yang was qualified as a first-class enterprise human resources managing
personnel in March 2009 certified by the Ministry of Labor and Social Security.
From March 2013 to January 2021,
Company, and he was subsequently appointed as deputy general manger of the

Mr. Yang served as party secretary of the

Company in November 2014, and served as an executive Director of the Company
from August 2017 to June 2021.

management experience in water works related companies, and he is responsible

Mr. Yang has more than 12 years of senior

for operation and management of some regions. Mr. Yang served in various
positions in YHTH, including manager of personnel and organization department,
manager of the human resources department.

Mr. Liu Xujun (“Mr. Liu"), aged 49, joined the Group in June 2011, and
currently serves the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Liu obtained
a bachelor’s degree in water supply and drainage engineering from Tongji
University in Shanghai in July 1995. Later, he further obtained a master’s
degree in environmental engineering from Kunming University of Science &
Technology in Kunming in June 2009, and he obtained a doctorate degree in
environment engineering at Tongji University in Shanghai in September 2017. Mr.
Liu was qualified as a senior engineer specialized in water supply and drainage
in September 2006 by the Kunming Architecture Senior Engineer Certifying
Committee (RBATEETRE SR TIRANETEZ). Mr. Liu has become a member of
the International Water Association (IWA) (EIBRX7K1#3) since January 2013. He was
subsequently qualified as a professorate senior engineer specialized in water supply
and drainage in November 2014 by the Yunnan Professorate Senior Engineer
Certifying Committee (EfE EaR TIZAMNEZER)
23 years of technical experience in the water works industry, including 9 years

. Mr. Liu has more than

of senior management experience in water works enterprises, mainly responsible
for the technical management, research and development, and services of the
Company. Mr. Liu served as engineering staff in Kunming Municipal Sewerage

0., Ltd., a deputy director and later a director of World Bank project office
between July 1995 and October 2005. Mr. Liu worked as a procurement specialist
for the World Bank Resident Mission from December 2007 to October 2009. He
served as chief engineer and deputy general manager of YEPI from January 2010
to June 2011.
the Company from June 2011 to August 2017. He has been the deputy general

Mr. Liu served as executive Director and deputy general manager of

manager of the Company since August 2017.
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Mr. Wang Yong (“Mr. Wang”), aged 50, joined the Group in January 2013.
Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in economics in July 1993 from Yunnan
Finance and Trade College (now known as Yunnan University of Finance and
Economics) and a master’'s degree in business administration in January 2009
from the Yunnan University. He was qualified as an accountant in the PRC in May
1996, and also qualified as a registered tax agent in the PRC in October 2000,
later he was promoted to a senior accountant in October 2004. From April 2002
to January 2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as the manager of finance department
of Kunming Sino-Platinum Metals Catalyst Co., Ltd* (RBA S {E(CTHBR A F)).
Mr. Wang joined the Group in January 2013 as manager of finance department
of the Company, subsequently he was appointed as financial controller of the
Company in November 2013. Mr. Wang has ceased to be the financial controller
of the Company since March 2021.

Mr. Ma Xiangyi (“Mr. Ma"”), aged 47, joined the Group in February 2016,
successively served as the deputy general manager and general manager of the
project management center and was appointed as a deputy general manager of
the Company by the second session of the Board. Mr. Ma obtained a bachelor’s
degree in industrial and civil construction from Yunnan Polytechnic University
in July 1997 and the qualification of intermediate engineer (in water supply
and drainage) in August 2002. Mr. Ma has over 23 years of rich experience in
water and relevant industries. Mr. Ma served as an engineer at the infrastructure
construction division of Kunming Municipal Water Discharge Company* (B3
WM BEEKAR]) from August 1997 to August 2005, a deputy general manager
of Kunming Dianchi Project Management Company* (E8EMIEH EE A 7))
from September 2005 to October 2012 and a standing deputy general manager
of Kunming Dianchi Construction Management Company* (EFEMEREE R
Al) from November 2012 to February 2016. In addition, Mr. Ma served as the
chairman or a senior management member of a number of subsidiaries of the

Group since September 2016.

Mr. Zhao Peng (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 41, joined the Group as the general manager
assistant and general manager of the marketing and investment center of the
Group in June 2011 and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the
Company by the second session of the Board. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law from Hebei University of Economics and Business in July 2003.
Mr. Zhao has approximately 17 years of rich experience in the environmental
protection industry. Mr. Zhao served as the business manager of Beijing Novel
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.* (JtFKFTIRIRBPEAF]) from September 2003
to April 2004 and subsequently as the marketing director for North China area of
Veolia Water Solutions & Technologies (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (B /KT (4t
®) AMRAF) from May 2005 to June 2011.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo (“Mr. Li"”), aged 43, joined the Group in August 2013 as company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Li graduated from Capital University of Economics
and Business in Beijing with a bachelor’'s degree in economics in July 2001 and
obtained a master’s degree in accounting from Macquarie University in Australia in
April 2006. Mr. Li is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia.
He is mainly responsible for assisting with the operation of our Company and the
operation of the Board. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of experience in finance
related senior positions. Mr. Li was engaged by Audit Office of New South Wales
as an auditor since August 2007 and was later promoted to senior auditor.
From March 2011 to June 2013, Mr. Li served as the financial controller and the
company secretary of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 814).
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the year ended 31
December 2021 to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2021, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB1,193,213,457, divided into 1,193,213,457 Shares of RMB1.00 each. Details
of changes in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note
26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the listed securities of the Company during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company
is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its

existing Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is an operator primarily engaged in municipal environmental integrated
services and the only urban environmental integrated service provider in Yunnan
Province. The Group is also one of the few integrated operators in municipal
environmental services in China that has expanded overseas successfully, and our
overseas business is mainly located in Southeast Asian regions. In addition, the
Group operates upstream and downstream development industries to improve the
Group's profitability structure and broaden the sources of income. The Group has
good track records in projects such as urban wastewater treatment, tap water and
raw water supply, watercourse management, solid waste treatment and others.

The major business segments of the Group include investment, construction and
management services for urban water supply, waste water treatment, solid waste
treatment, and comprehensive environmental treatment projects, construction
and sales of equipment and other environmental protection related services. The
corporate strategy of the Group is to set our foundation of business in Yunnan,
identify overseas investment opportunities continuously, and gradually expand our
business to other favourable regions in China and overseas emerging markets, in

order to secure stable income sources.
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RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 84 to 85. The financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 is
set out in the consolidated balance sheet on pages 86 to 88. The consolidated
cash flow of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the
consolidated statement of cash flows on pages 91 to 92.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and significant elements
affecting the results of operations and financial condition of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report from pages 12 to 28.

DISTRIBUTIONS AND DIVIDENDS

Considering the actual situation of the Group, the Board has decided not to
recommend the payment of final dividends for the year ended 31 December
2021, and such non-recommended payment of final dividends is subject to the

Shareholders’ review and approval at the AGM.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Reporting Period
are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity, of which details of
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made external donations of approximately

RMBO.6 million (contractual value) (excluding personal donations by employees).

42 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED EFI /KR & IR 15 B R A& Annual Report 2021 F & 3 &

E

AEBBE_T—F+-A=1+—BHLEE
%W%+ME¥9§W%Mi%EmAW“
AWER - AEBPR T -_—F+_A=+—
W%%#&%m%%i%ﬁﬁéﬁééﬁ
BER AEEHEE_T-_—F+_A=+—
HEFENAGHBESRERNRFINENED
AEHAERER -

HREERANTERESHARARFLEE
BEFBRANEREAZO R LD - &
MAFERE12E28E N B E 7w M D7
BEIA o

2R E R E

HARRERBN EFgRERTEHRE
BE-_T-_—F+_A=+t—HLFERXRHY
BB AEFERERAREAFRRERRER
BEARG LERARIERBAEE -

ME - BERRE
BEBNAREDE BERIBELHHE
B TS R A 17 ¢

it 18
BEMALRRBAFELPIOFITHNA G2
BEHPR  ERAHIIRTRRFEENFE
MERNEHFREEHE -

B
REBEMA - AEEOHEIMERBOARE
0.6 T (& R E(E) (T2 EE &M iEA R
) -



BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as of 31 December 2021 are

set out in note 29 to the Financial Statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

Certain information concerning the Directors and the Supervisors and senior
management of the Company during the Reporting Period and as of the date of

this annual report is set out below.

Directors

Name

e

Title in the Company
R D T R

Directors’ Report

EERRE
1T f8 ™K & H At £5 K

AEBR T =_—F+=A=+— EE’]ﬁEﬁ
BRREMEROFBEHIN AT RY E R
B 5E29 ©

EE EERSAREEAER

T%ﬁ@$“ﬁ%ﬁ¢%ﬁ&@§$¢ﬁa
HEE EEMaMEBAEBNISEE -

=

Date of Appointment
for the Current Term

BOTEMNEEAHY

Executive Directors
HTES

Mr. Yu Long

TEEE

Mr. Zhou Zhimi

/L; s-u)jEéE

Mr. Yang Fang (Resigned as executive
Director on 11 June 2021)

BHEEMR -_ZT-_—FXA+—H
BEMTES)

Ms. Li Bo (Resigned as executive Director
and Chairperson on 30 September 2021)

FREET(R=ZTE=—FhA=1H
BENTES E=FR)

Ms. Ling Hui (Resigned as executive
Director on 10 November 2021)

EBERE(R-_FT-_—F+—HA+H
%Eﬁﬂ§$)

Executive Director,
Acting Chairman,
General Manager

WITEE REBEEE  AKE

Executive Director,
Chief Financial Controller

HTES KRR

Executive Director

HITES

Executive Director, Chairperson

HITES BEFR

Executive Director,
Chief Financial Controller

HTES KRR

Appointed as executive Director and General
Manager on 12 October 2020, and elected as
Acting Chairman on 30 September 2021.

R -_TE+R T+ _HRZEARITES -
BEE O RCE—FAA=TRHERERER
REBBEFER -

10 November 2021

—E-—%+—A+H

12 October 2020

—E-ZEF+ A+ H

Appointed as a non-executive Director on 12
October 2020; elected as Chairperson on 11
June 2021; re-designated from non-executive
Director to executive Director on 24 June 2021.

m:%—%¢+ﬂ+—aﬁéﬁaxﬂ“
£ —FRAT—HEEEELE
ES :_;_—iz\ﬂ_—i-@El B IEFNAT
EEFERITES -

11 June 2021

—E-_—%FXA+—H
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EFEWE
Name
% E

Title in the Company
R D B WA

Date of Appointment
for the Current Term

ROEHNEERH

Non-executive Directors
FHTES

Mr. Dai Richeng

B AL

Mr. Chen Yong

RELLE

Mr. Liu Hui

S k4

Mr. Li Jialong (Resigned as non-executive
Director and Chairman on 11 June 2021)

ERELEE(R=-_ZE-_—FA+—H
BHEENTES EFERK)

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

BMT L

Mr. Zhong Wei

EREE

Mr. Zhou Beihai

JE b 5 &

Non-executive Director
FEHMITESF
Non-executive Director
FEHITEF
Non-executive Director
FHITES

Non-executive Director, Chairman

FATES EFEK

Independent
Non-executive Director

BYFRITES

Independent

Non-executive Director
BYERITES

Independent
Non-executive Director

B FNTES

44 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A &l Annual Report 2021 4 [& i &

12 October 2020

i A =
12 October 2020
—E_FTF+H+=H
11 June 2021
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16 July 2020

12 October 2020
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12 October 2020

—E-TF+A+TZ=A
12 October 2020
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Supervisors and Senior Management

Name

e

Title in the Company
R T R

Directors’ Report

EERSREEAER

Date of Appointment
for the Current Term

BITEMNEEAHY

-

-

EEHE

Supervisors
E=
Mr. Long Limin

BEMREL

Mr. Zhu Zhen

RIR ST &

Mr. Tan Hairui

T s

Ms. Zhang Ling
b= G

Ms. Tang Shuang

JE 3 0 £

Mr. Huang Yi

BEHREL

Senior management

EREEABR
Mr. Yang Fang
%75 &
Mr. Liu Xujun
FMBE K4

Mr. Wang Yong (Resigned as chief
financial controller on 31 March 2021)

—&=A=+—A

EFERE(R=Z=
BEEBI 1548 85)

Mr. Ma Xiangyi

SrERE

Mr. Zhao Peng

it 15 5 &

Mr. Li Bo

FEELE

Chairman of the Supervisory
Committee, shareholder
representative Supervisor

EEeXF BRERRES
Shareholder representative
Supervisor

BRERRKRES
Independent Supervisor
BEE

Independent Supervisor

BUEEE

Employee representative Supervisor

BRIRRES

Employee representative Supervisor

BIHRKRES

Deputy general manager
ElEGESE
Deputy general manager
EJ QL@ 4% 38

Senior management

BRERAR

Deputy general manager
Bl 4 a8

Deputy general manager
ElECE S

Company Secretary

NGRS

12 October 2020

e ;e =
12 October 2020

=FE=EEE o B e =B
12 October 2020
i A =
12 October 2020
—E_FEH+H+=H
12 October 2020
—E-_THE+H+H
12 October 2020
—E_TFE+H+=H

12 October 2020
—TTFE+A+ZH
12 October 2020
—E-THE+A+H
12 October 2020

—E_FE+H+_H

12 October 2020
=== nHn=H
12 October 2020
—E_FTE L H+_H
15 August 2013
—T—=F#/1\A+EHAH
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During the period from the listing date of the Company to the Reporting Period,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent from the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 29 to 40 of this annual report. There are no
relationships among the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company, including financial, business, family or other material relationships as
defined in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors and
Supervisors containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and
provision on arbitration. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with

the Articles of Association and applicable rules.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract with
the Company during the Reporting Period which is not terminable within one year
nor may be terminated by the Company without payment of compensation (other

than statutory compensation).

DETERMINATION OF AND BASIS FOR
DETERMINATION OF THE REMUNERATION OF
THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company is subject to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and
determined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending remuneration for
Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company to the Board with
reference to, among other factors, salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Company.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company are
set out in note 39 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, there were no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance subsisting in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was directly or indirectly a party and any
Director or Supervisor had a material interest.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the prospectus, at no time during the
Reporting Period had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any
contract of significance with any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries,
nor had any contract of significance been entered into for the services provided by
any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

From the listing date until the date of this report, to the best knowledge of the
Board, none of the Directors and Supervisors and their respective associates has
any business or interest that competes or may compete with the business of the
Group or have or may have any conflict of interest with the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Except for the initial public offering, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement during the Reporting Period.

Directors’ Report

EERRE

EEREE HHN
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2021, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interest in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise, to be entered in the register maintained thereunder, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, or held interest in the Company as follows:

THBAE
2

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8H  AREEF -
EERFERITHABRAR A E A a5
B(E&REF REEBGIIEXVED) &K H
HERDRESRY  BEREBEEFRHPEK
Bl 235216 sk LA Bt 5 NABH A K R AR IR 3%
BXMTEENELEMOER  IREBZE
FREMNSEAR A MBI EZ  HEH
EMARREZET -

Percentage
Percentage of of the total
the respective number of
Name of Director, type of Shares Shares in
- o . o
Supervisor and chief in issue (%) issue (%)
executive Type of Number of e #1T HE 8T
EE -EBKES Capacity Shares Shares held R R 5 FEY
THRABHE 5% % 12 5 Bl BERAHE B Lt 45l (%) B Lt 5 (%)
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 10,820,000 (L) 1.30 0.91
FrESEAE EmEA A A& R
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner H Shares 770,000 (L) 0.21 0.06
FEEE EmBEAA HAR
Mr. Zhou Zhimi Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 325,000 (L) 0.04 0.03
BE®REE EmfEA A A& Bk
Mr. Huang Yi Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1560,000 (L) 0.19 0.13
EHEA EnlEEA A& R
Note: Mt -
(L) refers to long position (L) REIFE

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31
December 2021, none of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief executives of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

To the Company's best knowledge, as of 31 December 2021, the following
persons (other than Directors or Supervisors whose interests are disclosed in the
section headed “Interests and Short Positions of Directors, Supervisors and Chief
Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
which were required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the
respective type of share capital in issue of the Company which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Directors’ Report
EERRS

FERRRKRMDPHERS KK
/=)

BARRRIRA R-ZB-—F+-A=+—
B TIAL(ARANEERESHRI - &K
E7REREXTES EFER&ESTBRAE
Rty MR RERZEm ROAR ] —
BEI)RARE KD - Bk RESFTESR
BEC(GES MG HIDEXVEFE2RE3IDF
ARARARERDIAR R RIBIEES LA
EGOIE336GAFEERRRE LML
BERIAR  BEARGARBEMNE BETR
R5%HIA LW EZHORA ¢

Percentage Percentage
of the  of the total
respective number of
type of Shares Shares in
in issue (%) issue (%)
Type of Number of HE BT HE®T
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares Shares HR KRG FEY
RRERB BR S5 % 4 38 5l igg - g=| HY £ 6 (%) HY £ 6 (%)
YEPI' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
EEEACREREER BERfBEA HE-—FZALH N & %
CESEE: ¥
Mr. Huang Yunjian' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
HEEREE EmEEA HE-—ZALTH W&
CESE=R: $-4
Mr. Liu Xujun' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
2098 % 5 4 EREAA BB —BALH P B
CESTSR: £
Mr. Wang Yong' Beneficial owner, interests held Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
jointly with another person Shares
FEH EnfEA HE-—BALH nE R
CESTER: £+3
YHTH! Interests in controlled Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
corporation, interests held Shares
jointly with another person
EREKEE NEEEENER  EBE—F W& IR
AT HERAER
Beijing OriginWater Beneficial owner Domestic 286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
Shares
b R EKIR EmlEAA N & %
China National Petroleum Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Corporation? corporation Shares
hEARKARES ROF K B M 2 7 B
AR A A?
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Percentage
Percentage of  of the total
the respective number of
type of Shares Shares in
in issue (%) issue (%)
Type of Number of HE BT HE BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares Shares NER B 1D
REREH RS G B’ 13 %8 5l g 4= B9 £ B (%) Y £ B (%)
CNPC Capital Company Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Limited? corporation Shares
HEl A m & BB ARG RREEE O ER A& IR
HRAAF?
CNPC Assets Management Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Co., Ltd.2 corporation Shares
FMEEBEIERR AR M EEN#ER W& R
Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.? Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
corporation Shares
EmiEFAREERF? NEELEE N E S W& R
Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Interests in controlled Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Investment Management corporation Shares
Partnership (Limited
Partnership)?
ERERETREREER AR BN R W& Mk
a i
Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity ~ Beneficial owner Domestic 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Investment Center (Limited Shares
Partnership)?
EAEAERBRERE SR L BEmERA N & iR
(BRAER)?
Caiyun International Beneficial owner H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
Investment Limited'
YERABRRARRA A Ea A A HI
YHTH' Interests in controlled H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
corporation
= B RE A E e HER
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refers to long position

YEPI is wholly owned by YHTH and is the beneficial owner of 361,487,162 Domestic Shares.
Caiyun International Investment Limited is wholly owned by YHTH and is the beneficial owner
of 8,449,000 H Shares. YHTH is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by
YEPI and H Shares held by Caiyun International Investment Limited pursuant to the SFO which
representing approximately 31.01% of total issued Shares. By virtue of the Acting in Concert
Agreement, Each of YEPI and YHTH is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares
held by Mr. Huang Yunjian, Mr. Liu Xujin, Mr. Wang Yong and itself in aggregate pursuant
to the SFO.

Mr. Huang Yunjian is the beneficial owner of 1,950,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the
acting in concert agreement (the “Acting in Concert Agreement”) dated 24 July 2014
entered into between YEPI, Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong, each of
Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong agreed to act in concert with YEPI
in exercising their voting rights at the Shareholders’ meeting of the Company. Mr. Huang is
deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by YEPI, Mr. Liu Xujin, Mr. Wang
Yong and himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Liu Xujun is the beneficial owner of 195,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting in
Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by YEPI,
Mr. Huang Yunjian, Mr. Wang Yong and himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Mr. Wang Yong is the beneficial owner of 585,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting
in Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by YEPI,
Mr. Huang Yunjian, Mr. Liu Xujun and himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan”) is a general partner of Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity
Investment Center (Limited Partnership) (“Xinzhen Tianying”), holds 3.85% equity interests
in Xinzhen Tianying and is the beneficial owner of 124,754,169 Domestic Shares; Ningbo
Kunlun Xinyuan is owned as to 99% by Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.; Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. is
owned as to 82.18% by CNPC Assets Management Co., Ltd., which in turn is wholly owned
by CNPC Capital Limited; CNPC Capital Limited is wholly owned by CNPC Capital Company
Limited, which in turn is owned as to 77.35% by China National Petroleum Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31

December 2021,

no person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief

executives) had informed the Company that he had interests or short positions in

the Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of the Company which were

required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO, or held any interests or short positions in 5% or

more of the respective types of capital in issue of the Company.

(2)

B EXHEEEIN
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business
were entered into or existed during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

From the listing date of the Company to 31 December 2021, the Group has
entered into a number of non-exempt continuing connected transactions., the
Group conducted a number of non-exempt continuing connected transactions. The
Company has been approved by the Stock Exchange not to be exempted from the
annual cap for continuing connected transactions after the initial public offering
and is exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement.
The table below shows the annual caps and actual transaction value of such
continuing connected transactions during the period from the listing date of the

Company to 31 December 2021:

BEEEHN
BREBRIAKIN EEFRLIEREH
RAMEAHH KA A LR SR RITHET

MHRFEEMEL -

HEBEBRERS

BAARETHHARE T - —F+_H
=t—HIE  AEEBETZETERREE
WMERXH - ARBEEB P EERARH
BERTERCBHEMERINFELR -
I 7T BT BCRALER R E o TR
IZEREMEISNARAT LM AMLEE
TR —F+-A=+-RILHBANFE
tREERRSEE

Actual
Annual cap Transaction
Name, date and term of Nature and description of for 2021 amount in 2021
the agreement Connected Persons the transaction Pricing Basis —BC--%E —E--F
mEERE - BHREAR BEAL REMERER EEER LR BERRZEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR
Master Procurement Beijing OriginWater Yunnan Water purchases Onanarm’s 30,000 1,397
Agreement for Membrane Technology membrane ancillary length
Ancillary Materials Co., Ltd. (“Beijing materials from Beijing basis and
OriginWater") and OriginWater on normal
its subsidiaries commercial
terms
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It was entered into on 16
April 2021 to set the
annual cap of transaction
for 3 years from 2021 to
2023.
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Several related-party transactions as disclosed in note 37 to the Financial
Statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS fall under the definition of
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that such transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  carried out on normal commercial terms or better;

(3)  carried out according to the relevant transaction agreements, the terms of
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a

whole.

Auditor’'s Letter

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance Engagements other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the
conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the above continuing

connected transactions.
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Directors’ Report
EERRS

COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Each of the Acting in Concert Parties signed a non-competition undertaking on
6 May 2015, in favor of the Company (the “Non-competition Undertaking”).
Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertaking, each of the Acting in Concert
Parties has irrevocably undertaken that it will not, and will procure that its
associates (except the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as
principal or agent, either on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other
things, carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any
services to or otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with
the business of the Company from time to time (the “Restricted Business”).
Each of the Acting in Concert Parties has also undertaken to the Company that, if
there is any new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within a
reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to the Company
on a pre-emptive basis.

The Acting in Concert Parties have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Acting in Concert Parties regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking and had determined that the Acting in Concert Parties have fully
complied with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Undertaking during
the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENTS

The Undertaking Shareholders signed non-competition agreements (the “Non-
Competition Agreements”) on 6 May 2015, in favour of the Company. Pursuant
to the Non-competition Agreements, each of the Undertaking Shareholders has
irrevocably undertaken that it will not and will procure that its associates (except
the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either
on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on,
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with the business
of the Company from time to time. Each of the Undertaking Shareholders has
also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any new business opportunity in
the Restricted Business, it shall within a reasonable period of time refer such new
business opportunities to the Company on a pre-emptive basis.
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The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Agreements for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Undertaking Shareholders regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Agreements and confirmed that all Undertaking Shareholders have fully complied
with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Agreements during the
Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of procurement from the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 46.52% of the
total amount of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2021, and the
procurement from the largest supplier accounted for 29.25% of the total amount
of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of sales to the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for approximately 23.12% of the total amount
of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021, and the total amount of sales
to the largest customer accounted for approximately 7.19% of the total amount
of revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company, and their respective close
associates, or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) do not hold any interest in
the top five customers and top five suppliers of the Group.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the note 2.26 to the Financial Statements for detailed information

on the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and analysis of the Group's
performance for the year and material factors relating to its results and financial
conditions are respectively set out in the chapter headed “Chairman’s Statement/
General Manager’s Report” from pages 9 to 11 and the chapter headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 12 to 28 in this annual report.

Such discussions constitute an integral part of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the leading integrated urban environmental treatment services providers
in the PRC, the Company is committed to operating its various business segments
in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Board believes that compliance
with the relevant environmental protection rules and regulations is crucial to
the long term development and success of the Group’s businesses. In order to
maintain a high standard of staff awareness of the relevant rules and regulations,
the Company offers periodical trainings to the key technical personnel at the
various water treatment plants and solid waste treatment plants. As a result
of the Company’'s commitment to environmental protection and through the
implementation of advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe and

environmentally-friendly production during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the cornerstone
of a business and attaches considerable importance to it. To the best knowledge
of the Board, during the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
Furthermore, as the H Shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of
Stock Exchange, the Company shall be bound by the Listing Rules and the SFO.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business, future results of operations and prospects could be affected
by certain risks and uncertainties. Please refer to the chapter headed “Chairman’s
Statement/General Manager’s Report” from pages 9 to 11 in this annual report

for detail analysis of the relevant risks and uncertainties.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has undertaken and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as defined under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong)).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director and Supervisor or their respective spouses or children under the age of
18, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of Shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix XIV of the Listing
Rules. Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report from pages 60 to 79 in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under

the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On 25 March 2022, having made an enquiry, the Company has been listed as
a person subject to enforcement by Urumgi Intermediate People’s Court under
case No. (2022) Xin 01 Zhi 150 ((2022) ¥701%,150%%), pursuant to which the
assets of the Group with a total value of no more than RMB371,502,848 are
subject to enforcement (the “Enforcement”). To the knowledge of the Board,
the Enforcement was attributable to a dispute between the plaintiff, Greatwall
Guoxing Finance Leasing Company Limited* (RWMBIHE ¢ g EHRE A7) and
(BN RKBERA

A]), being a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as well as the Company

the defendants, Langfang Hyflux NewSpring Co., Ltd.*

in relation to the financial leasing contract. For details, please refer to the inside

information announcement issued by the Company on 25 March 2022.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set out in the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 12 to 28 in
this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which, before declaration or proposed distribution of dividends, the Board shall
consider the following factors:

—  the actual and expected financial performance of the Company;

—  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and the
subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and

future expansion plans of the Group;
—  the liquidity of the Group;

—  the overall economic conditions, the business cycle of the Group’s business
and the inherent or external factors that may affect the business, financial

performance and positioning of the Company; and
—  Other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The distribution of dividends is also subject to any applicable laws and the Articles
of Association.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the annual results and the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor of the Company for the
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS for the year ended
31 December 2021. The Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 prepared in accordance with HKFRS have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company has retained the services of
PricewaterhouseCoopers since 2013.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of results of operation and the position of assets and liabilities of the
Group for the recent five financial years is set out on page 239 in this annual
report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited*

Yu Long
Acting Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
29 April 2022
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Corporate Governance Report

PHEERMRSE

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report of the Company
from the listing date of the Company to 31 December 2021.

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhance
Shareholder value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The Company’s corporate
governance principles emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective
internal control and accountability to the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view of safeguarding the interest of the Shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of the Shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors. The Group has made
specific enquiries with all of its Directors and Supervisors, and all Directors and
Supervisors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition
The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Long (Acting chairman, General manager)
Mr. Zhou Zhimi (Chief financial controller)
Mr. Yang Fang (resigned on 11 June 2021)
Ms. Ling Hui (appointed on 11 June 2021,
and resigned on 10 November 2021)
Ms. Li Bo (appointed on 24 June 2021, and resigned on 30 September 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Dai Richeng

Mr. Chen Yong

Mr. Liu Hui (appointed on 11 June 2021)
Mr. Li Jialong (resigned on 11 June 2021)
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

Mr. Zhong Wei

Mr. Zhou Beihai

To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. In
particular, there is no such relationship between the Chairman and the general
manager. The roles of Chairman and the general manager are assumed by Ms.
Li Bo and Mr. Yu Long, respectively. On 30 September 2021, Ms. Li Bo resigned
from all positions of the Company, and the Board elected Mr. Yu Long to act as
the Acting Chairman in accordance with the Articles of Association. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors
containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with relevant laws
and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and provision on
arbitration. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors (including the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors) shall serve a
term of three years from the date of he/she takes up the appointment.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (at least one-third of the Board) with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence during the Reporting Period pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent during the Reporting Period in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board’s fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best judgement and to
act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board oversees
management’s efforts to promote the Company’s success while operating in an
effective and responsible manner. The Board also formulates the Company’s overall
business strategies and monitors management’s execution of such strategies.
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By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the business and
governance issues for which it needs to be responsible, and these matters reserved
for the Board have been separately defined, and are reviewed periodically, to
ensure that the Company maintains the proper level of corporate governance and
to ensure they are up to date. In this regard, the Board discharges, among others,
the following duties:

(1) to be responsible for convening general meetings, to propose at a general
meeting to pass the relevant matters and to report on its work to the
general meeting and to implement the resolutions of the general meetings;

(2)  to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment plans;

(3) to formulate the Company’s proposed annual preliminary and final financial
budgets and profit distribution plans and plans for recovery of losses;

(4)  to draw up plans for the material asset acquisition or disposal, repurchase
of shares of the Company or merger, division, dissolution and alteration of
corporate form of the Company;

(5) to decide on the proposals for salaries, incentives and punishments of the
Company's staff;

(6)  to decide on the establishment of special committees under the Board and
to appoint or remove its person-in-charge;

(7)  to propose at general meetings for the appointment, renewal or remove of
accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the Company; and

(8) to review and supervise the policies and practices of the Company in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board delegates the responsibility of day-to-day business and operations to
the Company’s senior management, which includes its chief administration officers,
the general manager and deputy general manager. The senior management of the
Company meets regularly or as frequent as necessary to formulate policies and
make recommendations to the Board. The senior management of the Company
administers, enforces, interprets and supervises compliance with the internal
rules and operational procedures of the Company as well as its subsidiaries and
conducts regular reviews, recommends and advises on appropriate amendments to
such rules and procedures. The senior management of the Company reports to the
Board on a regular basis and communicates with the Board whenever required.
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Corporate Governance Functions of the Board
The Board is responsible for formulating the corporate governance policies and
performing the corporate governance duties, which include, among others:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on

corporate governance and make recommendations;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management of the Company;

(3) to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to review and supervise the compliance of the Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code; and

(5)  to review the compliance of the Company with relevant code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and make its disclosure in the
corporate governance report prepared under the Listing Rules.

Operation of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least four times a year. Meetings
shall be convened by the Chairman and notice of and documents for regular
meetings and extraordinary meetings of the Board shall be sent to all Directors
and Supervisors 10 days and 5 days before the meeting is held. In case of
urgency, the extraordinary Board meeting may be held upon approval by the
chairman, not subject to the requirement of meeting notice as set out in the
Articles of Association, provided that reasonable notice shall be given to Directors,
Supervisors and the general manager of the Company. The Chairman, any
Shareholder(s) representing more than one-tenth voting rights, more than one-
third of the Directors, the Supervisory Committee or more than two independent
non-executive Directors or the general manager of the Company may propose the
holding of an extraordinary meeting of the Board. The chairman shall convene and
preside over the extraordinary meeting of the Board within 14 days upon receipt
of the proposal. During the Reporting Period, the Board held 63 Board meetings,
1 annual general meeting and 4 extraordinary general meetings.
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Nomination, Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Company has formulated formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The nominations of new directors are
considered first by the nomination committee and the remuneration committee,
then they will make recommendations to the Board for consideration. All
nominees of new directors must be approved by the Shareholders at the general
meeting of the Company. Dismissal of members of the Board must also obtain
approval of the Shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 63 Board meetings. All Directors
duly performed their duties and attended the meetings in person or by electronic
communication means. They made informed decisions to safeguard the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The attendance of Directors is as

follows:

EENRBERER
ARATEREENEFMAEFGHITER
RABAENER -HEFNRELARE
FEENFMEEEEE BRAEFERN
WHEEE - FANRENESACBRRARE
RAREAG LA - BLEFERENA
BRERFATRTAE L -

EEHFESERRRAERER
RBEHN EFEBTTINEH - FA
EEHRERTEEERARBBETRM
FRAHEGH - REEHMERERERA
ARBEMERFG - EFOHFERNT :

Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings

EESHERE
Name of Director EEHE BITRE
Mr. Yu Long FELE 63/63
Mr. Zhou Zhimi AEZERE 5/5
(appointed on 10 November 2021) (R=ZT=_—F+—ATHEZMT)
Mr. Dai Richeng AKX E 63/63
Mr. Chen Yong PR B8 5 A4 62/63
Mr. Liu Hui B0E 5L £ 34/34
(appointed on 11 June 2021) (R=—TB-_—F At+—BEEFE)
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BT E 63/63
Mr. Zhong Wei EEESE 63/63
Mr. Zhou Beihai IEBIRE e 63/63
Mr. Li Jialong FRESLE 28/29
(resigned on 11 June 2021) (RZZE_—F~A+—H&EMT
Ms. Li Bo FRZL 51/51
(resigned on 30 September 2021) (RZZE_—FhLA=TH#HMT
Mr. Yang Fang 57 EE 29/29
(resigned on 11 June 2021) (RZE_—FXA+—HEMTE)
Ms. Ling Hui EEr L 29/29
(appointed on 11 June 2021, (RZZFBZ—F AT —HEZFE -

and resigned on 10 November 2021)

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board considered and approved important
proposals, mainly including:

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2020 annual report of the
Company

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2020 profit distribution plan of
the Company

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2020 financial statements and the
2021 financial budget report of the Company

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the re-appointment of

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP as the PRC auditor and
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the international auditor of the Company

—  Proposal in respect of the approving the change of members of the third

session of the Board

— The resolution on the members and chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2021 interim results report of the
Company

—  The resolution on planning equity financing and spin off listing of solid

waste sector

—  The resolution on election of chairman of the third session of the Board

—  The resolution on changing the authorized representative of the Company

—  The resolution on appointment of the chief financial controller
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, general meetings comprise annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings. Annual general meetings are held
once every year and within six months after the conclusion of the previous
financial year. During the Reporting Period, a total of 5 general meetings were
held, including 1 annual general meeting and 4 extraordinary general meetings.

The attendance of Directors is as follows:

BRBE(AAER) BE

BN RBRREFK

EMERRRERAE RRAFASEFAH
—RCAEERE—EMBEFEEERERNNE
ARBIT -RBEHA - HAHEHR TERE

RAg HFBIRRRIRAFRE

CARB

BRRRERAG - BEEHHEENT :

Attendance/
Number of annual
general meeting

Attendance/
Number of
extraordinary
general meeting

BRREFAE RRRRAS
HERY, HERE
Name of Director EEHE EEYE EEYE
Mr. Yu Long FTHEE 1/1 2/4
Mr. Zhou Zhimi BEBEE N/A 7 8 FB 171
(appointed on 10 November 2021) (W—EB-—F+—A+BHEZT)
Mr. Dai Richeng #HHKEE 11 4/4
Mr. Chen Yong BREBSTAE 11 4/4
Mr. Liu Hui 20k & il 1/2
(appointed on 11 June 2021) (RZB=Z—F A+—BEZMA)
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BT E 171 4/4
Mr. Zhong Wei ERELTE 171 4/4
Mr. Zhou Beihai EhiniEiAa i 4/4
Mr. Li Jialong TRELE 1/1 0/2
(resigned on 11 June 2021) (R=ZBE=_—FA+—HEMDT)
Ms. Li Bo =g il 3/3
(resigned on 30 September 2021) (RZZ=Z—FNAR=1THEM)
Mr. Yang Fang BAEE 1/1 12
(resigned on 11 June 2021) (RZE=_—F A +—HEE)
Ms. Ling Hui EER L 11 2/2

(appointed on 11 June 2021,
and resigned on 10 November 2021)
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors and
Supervisors

Directors shall from time to time understand their responsibilities as Directors of
the Company, and the mode of operation, business activities and development of

the Company.

All newly appointed Directors will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that
newly appointed Directors have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and are fully aware of their responsibilities and

obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company constantly arranges
internal seminars and provides reading materials on relevant topics to Directors,

and all Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the general manager of the Company
are separate and held by different persons and have been clearly defined in the
Articles of Association. Ms. Li Bo, the chairman of the third session of the Board,
resigned from all positions of the Company on 30 September 2021. Before the
election of the new chairman, the Company elected Mr. Yu Long to act as the
Acting Chairman in accordance with the Articles of Association. Mr. Yu Long
serves as general manager of the Company. The Chairman is elected by a majority
vote of all Directors, and the general manager of the Company is nominated and

appointed by the Board.

The Chairman places great emphasis on the communication with the independent
non-executive Directors. The Chairman holds meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors at least once every year, in respect of development strategy,
corporate governance, operational management, at which no executive Director is

present.

The Chairman encourages open and active discussions. Directors may speak freely
at the Board meetings and actively participate in the discussions of significant
decision making in the Board meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees. The

Company had established four Board committees,

being the Nomination

Committee, the Remuneration Committee, Compliance Committee and Audit

Committee.

(1

68

Nomination Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:
reviewing and monitoring the structure, size, composition and diversity
of members of the Board in light of the Company’s strategy; identifying
suitably qualified individuals and making recommendations to the Board
to be new Board members; reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on individuals nominated to be Directors by the Shareholders;
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and reviewing and monitoring the implementation of diversity policy of
Board members of the Company. Terms of reference of the Nomination

Committee have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the original Nomination Committee consists
of one non-executive Director, Mr. Li Jialong (as chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Beihai and Mr. Zhong
Wei. According to the announcement on, among other things, the re-
designation of Director published by the Company on 24 June 2021, the
changed Nomination Committee consisted of one executive Director, Ms. Li
Bo (as chairman), and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhou
Beihai and Mr. Zhong Wei, with effect from 24 June 2021.

the announcement on, among other things, the appointment of Director

According to

and the change of the composition of the Board committee published by
the Company on 30 September 2021, the changed Nomination Committee
consisted of one executive Director, Mr. Yu Long (as the acting chairman),
and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Beihai and Mr.
Zhong Wei, with effect from 10 November 2021.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee had held 2
meetings, to discuss the nomination and appointment matters of Directors
of the third session of the Board, and review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors. At such meetings, Ms. Ling Hui was nominated as a
candidate for an executive Director of the third session of the Board. Mr.
Liu Hui was nominated as a candidate for a non-executive Director of the
third session of the Board. Mr. Yu Long was nominated to act as chairman
of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee, and Mr.
Zhou Zhimi was nominated as a candidate for an executive Director of the
third session of the Board.

The attendance record of the committee members are as follows:

TEERRSE

RBERN  BEEBEGHBTT2R
F UIRE-EESCESIRE
ZAEE  VWRTEZTEEE - AHR
HERARBILIFATEST 2B IH - &
FREBEBUTAEAFE - EEEEY
TEEREAN REIBLERFE=ZE
EEONTESREA BETEL
ERITEEERRAZESIHFRS -
RERASEEEAE - BEFENITE
BREA o

ZEGZREHERENAT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HERE,

Name of Director EEpHE BRRE
Mr. Yu Long FEEE 2/2
Mr. Zhou Beihai At gk E 2/2
Mr. Zhong Wei EEEE 2/2

The Company had adopted a board diversity policy with a view to
achieving the diversity of the Board. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard to the benefits of diversity of the Board

members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be made upon the possible contribution that the

selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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EFESRREENED EFTRNHE
REZSGERARAEBABEER
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KEZTiEWBEMEHERFS LT -
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Remuneration Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of remuneration for all Directors and senior management members
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; review and approval of the remuneration
proposals from the management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management members; and to advise Shareholders of the Company with
respect to the service contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the third session of the Remuneration
Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors Mr. Zhong
Wei (as chairman) and Mr. Zhou Beihai and one executive Director, Mr. Yu

Long.

Compliance Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Compliance Committee are to conduct
independent investigation and make decisions on compliance matters
with respect to our business operations by authorization from the Board.
The Company has established the Compliance Committee to ensure the
operation of any projects acquired and operated by us are in compliance
with the Group’s internal control standards and the relevant PRC laws and
regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the original Compliance Committee was
consisted of two executive Directors, Mr. Yu Long and Mr. Yang Fang,
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong, Mr. Zhong
Wei (as chairman) and Mr. Zhou Beihai and one employee representative
Supervisor, Mr. Huang Yi. According to the announcement on, among other
things, the appointment of Director and the change of the composition of
the
changed Compliance Committee of the Board consisted of one executive

the Board Committee published by the Company on 11 June 2021,

Director, Mr. Yu Long, three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Liu
Shuen Kong, Mr. Zhong Wei (as chairman) and Mr. Zhou Beihai and one
employee representative Supervisor, Mr. Huang Yi, with effect from 11 June
2021.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A &l Annual Report 2021 4 [& i &

(2)

(3)

yMzEg
FMEZEENIERE  HPeE
EERAAEBABNZBEMBERR
s Rtk Iﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁm&rﬂ
REMREmEESSREER BT
TH:EMEE'] T FEE ﬁ%%ﬁﬁui
ERMITEE R REIEREA BB HMEF
B RIRE MR EETEHRSE
HENEERBERMALQFHRER
Lz FHEFMZEenBESRER
IR AR R B -

RBEHR F-REZSFHEES
HMEABIFNTESTERELEUER
TRE) ALBREUR-—ZRTES
TR AEMMN -

EREEE
A%ﬁi/\EEEH&TE§$AﬁJ’TT~%E’]
BLHTEYABRRERETEITR
Ko ARAKUEREBGURRAE
U BIEE MBS A RNIBEE REHE
KR BREER -

R|EHR REREZEESHEMEH
TERTEEERGA AL =28
FFRMTEFEMITLE  ERELEE
REB)RELEEE UER-—FBBT
RREFEGELLAK - REARTR
TEC-FRAT-BTHEMNARE
TREREES LA&“EE%%%%
BZHEKNRE BEENESS
ZEEH—BUITESTREEE - :%
BYFRTEEEMIELE  #EEEL
(ERERE) LB EEE  AR—FE
ITRREEFEHALERN BT ——
FRAT—BRER-



(4)

Corporate Governance Report

Audit Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems of the Company, including making recommendations on
appointing or changing the external auditor and its terms of engagement;
reviewing and monitoring external auditor’s independence and audit
process objectively; monitor the truthfulness, accuracy and integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts and half-
year report; oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system; and other matters that the Board
has authorized it to deal with. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee
have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the third session of the Audit Committee was
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong
(as chairman), Mr Zhou Beihai and Mr. Zhong Wei.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had held 3 meetings, to
review the annual report 2020 of the Company, interim report 2021 of the
Company, to fix the resolution of remuneration of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian LLP and PricewaterhouseCoopers, to propose the payment of
dividends, and to discuss and make recommendations on matters such as
internal control and internal audit procedures. During the Reporting Period,
the attendance of the committee members are as follows:

(4)
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HERE

Name of Director EEME BRERH
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BrIEE 3/3
Mr. Zhou Beihai A4t s %k & 3/3
Mr. Zhong Wei EREE 3/3
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating
policies on remuneration of senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 are

set out in Note 39 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the remuneration
paid to the senior management of the Company (excluding the Directors) by
bands for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

EEREREE AN M

KRABERBTRERSREIE A E K H BN
BEZVILALAZERENEF BE-FT
T+ A=+ -RIEFEREFHFIN
HEHENA G BRI -

BELEEBTRAEBISE  TRHEIEE
TR FFT A=t -HULEFEREME
AXNTFARASREBEAB(TREFESR)
B 3 B

Number of individuals

Remuneration bands (RMB) FHER(ARYE) A
Nil to 500,000 = £500,0007T 1
500,001 to 800,000 500,001 %800,0007T 5

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Directors
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue its operation as a going

concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s Financial Statements, which were put to the Board
for approval.

72 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED EFI /KR & IR 15 B R A& Annual Report 2021 F & 3 &

BERF
EERANTREARTBE_Z_—F+=
A=+-RLFENGHIBHRRZEME -
EEZRRAEEEERRERNER R %K
BEQEER MAY MBI ESIBAR
AR RBECEEBRRERRBANERT
AEE -

E=ZgARAENFERTHRE REHEE
RERRELETRAREMERREERE
MAZEXRZHMEEZRELFE B R
IR B -

ARrEEBCREFEREVENBRER
BlE BEFSUMRRTEFSHENAR
REAGRIBRREDAISHE -



Corporate Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that effective environmental, social and corporate governance
(ESG) management policies are crucial to the sustainability of the Group’s business.
As such, the Group proactively enhances its understanding of the latest laws
and regulations and the best practices both within and outside the PRC, which
are relevant to the Group's business, as well as its management approach and
management system. As a responsible corporation, the Group is also committed
and dedicated to maintaining the highest environmental and social standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
noncompliance with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business,
including but not limited to health and safety, labour standards, employment and
the environment, which would have a significant impact on the Group, such as
the Labor Contract Law of the PRC ( {(FFEARKMBELEERE) ), the Law
of the PRC on Work Safety ( (FZEARZMBEIZ 2 £EE) ), the Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC ( (HFEARLRBIRERMEE) ), the Law of the
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid
Wastes ( (#EARFEMEEBEREY))FRRENAE) ), the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ( {FFZE A R B A 5,55 240
JA7A) ), the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ( {#
= N RAMBKIFEPEE%) ), the Standard for Pollution Control on the Landfill
Site of Municipal Solid Waste ( (A& HKIEIR IS5 2 HIF%) ) (GB16889-2008),
the Standard for Pollution Control on the I\/Iuniopal Solid Waste Incineration ( {4
SEBLIR S A HIIZ ) ) (GB18485-2014), the Technical Requirements on
Medical Waste Incinerator ( { BEEEMIGEERITEK) ) (GB19218-2003), the
Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste Incineration ( (/BB IESS
FAEHIEAE) ) (GB18484-2014) and the applicable pollutant emission standards
formulated by local governments. The Group believes that a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. To this end, the Group has
encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate
in environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a 33 whole.
The Group also maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and services

to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

An ESG report has been prepared with reference to ESG Guide set out in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The report presents our contributions to
sustainable development during the Reporting Period, and covers the major
environmental and social policies, environmental indicators of our Group, measures
adopted for reducing emissions by the Group and the relevant achievements of

the Group. The ESG Report is set out on pages 240 to 292 in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management and
internal control system to safeguard the Shareholder’s investments and the
Company’s assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis with the support of the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal audit system and the risk management and internal control system of the
Company and its subsidiaries, including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff in the aforementioned systems and of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and the adequacy of their training

programmes and budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through a review, considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries was
effective and adequate.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting responsibilities
for the Financial Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” from
page 80 to 83 of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers

2| B B 3 B kg D R 4
EEGREARADNARERRABEE
5 DRERERARAAAGHEE ¥
EBREEENIET  SERIEMESR
SECR

E=ZeEBERTRERNARR RENE

RAMAABFFGLARER R ALEE
REOMeE  BRARAELLARGERES
u+&ﬁ7fa"%$#ﬁﬂﬁ4“ THNER BIEER

KHBEARH URBIMEXHNEIRE
&ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%m}fi °

RBEHA EFSRERIBBEARAR
HMBLARAMNEBREERADEERSRAR
N s e

B BUEM K 2 BB BN &
ARARBIDEBERAE HH G REARRE
SEETSLELEN R E P e
bt EILR

TREINABREHAIN BN TARAZ

as the auditor of the Company is set out below: R 2R SRk B R F B -

Amount

|

RMB’000

AR®T T

Fee for audit services Bt RB W E 7,250

Fee for non-audit services IEER AR W B 200

Total fees BRBE 7,450
The Group also appointed other external auditors in respect of audit services and AREBRBEHAR RIS 7 H b 7% S60 12 H

non-audit services during the Reporting Period.
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GOING CONCERN AND MITIGATION MEASURES

The below sections set out an extract of the report by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
the auditor of the Company, regarding the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021:

Multiple Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern

The Group reported a net loss of RMB1,055,254,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 and the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB19,359,615,000 as at 31 December 2021. As at the same date, the Group's
total borrowings amounted to RMB28,655,546,000, of which current borrowings
amounted to RMB20,685,107,000, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMB428,427,000 only. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB11,963,708,000, which were mainly related to
various concession projects and construction projects of the Group.

In addition, as at 31 December 2021, the Group was in default in respect of
borrowings totaling RMB5,616,161,000 due to either late or overdue payment of
loan principals and interests of RMB1,157,710,000, or breach of certain terms and
conditions of borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2021. These events
of default also resulted in cross-default of certain borrowings other than those
mentioned above of RMB10,781,143,000 as at 31 December 2021. Subsequent
to the balance sheet date, the Group further failed to repay certain scheduled
instalments and interest of its borrowings which caused default of additional
borrowings other than those mentioned above amounted to RMB1,454,385,000.
In addition, lenders of certain of the abovementioned overdue borrowings had
taken property preservation measures and obtained enforcement order for

settlement from the court through legal proceedings.

These conditions, together with other matters described in Note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of multiple uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of measures
to mitigate the Group’s liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position,
and to remediate certain delayed repayments to financial institutions, which are
set out in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends on the outcome of these measures, which are subject to
multiple uncertainties, including (i) the successful negotiations with or obtaining
waivers from the Group’s existing lenders in respect of the borrowings that
were either overdue or otherwise in default, so that the relevant lenders will
not exercise their contractual rights to demand immediate repayment of the
relevant defaulted borrowings; (ii) the successful in renewal of existing revolving
bank facilities and obtaining new bank facilities and drawing down from those
facilities, as and when needed; (iii) the successful and timely in divesting (including
receipt of proceeds) the Group’s concession projects and construction projects
and introduction of strategic investors to existing projects as planned; (iv) the
successful in managing the progress of its concession projects and construction
projects, deferring the payment schedule of the borrowings in these projects if
necessary, and obtaining project and other financings to meet the construction
cost obligations, as and when needed; (v) the successful in obtaining sufficient
financial support from Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.
("YHTH"), an intermediate holding company to meet with its financial obligation
as and when needed; and (vi) the successful and timely in reaching a settlement
for the lawsuits with the relevant lenders through mediation and implementation
of relevant settlement agreements. As a result of these multiple uncertainties, the
potential interaction of these uncertainties, and the possible cumulative effect
thereof, we were unable to form an opinion as to whether the going concern
basis of preparation is appropriate.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned plans and measures, it
might not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ISSUED BY THE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

As a result of the matters discussed in the section headed “GOING CONCERN
AND MITIGATION MEASURES"”, the Group’s financial conditions, together with the
other matters as described in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of multiple uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Company’s auditor
does not express an opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The Independent Auditor’'s Report is contained
in pages 80 to 83 of this annual report.
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As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements as contained in this
annual report, the Directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of
measures to remediate certain delayed repayments to financial institutions. With all
the measures mentioned in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors of the Company are expecting the Group’s overall financial position to
be further improved in the coming year.

The Board and Audit Committee agreed with the views of the management and
the auditor regarding the uncertainties relating to going concern. There is no
disagreement by the Board, the management nor the Audit Committee with the
position taken by the Company’s auditor regarding the disclaimer of opinion.

The Directors will continue to use their best efforts to protect and uphold the
Company’s best interest. The Group, the Directors and the management will
proactively to resolve matters relating to the disclaimer of opinion throughout the
financial year 2021.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with the Shareholders
is essential to enhance investor relations and investors understanding of the
Group's business performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes the
importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enable Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions. The
general meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face communication
between the Board and the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Shareholder(s) holding more than 10%
(individually or together with others) of Shares of the Company shall be entitled
to request for an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting according to the

following procedures:

(1) Upon signing one or several written requests with the same content and
format, and stating the subject of the meeting, the aforesaid Shareholders
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting. Concerning the above request, the Board shall, in accordance with
the law, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply with
a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon receipt of the proposal.
Shares held by the above Shareholders who made the requests shall be
calculated as at the date of submitting the written request.
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If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within five days upon
making the Board decision. Any changes made to the original request in the
notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.

(3)  If the Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, or does not reply within 10 days upon receipt of the proposal, the
Shareholders individually or together holding more than 10% of the Shares
are entitled to request the Supervisory Committee in writing to hold an

extraordinary general meeting or class meeting.

(4) I the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within
five days upon receiving the requests. Any changes made to the original
request in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.

(5) If the Supervisory Committee does not issue the notice of general meeting
within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed as the Supervisory
Committee not convening and not holding the general meeting. Then
the Shareholders who individually or together hold more than 10% of
the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days may convene and hold the
meeting themselves. Before publicly announcing the resolution(s) of the
general meeting, the convening Shareholders shall hold no less than 10% of
the Shares. When the convening Shareholder issues the notice for general
meeting and publicly announces the resolution(s) of the general meeting,
they shall submit the relevant proof materials to the securities regulatory
authority where the Company is located and relevant stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholders who individually or together
holding more than 3% of the Shares may submit ad-hoc proposals in writing to
the convener of the general meeting ten days before the holding of the general
meeting. The convener shall issue a supplementary notice of the general meeting
within two days upon receipt of the proposals and announce the contents of the
ad-hoc proposals.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the Shareholders to
communicate with the Company:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720 3907

Company website: www.yunnanwater.cn

E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by the law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo has been the company secretary of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in each financial year. Mr. Li Bo provided his training
records to the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by attending courses on company secretary functions, accounting
system and Listing Rules, etc. offered by qualified professional training institutions.
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To the Shareholders of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Yunnan Water
Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 84 to 238, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;
3 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties and their
possible cumulative effect on the consolidated financial statements as described in
the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us
to form an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern

As described in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
reported a net loss of RMB1,055,254,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB19,359,615,000 as at 31 December 2021. As at the same date, the Group’s
total borrowings amounted to RMB28,655,546,000, of which current borrowings
amounted to RMB20,685,107,000, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted
to RMB428,427,000 only. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB11,963,708,000, which were mainly related to
various concession projects and construction projects of the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Multiple Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern (Continued)

In addition, as at 31 December 2021, the Group was in default in respect of
borrowings totaling RMB5,616,161,000 due to either late or overdue payment of
loan principals and interests of RMB1,157,710,000, or breach of certain terms and
conditions of borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2021. These events
of default also resulted in cross-default of certain borrowings other than those
mentioned above of RMB10,781,143,000 as at 31 December 2021. Subsequent
to the balance sheet date, the Group further failed to repay certain scheduled
instalments and interest of its borrowings which caused default of additional
borrowings other than those mentioned above amounted to RMB1,454,385,000.
In addition, lenders of certain of the abovementioned overdue borrowings had
taken property preservation measures and obtained enforcement order for
settlement from the court through legal proceedings. These conditions, together
with other matters described in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate the existence of multiple uncertainties which may cast significant doubt
about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking a number of measures
to mitigate the Group’s liquidity pressure and to improve its financial position,
and to remediate certain delayed repayments to financial institutions, which are
set out in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends on the outcome of these measures, which are subject to multiple
uncertainties, including (i) the successful negotiations with or obtaining waivers
from the Group’s existing lenders in respect of the borrowings that were either
overdue or otherwise in default, so that the relevant lenders will not exercise
their contractual rights to demand immediate repayment of the relevant defaulted
borrowings; (ii) the successful in renewal of existing revolving bank facilities and
obtaining new bank facilities and drawing down from those facilities, as and when
needed; (iii) the successful and timely in divesting (including receipt of proceeds) the
Group's concession projects and construction projects and introduction of strategic
investors to existing projects as planned; (iv) the successful in managing the progress
of its concession projects and construction projects, deferring the payment schedule
of the borrowings in these projects if necessary, and obtaining project and other
financings to meet the construction cost obligations, as and when needed; (v) the
successful in obtaining sufficient financial support from Yunnan Health & Cultural
Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“YHTH"), an intermediate holding company to
meet with its financial obligation as and when needed; and (vi) the successful and
timely in reaching a settlement for the lawsuits with the relevant lenders through
mediation and implementation of relevant settlement agreements. As a result of
these multiple uncertainties, the potential interaction of these uncertainties, and
the possible cumulative effect thereof, we were unable to form an opinion as to
whether the going concern basis of preparation is appropriate.

BN BAM R S
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Multiple Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern (Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned plans and measures, it
might not be able to continue to operate as a going concern, and adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities. The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. However, because of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is
not possible for us to form an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
due to the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties and their possible
cumulative effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Pang Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

A PR B E MR & W3

=

Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-BA=+—-BLtEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-FTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR¥BT R ARETT
Revenue I = 5,280,743 8,396,630
Cost of sales 5 & AR (3,964,179) (6,300,498)
Gross profit ER 1,316,564 2,096,132
Other income E bl A 6 54,080 86,668
Other gains — net H b Wy 5 58 7 164,333 48,810
Selling expenses #H & F X 9 (48,374) (42,445)
Administrative expenses THAX 9 (650,674) (441,692)
Net impairment losses on financial and ERMEEHNEERE
contract assets EEEE 3.1(b), 8 (419,125) (70,156)
Operating profit BERF 416,804 1,677,317
Finance income B & YA 11 10,932 28,995
Finance expenses BERX 11 (1,537,186) (1,282,258)
Finance costs — net A& K AN F R 11 (1,526,254) (1,253,263)
Share of profit of investments accounted for AR IE AR
using the equity method FEAE R & & A 16 78,517 78,570
(Loss)/profit before income tax FrEsa(ER) &7 (1,030,933) 502,624
Income tax expenses B 12 (24,321) (161,313)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE) B (1,055,254) 341,311
Other comprehensive income Hii4R &6 Wz
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A BE B D X2 B H91H B
— Exchange differences on translation of foreign - BREGINETER
operations V& & =8 (22,147) 12,009
Total comprehensive income for BRBEEFRGEWRRAE
the year, net of tax (1,077,401) 353,320
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

£ PR B E bR & W 3

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+—-BLtEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARBT R ARETT
(Loss)/profit attributable to: UTALTES(ER), EF
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company - AREEBERKRE (1,001,876) 223,095
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments - XKABRIABAFA 113,587 117,640
— Non-controlling interests - R (166,965) 576
(1,055,254) 341,311
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTATEEGRERSEE
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company —-AANTEBIRARE (1,024,023) 235,104
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments - XKAERITEFEEA 113,587 117,640
— Non-controlling interests - e R = (166,965) 576
(1,077,401) 353,320
(Loss)/earnings per share for profit ERATEBERRREMSER
attributable to ordinary shareholders of WER(ER)BF
the Company (expressed in RMB per share) (LEBRAR¥ETERTR)
— Basic and diluted - EARR#E 13 (0.840) 0.187

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive bt & P R H b 47 & Uk 25 3% FE B2 4R 8 Pt

income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. F—EEE
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR¥ET T ARB T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BEKERE 17 4,250,964 4,081,849
Investment properties "EME 18 23,115 23,960
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 333,390 336,517
Receivables under service concession arrangements fR&GEFHFLLLEHTH
& W 338 20 6,406,389 5,235,494
Contract assets AHEE 5 12,700,091 10,959,833
Intangible assets mEE 21 12,409,296 12,888,550
Investments accounted for using the equity NHEREARNRE
method 16 1,084,751 852,784
Financial asset at fair value through other ATFEFEBHEEZEHTA
comprehensive income HgA N mEE 4,675 4,675
Trade and other receivables B 5 &k H b E W RIE 23 914,561 422,564
Prepayments TE T RRIE 23 1,463,032 1,168,930
Deferred income tax assets EEFSHEE 32 872,127 701,437
40,462,391 36,676,593
Current assets REBEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements RIS &L 2 HE T HY
J&E W 3K 1A 20 86,731 65,877
Inventories FE 22 116,043 108,337
Contract assets EHEE 5 486,042 565,470
Trade and other receivables B 5 & EH b fE W R IE 23 6,427,612 7,837,887
Prepayments TERTRIE 23 145,841 175,461
Restricted cash Z R HIR e 24 272,533 125,501
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkB2SEY 25 428,427 1,697,688
7,963,229 10,576,221
Total assets mEE 48,425,620 47,252,814
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR TR ARBTF T
EQUITY E=
Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders AAFEBRBRRELES
of the Company
Share capital i N 26 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves E b fE 27 2,752,075 2,800,727
Retained earnings 1R 88 & 7| 68,914 1,181,421
4,014,202 5,175,361
Perpetual capital instruments KAEBARIA 28 1,622,300 500,000
Non-controlling interests FE 15 R e 2 1,961,636 1,932,201
Total equity 48 R 25 7,598,138 7,607,562
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 30,956 35,776
Borrowings & & 29 7,970,439 17,865,921
Trade and other payables B RHEMERMNKIE 30 2,833,401 5,906,360
Deferred income 5 FE YA 31 817,160 709,768
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFMBHAE 32 1,326,435 1,277,470
Provision B A5 33 526,247 497,236
13,504,638 26,292,531
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥BT T AREEF T

Current liabilities REEE
Contract liabilities aHEE 5 87,344 88,151
Lease liabilities HEARE 14,315 13,258
Borrowings &= 29 20,685,107 9,675,894
Trade and other payables & 5 K& H b e 5RIE 30 5,974,439 3,129,990
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFR S F & & 561,639 445,428
27,322,844 13,352,721
Total liabilities wmes 40,827,482 39,645,252
Total equity and liabilities EaREEARE 48,425,620 47,252,814

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the titAHEEABEEREBAM T —HEE
accompanying notes.

o

The financial statements on pages 84 to 238 were approved by the Board of F8AEISEMMBBEENR —_E-_—_EmWAH

=

Directors of the Company on 29 April 2022 and were signed on its behalf. “t+tABRAQATESTEHE  LHTIA
TREFEE-

Director Director

B=% =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
APHERERE

Attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the Company
ARREBRRREN
Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-

Share Other Retained instruments  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total  XXAEXK interests equity
Ra  HftRE  REERA B IEREA FERER AR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR AR#TT AR%Tx

(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Hr&E26)  (Ht&E27) (K &£28)
Balance at 1 January 2021 R=B=-%
—R-AWE&ER 1,193,213 2,800,727 1,181,421 5,175,361 500,000 1,932,201 7,607,562
Total comprehensive income ERGEREAE
for the year
Loss for the year FRES = —  (1,001,876) (1,001,876) 113,587 (166,965)  (1,055,254)
Currency translation differences EhnEEE — (22,147) = (22,147) = = (22,147)
- (22,147)  (1,001,876)  (1,024,023) 113,587 (166,965)  (1,077,401)
Transactions with owners in HEBANEREASH
their capacity as owners ETHRS
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR - - — = = (48,116) (48,116)
Capital contribution by FiERE R LA
non-controlling interests = = = = — 188,518 188,518
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments 17k A B AL & — — — — 1,622,300 — 1,622,300
Redemption of perpetual capital BEXAEALA
instruments — — — — (500,000) — (500,000)
Transfer to statutory reserve BEEETRE = 39,693 (39,693) = - - -
Change of ownership interests in a ERRREHENERLT
subsidiary without loss of control BEMBRAMMER
B — (66,198) — (66,198) = 66,198 —
Dividends for the year ended HE-Z-ZF
31 December 2020 TZA=t+-ALEE
% & - - (70,938) (70,938) — — (70,938)
Distribution to holders of perpetual PERTXABRIEREA
capital instruments — — — — (113,587) — (113,587)
Distribution to non-controlling interests 73 & T 3E % Ak ## 2 — — = = = (10,200) (10,200)
- (26,505) (110,631) (137,136) 1,008,713 196,400 1,067,977
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZE=-%
TZB=t-AHEH 1,193,213 2,752,075 68,914 4,014,202 1,622,300 1,961,636 7,598,138
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AGHER BB

Attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company
ARAEBRBRES

Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-
Share Other Retained instruments  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total KAER interests equity
kA EtEE  REEN B IARBBEAN HERER PR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARSFr ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTn
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(Fisr2e)  (BisEa7) (B #E28)
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-ZB-%%F
—-R-AWEeR 1,193,213 2,280,588 1,275,515 4,749,316 2,610,000 1,186,669 8,545,985
Total comprehensive income FRGEREHE
for the year
Profit for the year g — — 23095 223095 117,640 576 341,311
Currency translation differences EWBEET = 12,009 = 12,009 = — 12,009
— 12,009 223,095 235,104 117,640 576 353,320
Transactions with owners in BREAUREEASR
their capacity as owners ETNRS
Capital contribution by FERERTE
non-controlling interests — 369,923 — 369,923 — 828,166 1,198,089
Acquisition of additional interestsin KT B A R KB SMER
subsidiaries — — — — — (56,000) (56,000)
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments %47k A A T & = = = = 500,000 = 500,000
Redemption of perpetual capital BEXAEALR
instruments — — — —  (2,610,000) —  (2,610,000)
Transfer to statutory reserve EEEERE = 138,207 (138,207) = = — =
Dividends for the year ended HE_T-NE
31 December 2019 TZA=+-RLEE
K& — — (178982)  (178,982) — — (178,982)
Distribution to holders of perpetual AERTKAERTARFEA
capital instruments — — — — (117,640 = (117,640)
Distribution to non-controlling PR T IEE AR
interests — — — — — (27,210 (27,210
- 508,130 (317,189) 190,941 (2,227,640) 744,956 (1,291,743)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-B-Z%
+tZA=+-HHEH 1,193,213 2,800,727 1,181,421 5,175,361 500,000 1,932,201 7,607,562

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

afftRETRER

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+—-BLtEE

2021 2020
—E=-—F —E-ETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARBT R ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHHEERE
Cash used in operations KEMARS 34(a) (1,604,268) (3,600,385)
Income tax paid EATFTEE (47,362) (142,811)
Interest paid BT A (1,170,150) (1,396,773)
Net cash outflow from operating activities LETEBIR &N F (2,821,780) (5,139,969)
Cash flows from investing activities REFBNRESHKE
Payments for property, plant and equipment, ME - BEREHE
right-of-use assets, land use rights and FREEE « LHFEAE
other intangible assets Ko E fth 2 & BE AN 3R (199,072) (518,651)
Investments in a joint venture mMEeERNaRE — (40,000)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate i Bk N R TS RIE 30,000 —
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture HEAZER Tﬁfr%f?\ — 375,200
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary Rk =N RCE /O 77,593 —
Others — net Hfh — )F8 (2,002) 3,691
Net cash outflow from investing activities BEFHRESMEFHE (93,481) (179,760)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

afRETRER

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+—-BLtEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 ARBT R ARETT
Cash flows from financing activities MEFTHNRESRE
Proceeds from borrowings B FT1E R E 16,635,978 19,444,205
Repayments of borrowings EEBER (15,955,384) (13,222,037)
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual capital BITXKABARTEMSHIE
instruments 1,622,300 500,000
Repayments of perpetual capital instruments EEXABATA (500,000) (2,610,000)
Distributions paid to holders of perpetual capital MAKABRTEEB A
instruments ERNEE0RaN (113,587) (159,640)
Dividends paid 2R E (21,166) (178,982)
Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests ) FE 1 IR #E 2 2 AT BV AR B (1,825) (27,422)
Capital injections by non-controlling interests RS EE 5,210 857,395
Payments for acquisition of additional interests in YR R& I B A B 60 5B SME 25 19
subsidiaries (NE-N — (36,962)
Others — net Hth — 55 (26,229) (17,427)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEEBIR S RAFE 1,645,297 4,549,130
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents REeRASEEYRL FE (1,269,964) (770,599)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of MRFEFEFNEREES R
the financial year ReZEEY 1,697,688 2,468,435
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and RERBEZEEBYE L
cash equivalents Wz (&) 703 (148)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FREASKBEESEEY 428,427 1,697,688

The above consolidated statement of cash

with the accompanying notes.

flows should be read in conjunction
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1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"”) on 21 June 2011. On 22 July 2014, the Company was
converted from a limited liability company into a joint stock limited
liability company with registered capital of RMB787,880,000. The
Company’s H shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 May 2015 with the total share
capital subsequently increased to RMB1,193,213,000.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the development, design, construction, operation and maintenance
of municipal water supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste
treatment facilities. The address of its registered office is Yunnan
Water 2089 Haiyuan North Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan
Province, the PRC.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and
its subsidiaries.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and

estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are

depicted in note 4.

(a) Going concern basis

The Group reported a net loss of RMB1,055,254,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB19,359,615,000
as at 31 December 2021. As at the same date, the Group's
total borrowings amounted to RMB28,655,546,000, of which
current borrowings amounted to RMB20,685,107,000, while
its cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB428,427,000
only. The Group had capital commitments of approximately
RMB11,963,708,000, which were mainly related to various

concession projects and construction projects of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Going concern basis (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group failed
to repay RMB1,157,710,000 of certain borrowings according
to their scheduled repayment dates. Although the Group
managed to settle some of these borrowings during the year
after the due dates, RMB1,118,793,000 remained unsettled as
at 31 December 2021. The total amounts of these Overdue
Borrowings, including interests payable and those portions
of such loans that had original contractual repayment dates
beyond 31 December 2021, amounted to RMB3,920,203,000
(the “Overdue Borrowings”). Furthermore, the Group was not
able to comply with certain financial covenants of its other
borrowings (the “Covenant Borrowings”) with a total amount
of RMB1,695,958,000 as at 31 December 2021. Consequently,
the aforementioned borrowings totaling RMB5,616,161,000
as at 31 December 2021 would be immediately repayable if
requested by the lenders. Out of such amount, borrowings of
RMB2,983,632,000 that have original contractual repayment
dates fall beyond 31 December 2022 were classified as current
liabilities as at 31 December 2021.

These matters triggered cross-defaults and resulted in certain
other borrowings of the Group (other than the Overdue
Borrowings and the Covenant Borrowings) with a total amount
of RMB10,781,143,000 as at 31 December 2021 becoming
immediately repayable if requested by the lenders, of which
RMB6,628,398,000 represented non-current borrowings with
original contractual repayment dates fall beyond 31 December
2022 that were classified as current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group further
failed to repay scheduled instalments and interests of
RMB362,615,000 relating to borrowings with a total
amount of RMB4,619,134,000, of which total amounts of
RMB3,164,749,000 were related to borrowings that were either
overdue or otherwise in default as at 31 December 2021.

From December 2021 to January 2022, lenders of certain
Overdue Borrowings amounting to RMB764,360,000 had
applied to the courts in the People’s Republic of China for
property preservation measures, and the courts ordered to
freeze the Group’s certain cash in banks, and equity interests
in an associate and a subsidiary. In January 2022, the Group
reached a settlement with one of the above lenders for
Overdue Borrowings of RMB381,866,000 as at 31 December
2021, but failed to repay the agreed rescheduled instalments
in February and March 2022. On 23 March 2022, due
to further legal actions taken by the relevant lender, the
Company was listed as a person subject to enforcement by
Urumgi Intermediate People’s Court, for the settlement of the
outstanding amount of RMB371,503,000.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s defaulted and cross-defaulted
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB17,851,689,000
(the "Defaulted Borrowings”).

All of the above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources of financing
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Certain plans and
measures have been and will be taken to mitigate the liquidity
pressure and to improve its financial position; and to remediate
certain delayed repayments to financial institutions which
include, but are not limited to, the following:

(i) The Group had corporate bonds of RMB852,721,000
with early redemption option exercisable by bondholders
in March 2022, out of which RMB577,028,000 was
exercised by the bondholders and redeemed by the
Group, while the bondholders for the remaining
RMB275,693,000 did not exercise the option and such
amount will be due for repayment by March 2024.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E K #51& & ik (5 B R 2

In March 2022, the Group obtained a borrowing of
RMB990,000,000 from its immediate holding company,
Yunnan Green Environmental Protection Industry Group

0., Ltd. (“YEPI"). The proceed was partly used to
redeem the corporate bonds of RMB577,028,000 as
mentioned above, partly used to repay the Group's
borrowings of RMB154,436,000 which were due for
repayment in March 2022, which the remaining portion
was used to repay the interest and other financing
charges due to Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism
Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“YHTH"),
holding company. The Group also obtained borrowings
of RMB212,000,000 from a subsidiary of YHTH to repay
another corporate bonds which were due in March 2022.

an intermediate

The Group will continue its ongoing effort to convince
the respective lenders not to take any actions against
the Group for immediate repayment of the Defaulted
Borrowings. Other than the property preservation
measures and enforcement incidents mentioned above,
the directors are not aware of any indication that other
lenders have any current intention to take actions against

the Group to demand immediate payments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

(iv)

The Group is also in active negotiations with the
respective lenders for renewal and extension of the
relevant borrowings and for grant of waivers for non-
compliance of financial covenants, defaults and cross
defaults, and the directors are confident that agreements
will be reached and appropriate waivers will be granted
in a timely manner. Since 1 January 2022, the Group
has successfully extended RMB412,984,000 of the
Overdue Borrowings under the same terms of the original
agreement despite the continuing defaulted status.

The Directors are confident that the Group will be able to
renew certain uncommitted revolving loan facilities as at
31 December 2021 as well as to obtain new facilities as
planned given the long standing relationship the Group

has with the respective banks.

The Group has plans to divest certain of the Group's
concession projects and construction projects. As at 31
December 2021, the Group has received deposit from
a potential acquirer amounted to RMB200,000,000
and the completion of the disposal is expected to take
place before June 2022 with a further consideration of
approximately RMB220,000,000 to be received. In the
meantime, the Group is also actively looking for strategic
investors to invest in certain existing projects of the
Group so as to enhance the capital structure and reduce
overall financing expenses of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

(vii)

The Directors are of the view that they have the
ability to manage the progress of the projects from
time to time and defer the payment schedule of the
borrowings in these projects, if necessary. The Group has
uncommitted project loan facilities from banks to provide
financing of up to RMB5,506,109,000 to satisfy part
of the construction cost payable and committed capital
expenditure in the next twelve months from 31 December
2021. The Group has also initiated the process to obtain
new project loans to fund the Group’s existing and new
concession projects and construction projects. Despite the
default situation as described above, the Directors believe
that these uncommitted facilities will continue to be
available to the Group and they are confident that they
will be able to obtain such project loans from banks and
other financial institutions as and when needed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

(viii)

The borrowings from YHTH was RMB4,366,330,000 as
at 31 December 2021, of which RMB4,302,589,000 was
classified as non-current. In addition, in order to facilitate
the Group to issue perpetual bonds during the year,
YHTH has undertaken to the bondholders to acquire the
Group’s perpetual bonds of RMB1,622,300,000 under
certain circumstance and also provided certain properties
of YHTH as security. Moreover, YHTH also issued a letter
to the Group and agreed to provide financial support
to the Group for a period up to 18 months from 31
December 2021 and to take measures to enable the
Group to have sufficient working capital to meet its
liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due and

to continue to carry on its business.

The Group is actively communicating with the relevant
lenders that have taken property preservation measures
and enforcement through legal proceedings, seeking
solutions from the professional lawyer team, hoping
to reach a settlement through mediation and ensure
the smooth implementation of relevant settlement

agreements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by management. The cash flow projections cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2021.
They are of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within twelve
months from 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the directors
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated

financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Company will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described above. Whether the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern would depend

upon the following:

(i) Successful negotiations with or obtaining waivers from
the Group’s existing lenders in respect of the borrowings
that were either overdue or otherwise in default, so that
the relevant lenders will not exercise their contractual

rights to demand immediate repayment of the relevant

Defaulted Borrowings;

(i) Successful in renewal of existing revolving bank facilities

and obtaining new bank facilities and drawing down

from those facilitates, as and when needed;

(iii)  Successful and timely in divesting (including receipt
of proceeds) the Group’s concession projects and

construction projects and introduction of strategic

investors to existing projects as planned;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHHRRBE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)
(a) Going concern basis (Continued) (a) FFREAEEE(E)

(iv)  Successful in managing the progress of its concession
projects and construction projects, deferring the payment
schedule of the borrowings in these projects if necessary,
and obtaining project and other financings to meet the
construction cost obligations, as and when needed;

(v)  Successful in obtaining sufficient financial support from
YHTH to meet with its financial obligation as and when
needed;

(vi)  Successful and timely in reaching a settlement for the
lawsuits with the relevant lenders through mediation and
implementation of relevant settlement agreements.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as
a going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which
might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.
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(b) Amended standards adopted by the Group (b) FEFERAPAZMIEET
A
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

ERUBMELNFE - TR GFENFE395% - MEEENE —F R

BERUBMELRETR BBV BMELAEIR R
BERUBMELFE 165 (BFTA)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19-related Rent Concessions
BBV RELRE 165, (BFTAR) COVD-19t8 A & B &

The adoption of the amended standards does not have
significant impact on the Financial Information
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TESHHEBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)

(c) FHBEBEMER=

(c) The following new standards and amendments

to standards have been issued but are not T —F—HF—HF

effective for the financial year beginning
1 January 2021 and have not been early

adopted:

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)

g5t E5% (BIEET)

Annual Improvements

FENE

HKAS 37 (Amendments)

EBGERIEI7R (BFIR)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

BEVBREEAEIR (BFTA)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

BERGFHERIF 165 (BETA)

HKFRS 17

BBV REERE 175

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

ARG ERIFE 1R (BETA)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)

BB ERE 1R BB B RS 2R
BRBAFE2HR (BFTA)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

BEBGERIEST (BFIR)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

BEBGFHERIF125% (BETA)
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BERREESH (ZT=TF)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BBV ERELLF105E LB B SR
F28% (1BFIA)

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 1.

2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

3. Effective date to be determined

The impact of new standards and amendments to standards

that issued but not effective is still under assessment by the

Group.

Pl e
24 71 3 7 0 12 2 IR AN
#7737 2 B R B A5
&

Merger Accounting for Common Control Combination’
HHERZES S HRBAHEE

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle’
ERAVEREENFERE(CS - N\FE_T_TFHEH)"
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract’
BEMEEH —BITEHOMKAE

Reference to the Conceptual Framework'

Sl S ERAH AR

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use’
ME - BERZE — RTEBEANMEFIE

Insurance Contracts?

REz & %2

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?
BEMRBEIEREEH?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
& B 0 R B

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

& 3t 3t 05 352

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

HE-RXZMEELANEERABRBOELERIE?

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause?

BRI — BERAHSERELERENEBRD
BHE RN 5 82

Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

REEHRHABERNANEECECZRNEELESITE?

RAZZE-—F—A—HB%
Z B BA N E HIR A R

2. RE-ZT-=F—A—H%
2 1% B 16 B9 4 [ HA R A A

3. E . g= Rkt
A B DR B BB
R

RERE AT R R AERT
A E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR TS SRR BT A

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 REANRRAIRERS S
BB

2.2.1 Subsidiaries 22.1 {1 B 2\ &

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group is depicted in note 2.3.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in

equity and consolidated balance sheet respectively.

NGB RN AR =R k]
B AEER(EEEEN
HE) EASENL2MARE
BEEmAERSENZD
ARk A A # B 3R A
R WHENERBREYHE
BEINFTERTEZ
B3R5 - B A& Bl
CIRNh DEER/NCT DiAS el 1
EXREEERAREZHEGZEA
BE - WRARIEIERIREE AR
BIEERE AR ©

_J'

"
%

AEBRABRBEIHEBE
BiRE ARSI FE2.3 -

SERRFRIRRS B8Rk
SERRRRRZAREHK
@G EE - REREBET
BIEE  ERRPEE
TEERAELTRERR
Sh o B A RIM B BERE
EERERELTARE AW
R B 52 [ P ER 40 B R TR R
_ﬁ °

B A AR MM R RO JF

2R D BING GRS R
Hitira sk a8 H
mxRAHEEABRRTES
E I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

106

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
2.2.2 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised

at cost.

2.2.3 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the

consolidated balance sheet.

2.2.4 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or

made payments on behalf of the other entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 REANRRAIRERS S

(Continued) BE(£)
2.2.4 Equity method (Continued) 224 B Eat L (4E)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary

to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy depicted in note
2.13.

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within

equity attributable to owners of the Company.

AEBEABEAARE Y
DA Z AR BEHRBERU S
eSS ) S ES L T
FIAY - RBABENE
FIAH  BERRHBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 REANRRAIRERS S
(Continued) BE(£)
2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests (Continued) 225 BEREREZZE (; %ii)
When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account *2&%..5‘&%? HilE -
EH S ERE %ﬁﬁ'ﬁT

for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control

or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity ﬁﬁ‘&é,ﬁ%é]\ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁéﬁ
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying SIEARE REEHMMT
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes MRBESZEANFTEEN
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently 2 MEEESEHNIER

accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category

HER - B EIR ABRDIVER &
QA BERRAERMEE
WREREME  ZATE
AT ZRREE © ol - 5
AR EsR A Wapt % B 88
HRNE A RREMAE
lEET%HjEﬁEﬁEEﬁE

of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. 1;5’]7‘7‘4§)\5E %%5’6
8 ,\1”@%?’:}45( EE

%ﬁi%ﬁ DEEER Eﬁzﬁiﬁéi

Lﬁﬁ?;’éﬁﬁ%#ﬁi/ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂb

B R A S —

7 o
If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is (LN /N =0
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained, HmAEEERRDBREHLR
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised ZHIESEATE D - AlE

in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss R 135 S5 BT B b 42 & U
where appropriate. EERNCHEENSOEERE
w (ER) -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations not under common control

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B fF B 1% R B 5

23 FHEEHTHELSH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

ii. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

iii.  equity interests issued by the Group

iv.  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement; and

V. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

consideration transferred;

ii. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity;
and

iii. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquired entity

AEERBUBEEHESMAER
BatAR mMTAwmEac kB
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PPEEEENATE

i WKEBEBHAES AME
EMRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

110

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations not under common control
(Continued)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or

loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including

goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

2.6

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has

been identified as the executive directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional currency

and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or
are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis within
other gains or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the

associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,

as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition

of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss accounts
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Plants and buildings 20-50 years
Machinery 10-30 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Electronic equipment and others 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction, which
is stated at actual construction cost less any impairment loss.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when completed
and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.13).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts
included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained

earnings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of investment properties to its residual value over

its estimated useful life. The estimated useful life is as follows:

Plants and buildings 30-50 years

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill
Goodwill is measured as depicted in note 2.13. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Development expenditure

When the future economic benefits become apparent as
a project progresses into the development stage the costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are capitalised as
intangible assets when recognition criteria are fulfilled and tests
for impairment are performed annually. Other development
expenditures that do not meet those criteria are recognised as
expenses as incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as expenses are not recognised as assets in subsequent periods.
Capitalised development costs are transferred to technical
know-how when the assets are ready for use.

Operating concessions
The detailed accounting policy of operating concessions is
depicted in note 2.11.

Unfulfilled contract rights

Unfulfilled contract rights represent the fair value of unfulfilled
contracts in excess of the carrying value for unfulfilled
construction contracts acquired through business combination.

Licenses

Licenses represent the fair value of the operating permits of
solid waste treatment plants and water supply facilities acquired
through business combination.

Technical know-how and software
Acquired technical know-how and software are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire or through business

combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B % R 2R MY 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued) 29 B EE(HE)

116

(g) Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life

using the straight-line method over the following periods:

(9) ##EH 75 ZRFH
AEER U THMRAER
HB 55 B IR PR R M0

BE -
Operating concessions 16-30 years FraTE & 16-304F
Unfulfilled contract rights 30 years KBITA KRR 30F
Licenses 5-54 years R ER 5-54%F
Technical know-how and software 5-47 years BERM R 5-47%

2.10 Land use rights

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for
land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining

lease term or the operating period, whichever is shorter.

Land use rights 40-50 years

2.11 Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”). The service concession arrangements
consist of Build — Operate — Transfer (the “BOT") arrangements
and Transfer — Operate — Transfer (the "TOT"”) arrangements. Under
the BOT arrangements, the Group carries out construction work of
the facilities of the sewage and reclaimed water treatment, water
supply or solid waste treatment for the Grantors and receives in
return a right to operate the facilities of service project concerned
for a specified period of time (the “Service Concession Period”) in
accordance with the pre-established conditions set by the Grantors,
the service project should be transferred to the Grantors with nil
consideration at the end of the operation period. A TOT arrangement
is similar to a BOT arrangement, except that the Group pays
consideration for the right to operate the facilities of the wastewater
treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment that has been
built.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property, plant and
equipment of the facilities, however, the relevant governmental
authorities as Grantors will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the facilities, and retain the
beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the facilities at the
end of the Service Concession Period. Each of these service concession
arrangements is governed by a contract and, where applicable,
supplementary agreements entered into between the Group and the
relevant governmental authority that set out, inter alia, performance
standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered
by the Group, and specific obligations levied on the Group to restore
the facilities to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the
Service Concession Period and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.

(a) Consideration given by the Grantor
(i) Service concession arrangements under
financial asset model

A financial asset (receivables under a service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the Grantor for the construction
services rendered and/or the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantor during the Service
Concession Period. The Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash if the Grantor contractually guarantees
to pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
the users of the public service and the specified or
determinable amounts. The financial asset (receivable
under a service concession arrangement) is accounted for
in accordance with the policy set out for financial assets
measured at amortised cost under note 2.14.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

118

FF B 75 i % B RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Continued)

(i)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E K #51& & ik (5 B R 2

Service concession arrangements under
financial asset model (Continued)

During the construction periods, the Group recognises a
contract asset (note 2.12) and accounts for the significant
financing component in the arrangement. When the
construction services are completed, the contract asset
would be classified and measured as receivables under a
service concession arrangement accordingly.

When the Group receives a payment during the
concession period, it will apportion such payment
between (i) a repayment of the financial asset (if any),
which will be used to reduce the carrying amount of
financial receivables on the consolidated balance sheet, (ii)
interest income, will be recognised as revenue in profit or
loss and (iii) revenue from operating service in the profit
or loss. Revenue from operating service is calculated
based on cost plus a profit margin.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Continued)

(ii)

Service concession arrangements under
intangible asset model

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of public service, which is not an unconditional
right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the public uses and service. The
intangible asset (operating concession) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “intangible assets”
in note 2.9 above, which is amortised on a straight-line

basis over the Service Concession Period.

Revenue relating to operating service are accounted for
in accordance with the policy for note 2.29 “revenue
recognition” below. Costs for operating services are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Continued)

(iii)

Service concession arrangements under hybrid
mode/

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by
a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of

the consideration.

Therefore in this arrangement it is necessary to divide

2. FIEETHERBE(A)

QNN BEHFREZH(F)
(a) BFABLTHRAE

(#&)

(i) EESERAE TR
BT &L
WASEAELEIE
HEEZRB D B K
ERMEENERE
E -SEBEESIA
BRI BZERENQ
FEPIERER -

Rt RZREEF - A

the operator’s contract asset during the construction BEEENENEE
period into two components, a financial asset component DRWMEBY BN E
based on the guaranteed amount and an intangible asset REEHNERMEER

for the remainder. When the construction services are
completed, the two components of the contract asset
would be classified and measured as a financial asset and
an intangible asset accordingly.

BVEE -BERH
TERE  AREEN
1 48 A 55 73 75 48 e
ReEMEERELE
ENBRMEE -

(b) Construction and upgrade services (b) ZEER HLKRH
The fair value of the construction and upgrade service under BHEERHETHREERF
the concession arrangement is calculated as the estimated total PARTEH R E TR R
construction cost plus a profit margin. The profit margins are FERAIEFEGTE &
valued by an independent qualified valuer, based on prevailing FERBE ERGHEMIE
market rate applicable to similar construction services rendered Rz B BER RN UL E
in similar location at date of agreement. FTRERNELEERB AR

ThHEEERME -

Revenue relating to construction and upgrade services are BZERASREEBENE
accounted for in accordance with the policy in note 2.29. F WAL 5E2. 2989 B 5K 5
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Continued)

(c) Contractual obligations to restore the
infrastructure to a specified level of
serviceability
The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as
a condition of its licences, that is (i) to maintain the sewage
and reclaimed water treatment and water distribution plants
it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or (ii)
to restore the plants to a specified condition before they
are handed over to the Grantor at the end of the service
concession arrangements. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the sewage and reclaimed water treatment
and water distribution plants, except for upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out

for note 2.27 “provisions” below.

(d) Interest income
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognises
the related revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised
when a customer pays consideration, or is contractually required
to pay consideration and the amount is already due, before the
Group recognises the related revenue. For a single contract with
the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

2NENEEREGHNERE(HE)

122

An impairment of a contract asset is measured, presented and

disclosed on the same basis as a financial asset under note 2.14.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer within contract assets if the Group expects to recover
those costs.

Generally, the Group receives advances from its customers which are
short-term in nature. The advances previously included in trade and
other payables are reclassified to contract liabilities.

2.13 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.14 Investment and other financial assets
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2.14.1 Classification 21415 2
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following rEERBRESREEDES
measurement categories: ITErE85

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Continued) 2QIABEREMESREE (&)
2.14.1 Classification (Continued) 2141 52 (48)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investment when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

2.14.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.

2.14.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Continued)

TEETHRERBE(A

QIUAREREBEHEE (F)

2.14.3 Measurement (Continued) 214355 (&)

(a) Debt instruments (a) EFETLA
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on B LTAEMNEBET=
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and BARAEEEEE
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three ENEBEANEE
measurement categories into which the Group classifies MRS REBEH - K
its debt instruments: SEBHEEHBIAS

124

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection

BR=EsraE

s HERA R

of contractual cash flows where those cash flows WE A #4E e
represent solely payments of principal and interest mEMmMER
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income BEReEREE
from these financial assets is included in finance BYNKE KR
income using the effective interest rate method. MEZEER
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is B o8H Ak A R

recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEETHHREME(EF
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Continued) 2QIABEREMESREE (&)
2.14.3 Measurement (Continued) 214352 (4&)
(@) Debt instruments (Continued) (a) /ﬁffsz (&

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of MNAFEFEZ
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial BEZFH A

assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are

H b &5 & W
@ BRI E
EHRERE

taken through OCI, except for the recognition REE2®E
of impairment gains or losses, interest income EZEE
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are ZEEERS
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial mEEEXM
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss e kAL
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from A LA A & 5t
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other EHEHEHEH
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial A H fth 45 & W
assets is included in finance income using the @HETE o BRE
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange BEZHT AR
gains and losses are presented in other gains/ fib 47 & W &
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented MR 18 = P
as separate line item in the statement of profit or PERER &
loss. HEE - FE
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Continued)
2.14.3 Measurement (Continued)
(@) Debt instruments (Continued)

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises.

(b) Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Investment and other financial assets (Continued)

2.14.3 Measurement (Continued)
(b) Equity instruments (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement
of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from

other changes in fair value.

2.14.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses (“ECL") associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology

applied depends on whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for receivables under service concession arrangements, trade
receivables, amounts due from customers for contract work and
contract assets. Impairment on other receivables is measured as
either 12-month ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending

on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.

128

FF B 75 i % B RE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group currently have
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group have also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,

such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.16 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

3 the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Inventories 2177 E

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.18 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note
2.14 for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call
with financial institutions.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as “restricted
cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in

the cash flow statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Share capital 220 &<

130

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity

as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.21 Perpetual capital instruments

Perpetual capital instruments with no contractual obligation for the
Group to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holders are
classified as equity instruments. They are initially recorded at the
proceeds received within equity. Discretionary interest declared by the
Group to the holders of perpetual capital instrument is treated as
dividend.

2.22 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.23 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.25 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred income
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its
tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

B fF B 1% R B 5

TEETREREE(A)

224 fE R R A

—REBFEERRAEEZFBER
FETKIERZEENMERTE
Rt En—BREBNEARCL
MEEREE -ABEREEMA
K-—RERBEEREENEEERTER
BEIEE

RREEER BERAEREE
B 32 H T R B 1 8 BRER O 1R B
A REABEBRERCOERK
AR -

Pt 8 L 8 SRR AN 10 B A AT
MR -

2.25 B 2 3R FE P 18 Bt

HARMSHRAXHERE AR
J& AR T W A 3% & )R HE [ 53 A
BREZEMNRE XERER
K R TR IR B 18 e 6 R T TR
BENBERDHFE -

(a) BTRGPT3#

BIEAFR S & MRIEA R A
REMBAR &&RAER
e NERE RELERT
WARMBRR & EHRER
Mk BEEBEMEBOERH o
EEERERRBEAR 2R
PR IR B8 DL HART (b B TR
RIRBER - A E BRI KR
BB AR THEENH
WiFE - REBRIEXATAL
MeRKTRAEESEEH
R RRBURRBE
TRBE I R FOR T HEE IR M
FETEM o

Annual Report 2021 4F E 4§ 4 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k 18 & B (5 A5 IR 2 & 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& F B 1% R B 5

2.

132

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses, and does not give rise to

equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special
tax deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group accounts for such
allowances as tax credits, which means that the allowance
reduces income tax payable and current tax expense. A deferred
income tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are
carried forward as deferred income tax assets.

2.26 Employee benefits

(a)

Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees’ payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administrated funds managed by the PRC

government.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Defined benefit plan

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service

and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such

bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and

settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised

immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR TS SRR BT A

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Employee benefits (Continued) 226EEREFI (&)

(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.

2.27 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised

for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in

the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Government grants

TEETREREE(A)

2.28 B %8 B

136

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and

the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that

they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred government grants and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.29 Revenue recognition

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer. This

may be at a single point in time or over time.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following

criteria is met:

3 when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

3 when the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

o when the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternate use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.29 Revenue recognition (Continued)
If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises

revenue at a single point in time at which the performance obligation

is satisfied for the sale of that good or service when control has been

passed.

If control of the product or service transfers over time, revenue is

recognised over the period of the contract by measuring the progress

towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods
Revenue is recognised at the point in time when the control
of the product is transferred to the customer which generally

coincides with delivery and acceptance of the product sold.

Rendering of construction and upgrade
services

Revenue from construction and upgrade services is recognised
over time by measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based
on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract.

Rendering of other services
Revenue from wastewater treatment, solid waste treatment and
other services is recognised over the period by measuring the

progress towards complete satisfaction of the service.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases

The Group leases land use rights on long-term contracts and offices
and warehouses on both short-term and long-term contracts.

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for
land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining
lease term or the operating period, whichever is shorter.

Rental contracts for offices and warehouses are typically made for
fixed periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

3 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with

similar terms, security and conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease

payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in

the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease

payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
3 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date

less any lease incentives received;

3 any initial direct costs; and

O restoration costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued) 2300 & (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of

adopting the new leasing standard.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.

2.32 Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged.

The Group's derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.33 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares;
and

the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E R /K ##% ¥

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk and fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions being settled in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group entities.

The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises from the
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through financing activities denominated in
the relevant foreign currencies. The group entities are
exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies
other than their functional currencies, primarily with
respect to the US dollars (“US$"), Thai Baht (“THB"”) and
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-functional
Currencies”). The Group seeks to limit its exposure to
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring and minimizing
its net foreign currency position.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E K #51& & ik (5 B R 2

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. The Group’s interest-bearing
bank borrowings, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents are stated at amortised cost and not revalued
on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and
expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss as earned/

incurred.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has floating rate
borrowings amounting to RMB11,856,091,000 (2020:
RMB10,357,901,000).
increase/decrease in the market interest rates by 100

If there would be a general

basis points, with all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax loss would have increased/decreased
by approximately RMB75,441,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB82,999,000). The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in market interest rates had occurred as
at the 31 December 2021 and 2020 and had applied
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk to those
financial instruments in existence at those dates. The
estimated 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s estimate of a reasonably possible change
in market interest rates over the period until the next

annual year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. The Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets is the

carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents,

trade and other receivables, receivables under service concession

arrangements, amounts due from customers for contract work

and contract assets.

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group's

expected credit loss model is as follows:
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Basis for recognition of

Category Group definition of category expected credit loss provision
5l AEBHEERINAE BRANCESERENEE
Performing Financial assets for which credit risk has 12 months expected losses. Where the
not increased significantly since initial expected lifetime of an asset is less
recognition than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime
E® B Y146 HERR LA R AE PR L B I S B A 3 N Y 1218 A9 TREAE 18 - BNTREIE A HIE

Underperforming

2=

Non-performing

T8

TREE

Financial assets for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, but are not credit-impaired
B Y16 TR LA RS R b 2 B AN
BARHEREERENSHMEE
Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date
RRERAHEREERENSHEE

12 R 2 AMEE - TREAEIBIZH TR H)
ERFHE

Lifetime expected losses

FEATEEAE R

Lifetime expected losses

FHRYER
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(if)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E K #51& & ik (5 B R 2

Cash deposits at banks and restricted cash

For deposit with banks, the Group has limited its credit
exposure by restricting their selection of banks on the
reputable local listed commercial banks or state-owned
banks. Management believes these financial institutions
are reputable and there is no significant credit risk of loss
on such assets.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. Future
cash flows for each group of receivables are estimated on
the basis of historical default rates, adjusted to reflect the
effects of existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
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Trade receivables with known insolvencies are assessed
individually for impairment allowances and are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators of insolvencies include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor engage in a repayment plan with the
Group, and a failure to make contractual payments. Trade
receivables without known insolvencies are assessed on a

collective basis based on shared credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables have been assessed for impairment
on a collective basis based on different credit risk
characteristics. Trade receivables are categorised as

follows for assessment purpose:

Group 1: Trade receivables due from local governments;

Group 2: Trade receivables due from related parties which
included mainly state-owned enterprises;

Group 3: Trade receivables due from other state-owned

enterprises;

Group 4: Trade receivables due from other third parties
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(if)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. M¥REBEREE)
3.1 BBEREZEE)
(b) =HEE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) (i) B 5 fE W5 E
(&

(i-1) On that basis, as at 31 December 2021, the (i-1) fEHEH L
loss allowance provision for the trade receivables NZEEZ —F
was determined as follows. The expected credit +-—A=+—
losses below also incorporated forward looking H' B85 EWK
information. HIEEERE

SFRMT T
XHEHEE
BETEE A
EIEER o
Group 1 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
At 31 December 2021 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
£-4
R=B=-F£+ZA=1-H 150K 1225 2338 34 4ENE g
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REAE (\RETT) 649,629 285,507 92,267 23,805 79,440 1,130,648
Expected loss rate TlEEE 0.10% 0.15% 0.21% 0.21% 0.24%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  EiERE (\RET ) 631 439 193 51 188 1,502
Group 2 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
At 31 December 2021 1year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
£-4
RZB--£+-A=1-H 1557 122% 2235 3B4F  AFNE ELd
Gross carrying amount RMB'000)  BE&E (ARETT) 19236 286,761 282,521 684203 719751  2,052478
Expected loss rate i) ke 0.72% 151% 3.17% 6.58% 19.44%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  EEARE (\EETT) 138 4323 8,948 45,042 151,553 210,004
Group 3 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
At 31 December 2021 1year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
%=4
R=B=-5£+ZA=1-H 150K 1225 1338 3Z24E 4ENE aE
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  REEE (AEETT) 47,280 1,094,853 365,121 109,295 38721 1,655.270
Expected loss rate LS 0.76% 2.21% 5.00% 7.78% 22.43%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  EiERE (\RET ) 360 24,877 18,271 8,499 8,684 60,691
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MERKBEREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEBREEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) EHER (&)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) & Z JE W HE
(&)
(i-1)  (Continued) (i-1) (#&)
Group 4 Less than 1to 2to 3to Over
At 31 December 2021 1year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
Ema
RZB=-F1ZAZ1-A 1EUR 1225 2%33% 3Z4F  4FNE a8

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RS (\RETT) 304,023 314,743 130,657 202,120 78,134 1,029,677

Expected loss rate kil 2.15% 8.70% 14.38% 2036% 37.48%

Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  E5iER4E (\RETT) 6,530 27,395 18,795 14 29,282 123,144
(ii-2) As at 31 December 2020, the loss allowance (i-2) R-ZZE_FF

provision for the trade receivables was determined +-—A=+—

as follows. The expected credit losses below also H:' 2 5FEWK

incorporated forward looking information. TIEEERE

HIEM T T
NHFEHEE
BENE S A

BEIMER -
Trade Receivables Less than Tto 210 3to Over
At 31 December 2020 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 4 years Total
B5RENEE
RZZ-ZE+-A=1-H 1A 1226 1535 3BAE 4FNE BE

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FEEE (ARETT) 2921478 1263267 1,103,251 760,261 355,180 6,403,437
Expected loss rate EHEER 1.87% 2.19% 2.88% 2.22% 4.10%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  EiiE&#E (\RET) 54,582 27,727 31,804 16,904 14,553 145,570
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3.

150

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Other receivables

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with
other receivables due from local governments and related
parties is considered to be low, since they have a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. The Group has assessed that the ECL rate
for the amounts due from local governments and related
parties are immaterial under 12 months ECL method and
considered them to have low credit risk, and thus the
loss allowance is immaterial.

For other receivables other than those from local
governments and related parties, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and past
experience.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BKEKRERE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEBREE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) EHER (&)
(i) Other receivables (Continued) (i) A b J& 4g 5 B
(&

The Group considers the probability of default whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on
an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

3 internal credit rating
o external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse changes in

business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

3 actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

3 significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrowers, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers and changes in
the operating results of the borrowers.
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3.

152

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ili)  Other receivables (Continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using the probability of default approach to measure
expected credit losses. The probabilities of default
rates are estimated based on comparable companies
with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects
the probability weighted outcome and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forward-
looking credit risk information. As at 31 December 2021,
the probability of default applied for performing other
receivables ranged from 0.04% to 4.96%, and the loss
given default was estimated to 53.12%. The expected
loss rate of the non-performing other receivables was
estimated to 100%. The movement of the Group's
provision for impairment of other receivables are set out
in Note 23(b).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii) Other receivables (Continued)

The loss allowance provision for other receivables as at

31 December 2021 is as follows:

3. BKEKRERE (&)

31 W¥RAKREE (&)
(b) =/AEE (&)

(iip) H fih & 7% '

(&

R—ZZT=——F+=A8
Zt+—BAEMLEK

REBEBEOT
Performing  Underperforming  Non-Performing Total
E% B TR 8
As at 31 December 2021 R=B=-%
T-ZA=1-H
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REHAE(ARBTT) 1,878,251 — 104,937 1,983,188
Expected loss rate BHERE 0.47% - 100.00%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) ~ BEEE(AEETT) 8,810 — 104,937 113,747
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-%f
+ZBA=t+-H
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FRAE(ARETR) 2,013,428 = 22,010 2,035,438
Expected loss rate EHEEX 0.54% = 100.00%
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000) ~ EEEE(AERT) 10,844 = 22,010 32,854
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED 2 7 /K #

Receivables under service concession
arrangements and contract assets

The Group has assessed the allowance for credit losses
for its receivables under service concession arrangements
and contract assets which were mainly attributable to
provision for construction and upgrade services and
operating of the concession facilities. As the customers
are primarily local governments and PRC state-owned
entities, the Directors considers the credit risk is low. An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using the probability of default approach to measure
expected credit losses. The probabilities of default
rates are estimated based on comparable companies
with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects
the probability weighted outcome and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forward-
looking credit risk information. As at 31 December 2021,
the probability of default applied ranged from 0.12% to
0.56% (2020: from 0.01% to 0.10%), and the loss given
default was estimated to 53.12% (2020: from 48.02% to
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

(iv) Receivables under service concession
arrangements and contract assets (Continued)
68.84%). There has been no significant increase in credit
risk in the Group’s receivables under service concession
arrangements with gross amount of RMB6,509,663,000
at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB5,304,961,000) and
contract assets of gross amount of RMB13,211,280,000
at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB11,531,063,000), since
their initial recognition.

Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash to meet funding
requirement for operations and monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's cash on the basis of expected cash flow. The directors
of the Company have prepared cash flow projections for the
year ending 31 December 2022 and are of the opinion that,
taking into account the plans and measures as depicted in note
2.1, the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within twelve months from 31 December 2021.

The Group will assess the relevant future costs and benefits and
pursue such options as are appropriate. The directors consider
that the Group will be able to maintain sufficient financial

resources to meet its operation needs.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BiXERERE(&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BiEREE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) nEEZEREE)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into TRAMAEERN SR A
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from & W HIRRAEEAEI2A
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. As the Bl RIBEEBRZES AT H
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted HEFIREARET DN - &
cash flows after consideration of overdue borrowings and Wﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬂ’\]/f%ﬁ%i@%@ﬁ
borrowings considered as default and cross-default, including HERLERBEHNRZX
interest payments computed using contractual rates, or, if ;\_i’jél’ﬂﬁ,m%éﬁ’qé,i’wkﬁﬁfﬁ
floating, based on current rates. REeERE BERESOF

%(Eﬁiﬁtﬁ/?@)ﬂ“ ]
BNEARIZ ) St H RIS ATER
Between Between Carrying
Within 1and 2and Over amount
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total liabilities
1E0R 122% 2255 SENE &  AEREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®Tn ARETn ARETn  ARETn  ARETx
Closing balance at 31 December 2021  R=Z=-%+=f
=t-BRARER
Financial liabilities SREE
Borrowings & 22,138,781 5,545,568 731,892 2,470,762 30,887,009 28,655,546
Trade and other payables (*) BHREAMEMNTUEM 5,713,951 2,681,428 54,834 100,000 8,550,213 8,547,352
Lease liabilities HEARE 15,851 1,764 28,366 26,861 78,842 45,271
27,868,589 8,234,760 815,092 2,597,623 39,516,064 37,248,169
Closing balance at 31 December 2020  R=B=%%+=A
=t-BRARER
Financial liabilities SREE
Borrowings & 10611205 6865861 6448561 6405450 30331077 27541815
Trade and other payables (*) B 5 RAEMEN ) 2,820,665 5818384 113,000 38400 8790449  8727,025
Lease liabilties HERE 15,100 11,655 18218 4,113 89,746 49,034
13,446,970 12,695,900 6,579,779 6,488,623 39211272 36,317,874
The Group also provides guarantees to borrowings of a joint AEBNMAELERARIREE
venture and an associate, which will have contractual cash NEEFIRMER  BEE
flows only if the joint venture and associate default the EERBRBERRHRE
repayment (Note 37(m)). REATHEELAGHNRS
2 (FFFE37(m)) °
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* Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. WHKERERE(HE)

3.2 Capital management

3.2 EXER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, sell assets to reduce debt or raise funding through
capital markets as necessary.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “total equity” as
shown in the consolidated financial statements plus net borrowings.

AEENEAERENE O /RE
REBMERFERLE  ARKRE
RECH L SEMAEEEE R
HHE  UREFRENEAR
BRDEARKA -

BRBAARERLEE K& E
Mg ARRMN TRENRES
BOAREREEAN  HEEBE
RO EBRBRERTISESE
B (MBE) -

AEERBEEABLXERE
A o BZ L RIBF AT R ABRE A
AE - FEBREFEE(BRES
HEEBBRARAENERIEED
HEFRDBRRERALEEYS
H o ERRA M RERAR
ISR MERFREFTE -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—~
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Total borrowings (note 29) g (FisE29) 28,655,546 27,541,815
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 25) B BeRBESEEY

(Mi#E25) (428,427) (1,697,688)
Net borrowings fBEFFRE 28,227,119 25,844,127
Total equity e 7,598,138 7,607,562
Total capital EARIEEE 35,825,257 33,451,689
Gearing ratio BEBRBLE 79% 77%

The increase in the gearing ratio was resulted primarily from the
increase of borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2021.

EEABELRERRSTZRBRE
T —F+=ZA=+—HL
FEME LM -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

3.3 Financial instruments by category

B 7% & By
33 RENE HNEmMIA

EE(E)

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—~H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEFTHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AREFIT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost HE KA ENEMEE
— Trade and other receivables - B REMEWFIA 7,342,173 8,260,451
— Receivables under service concession - R EELETH
arrangements e FRIE 6,493,120 5,301,371
— Cash and cash equivalents - BekReEEY 428,427 1,697,688
— Restricted cash - ZXBHIRE 272,533 125,501
14,536,253 15,385,011
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFENSHREE
— Financial asset at fair value through - LAFEFEEHZESHA
other comprehensive income HEMirea W= e mEE 4,675 4,675
14,540,928 15,389,686
Financial liabilities L S=
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKATTENERBE
- Borrowings - B 28,655,546 27,541,815
— Trade and other payables (*) - B REMERFRIA) 8,547,352 8,727,025
— Lease liabilities - HEaE 45,271 49,034
37,248,169 36,317,874

* Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MRRARER(EF)
3.4 Fair value estimation 3.4 AFEME

The Group's financial instruments recognised in the consolidated AEEREHEEABERARER

balance sheet are mainly receivables and financial liabilities carried NeEMIAEXZERKREHEKAT

at amortised cost. The fair values of these financial instruments EHERREBEREREE %5

approximate their carrying amounts. PHIAMNATFTEEEREMEMN

2.

Financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed by levels of the BAFEHNENSE TR JTIZIA

following fair value measurement hierarchy: TAFEAEEBRETRE

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets . HREEEXBELERM
or liabilities (level 1). HSHRRE(CRERARE)(F—

&) o

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are . BRE—RABEANREIN
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as ZEEXEBENAER(E
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). ERER) KEEBVRES

ER)BABER(E_R) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable o WIHEKBRAIEEMIBEIRSE
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). HHEES A G E AR
(BN AATE R A BUR) (5
=& -
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4., T EGEHAETRHE
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements used in preparing these financial statements are R S TS R BT BT R 0 il 5 K A
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including TREAASBRAEMAEZ(BERE
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the BHEBREAREHELNREBESIE
circumstances. B TE BR) i /E H O & 1T AT A o
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The AEEEHAREDETRER - BIF
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related EE c At mERM S AR ER
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk FERERAR - RATEEBE T ES
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and BFEENEERBENREAEELEXR
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below. ARG RBERMBAOT o
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

160

(a)

(b)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E K #51& & ik (5 B R 2

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year, which
is a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements. The assessment of
the going concern assumption involves making a judgement by the
Directors, at a particular point of time, about the future outcome
of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The Directors
consider that the Group has the capability to continue as a going
concern and the major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that individually or collectively may cast significant
doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in note 2.1 to

the consolidated financial statements.

Service concession arrangements under financial
asset model

When the Group is paid for the construction and upgrade services
by a financial asset, significant judgement is exercised in determining
the fair values of the financial asset at initial recognition. Cash flow
forecast, effective interest rate and other factors are used in the
valuation model. Any changes in the expected cash flows, such as
forecasted unit price of service fee, operating costs and profit margins
of the operating services, will result in change in the carrying value of
the financial asset and the revenue recognised in concession period.

According to the service concession arrangements signed with the
Grantors, the unit price of service fee would be periodically adjusted
to compensate operating cost increase, including labour costs,
material costs, taxation, through a pricing mechanism which is still
subject to regulation by local government authorities. Judgement is
required in assessing whether increase in costs can be compensated
through unit price adjustment and the timing. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates the pricing mechanism in the service
concession arrangements, the extent of development of the project

and status of negotiation with the government authorities.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Impairment provision of trade and other
receivables

The Group records impairment provision of trade and other
receivables based on an assessment made by management on the
ECL of trade receivables. The evaluations focused on the customers’
settlement history and current ability to pay, and took into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customers operated. Provisions
are made where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. Impairment assessment requires
the use of judgement and estimates. The Group would revisit and
evaluate those assumptions related with ECL model periodically.

Income taxes and deferred income taxation

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Thailand and Indonesia. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the year in which such determination
is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date
or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
of goodwill has been determined based on fair value less costs to
disposal calculations, taking into account latest market information
and past experience. These calculations require the use of judgements

and estimates.
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(c)
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(e)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

162

(f)

Impairment assessment of intangible assets (other
than goodwill)

The carrying amounts of items of intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable in accordance with the
accounting policy as disclosed in note 2.9 to the financial statements.
The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use, and calculations of which involve the use of
estimates. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. A change in the estimated
future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will result in an
adjustment to the estimated impairment provision.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are the chief operating decision-

maker of the Group. Management has determined the operating segments

based on reports reviewed by the executive directors of the Company for

the purpose of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The executive directors of the Company consider the business from product

and service perspective. The Group is organised into five business segments

as below:

(a)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED 2= F /K # 1% & A% 13

Wastewater treatment;

Water supply;

Construction and sales of equipment;

Solid waste treatment;

Others, including operation and maintenance services and other
businesses.

A MR A7 Annual Report 2021 4 £ i &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of revenue and gross profit
of each operating segment.

The amounts provided to the executive directors of the Company with
respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Unallocated assets mainly represented cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, certain prepayments and certain receivables of the group entities
engaging in multiple business segments. Management considered that it is
impracticable or not meaningful in allocating to different segments.

Unallocated liabilities mainly represented certain borrowings, certain payables
and deferred income of the group entities engaging in multiple business
segments. Management considered that it is impracticable or not meaningful
in allocating to different segments.

B fF B 1% R B 5
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

(i) Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 (i)

DEBER (&)
HE_T-_—4F+=-A=+—HL
FEMDHBEEREARATHIT

December 2021 are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021: BZEZ-E-—##+=-H=+—H

ILEE:
Construction
Wastewater Water and sales of  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
BFREE ik REHE EREE Hftr AAE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETR ARETR AR%ETx
Gross segment revenue AR 3,387,304 921,809 185,511 754,765 79,798 — 5329187
Inter-segment revenue HEEkE - = (48,444) = = = (48,444)
Revenue from external customers REMBEFHBA 3,387,304 921,809 137,067 754,765 79,798 — 5280743
Revenue from contracts with BREEH B
customers
— Recognised at a point in time - RE-KHRER - 700,091 18,550 - - - 718,641
- Recognised at over time - RE-REEA 2,697,007 172,748 118,517 695,990 79,798 - 3,764,060
Revenue from other sources Etk ARE
- Finance income - BEKA 690,297 48,970 — 58,775 - — 798,042
Gross profit ES] 1,089,813 161,201 (1,574) 45,154 21,970 - 1,316,564
Other income ElA 54,080
Other gains — net =0 ulenyet 164,333
Selling expenses HERZ (48,374)
Administrative expenses TR (650,674)
Net impairment losses on financial and B R AN EERIE
contract assets BRTE (419,125)
Finance costs — net RERNTFE (1,526,254)
Share of profit/(loss) of investments MR ZABORLRE
accounted for using the equity wFl/ (58) 58
method — net 36,370 8,862 16,457 (2,389) 1,928 17,289 78,517
Loss before income tax FEHAIEE (1,030,933)
Income tax expenses FERRAZ (24,321)
Loss for the year FRER (1,055,254)
Depreciation and amortisation FENES (164,981) (251,987) (12,703) (204,445) (6,487) (22,725) (663,328)
Segment assets PBEE 23,136,847 8,425,005 5,985,077 8,418,512 1,772,449 687,730 48,425,620
Segment assets include: PPEERSE:
Investments accounted for using the — BEZEAREIRE
equity method 58,287 - - 39,200 987,264 - 1,084,751
Segment liabilities AEEE 12,946,848 1,192,607 5,288,207 3,510,081 767,151 17,122,588 40,827,482
Additions to non-current assets (other  JEREIEENRE
than financial instruments and (BT ANEREAMEH
deferred income tax assets) BERI) 2,043,812 119,749 207,613 409,046 770,469 45,499 3,596,188
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PR TS SRR BT A

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 7HMER(HF)
Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 (i) Hz—_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HLt
December 2021 are as follows: (Continued) FEMNIHBEEREARAITHOT
(%) :
Year ended 31 December 2020: B8z-_F-_FEF5+_-_A=+—H
LFE:
Construction
Wastewater Water  and salesof  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
KRR 7K SEHE EERE Eft KAR @it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTr ARETn ARETn ARETR ARET:
Gross segment revenue AEREEE 5,286,533 975,588 1,912,808 1,346,698 166,699 — 9,688,326
Inter-segment revenue DRk — —  (1,291,696) — — —  (1,291,69)
Revenue from external customers RENMPZP A 5,286,533 975,588 621,112 1,346,698 166,699 — 839,630
Revenue from contracts with BEPAH WA
customers
— Recognised at a point in time - RE-BERD = 683,764 324,143 = = = 1,007,907
- Recognised at over time - RE-BEEZ 4,695,819 241,824 296,969 1,300,224 166,699 — 6,701,535
Revenue from other sources ik AR
- Finance income - BERA 590,714 50,000 — 46,474 — — 687,188
Gross profit ES| 1,314,752 270,890 344,473 110,239 55,778 — 2,096,132
Other income HitA 86,668
Other gains — net Hi 38 48,810
Selling expenses HERY (42,445)
Administrative expenses TBRx (441,692)
Net impairment losses on financial and £ &R A HAEHE
contract assets BEFE (70,156)
Finance costs — net BERKNFE (1,253,263)
Share of profit/(loss) of investments DR Z AR REIERE
accounted for using the equity wF/ (BE) 58
method — net 29,699 8,918 15,299 50,231 3,499 (29,076) 78,570
Profit before income tax PG ATE R 502,624
Income tax expenses MR (161,313)
Profit for the year EREFI 341,311
Depreciation and amortisation FEMES (152,699) (222,33) (13,052) (175,052) (15,320) (12,521) (590,877)
Segment assets HPBEE 21,570,460 8,254,206 6,788,458 9,076,813 986,914 575,963 47,252,814
Segment assets include: ;}%E@}
Investments accounted for using the  SUEZEABRMIRE
equity method 265,724 55,507 60,660 192,462 38,033 240,398 852,784
Segment liabilities AHEE 10,110,711 1364570 4,327,386 3,203,200 777924 19,861461 39,645,252
Additions to non-current assets (other  JERBEEMNRE
than financial instruments and (ERIEARMETAHER
deferred income tax assets) ZEBRIN) 5,295,921 731,037 333,046 1,292,150 21,306 16,066 7,689,526
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FF B 75 i % B RE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. OEER(EF)
(i) Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the (i HHBEERBENUAR LA EH
financial statements. The table of segment assets/liabilities by region is BMEPFE - TR IR
as follows: ErmoHEEAE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—AH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT R ARKETTT

Segment assets PEHEE
— Mainland China - PEIRRE 46,277,480 45,097,231
— Indonesia - HIJE 925,306 913,764
— Thailand - ZH 410,617 548,210
- Hong Kong - PEES 108,358 109,881
- Singapore — ¥ 16,129 7,765
Total segment assets DEEELRTE 47,737,890 46,676,851
— Unallocated - Aok 687,730 575,963
Total assets BEE 48,425,620 47,252,814
Segment liabilities PEBEE
- Mainland China - PEIRRE 23,173,420 19,146,912
— Indonesia - EIfE 407,133 450,828
— Thailand - RH 72,251 142,730
— Singapore - AN 31,811 23,651
- Hong Kong - FEEE 20,279 19,670
Total segment liabilities NEBELRTE 23,704,894 19,783,791
— Unallocated - XPH 17,122,588 19,861,461
Total liabilities BEE 40,827,482 39,645,252
Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into at terms and SDEEERILHTIVIEE AT
conditions agreed upon by respective parties. Eliminations comprise IR R E ST - Y B E D
inter-segment trade and non-trade balances. Pricing policy for inter- MEESRIIEES &8 - oI HE
segment transactions is determined by reference to market price. RO TERERREMERE
JE °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The revenue of group entities from external customers broken down

by location of the goods or services are delivered to is shown in the

table below.

5.

B 0 B 1% 4

2 EER (F)
o O 6 1 R S o
H 321 8 R A 0 0 36 05

(iii)

BRARES T & °

7= B 5

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1t—-HLFE

2021 2020

— B T -TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREEF T

Mainland China EeEipN 5,144,711 7,982,874
Indonesia e 95,795 356,607
Thailand ZRE 40,176 55,239
Hong Kong P EES 61 1,910
5,280,743 8,396,630

Breakdown of the revenue from all services and sales of goods is as

follows:

(iv)

BEAREREEEMmEENI

mZ RAESIMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—-BLEE

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ETF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥® T ARKETT

Operating services EERTE 2,053,894 1,825,725

Construction services BER® 2,211,942 5,095,906

Finance income A& WA 798,042 687,188
Engineering — Procurement — Construction #it — ]RiE — BT

("EPC”) and sales of equipment ( TEPC] ) RRfEHE 137,067 621,112

Others HAth 79,798 166,699

5,280,743 8,396,630
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. oXER(F)
(v)  Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (v BEFPIVANHBZEEKSA
{35
The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities related AEBBOCHEANTERFIIY
to contracts with customers: EHEBZEEREE :

As at 31 As at 31

December December

2021 2020

R-TB-—F RZTEZTF

+=A +=A

Ear=1 =+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Contract assets — Non-current ABREE — R

— Related to wastewater treatment services - EEKERIERSE 10,349,156 8,730,148
— Related to construction services - SRS A 901,993 908,973
— Related to solid waste treatment services — HA[ERERR IR ARG A B 866,662 746,511
— Related to water supply services - BAHOKARTS B #E 606,886 579,961
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (24,606) (5,760)
12,700,091 10,959,833

Contract assets — Current BHEE — RE
— Related to wastewater treatment services - BEKERIERBEEH 276,192 285,711
— Related to construction services - B ERRTS B R 190,970 262,026
— Related to water supply services - AR ARTS B B 19,421 17,733
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (541) —
486,042 565,470
13,186,133 11,525,303

Contract liabilities — Current EHEE — BB
— Related to construction services - HEEREE 44,936 53,138
— Related to water supply services - BEHOKRISE A 34,211 28,551
— Related to solid waste treatment services - HEERIERSEE M 8,197 6,462
87,344 88,151
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6. OTHER INCOME 6. HMWA
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—-BLEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
Government grants B F Y 39,093 41,938
Value-added tax refunds IEFRT 9,547 16,355
Miscellaneous income BN 5,440 28,375
54,080 86,668
7. OTHER GAINS — NET 7. Hit == F5E
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+—BLEE
2021 2020
- —fF —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®EF T
Penalty expenditure bS5 (40,865) —
Net gain on disposal of investments in a HE—FHHMBAR - GE AR R
subsidiary, joint ventures and an associate —HBEARIREELN
s FEE 42,538 42,397
Fair value gain on derivative assets relating to B — R A RIIREAEREN
investment in an associate (note 16(b-2)) PTHEEEMN AT ERE
(Mi3E16(b-2)) 170,164 —
Others Hi (7,504) 6,413
164,333 48,810
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8. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL AND 8.

CONTRACT ASSETS

ERRENEERERFE

HH

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEFTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTF T
Impairment losses on BEEE
- Trade receivables - E S RIa 305,892 59,766
— Other receivables - EfhpEUGRIE 80,893 1,040
— Contract assets - BREE 19,387 5,760
— Receivables under service concession - R ETHETH
arrangements JE S k18 12,953 3,590
419,125 70,156
9. EXPENSES BY NATURE 9. BEMEETHREX
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=1+-HLEFE
2021 2020
—EBE-——F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBTF T
Employee benefit expenses (note 10) EERAMFEX (MiEE10) 666,450 588,882
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BB REEITE
(note 17) (M$3E17) 210,675 191,652
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 19) FRELENE (ME19) 22,688 24,430
Depreciation of investment properties (note 18) BEMENE (H:E18) 845 845
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 21) | EEEE (MisE21) 429,120 373,950
Impairment of intangible assets (note 21) mivEERE (ME21) 198,155 —
Impairment of prepayments (note 23) TERFIERE (HE23) 39,267 —
Legal and professional fee EEREXEER 18,725 34,589
Auditor's remuneration 2% B Bl 355 B 7,450 7,450
— Audit services - B RS 7,250 7,250
— Non-audit services - JEERT RIS 200 200
Electricity, raw materials consumptions and other — &LRBHEH - RIEDEFER
costs for operating services HAbRL A 815,387 639,689
Costs of construction services FEIERRIGAR AR 2,017,032 4,524,020
Costs of EPC and sales of equipment EPC % $H & sX AR AR 115,295 247,449
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING 10. EERABEX — BFEES
[

g8
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS &
Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREFTT
Wages and salaries TERF® 468,689 462,065
Pension costs of defined contribution plans TE R KA BIR IR KSR AR 63,091 10,710
Housing funds, medical insurances and FEAES  BERRRK

other social insurances Hiptt &R MR 73,964 58,520
Other welfare and allowance H AR RAEF 60,706 57,587
666,450 588,882

(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EBBEEHF AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group KREBRAFEENRESSHA

TERE—Z(ZZE=-ZF : WA)

B Hi & RERM 39677

DI e RAFERSBTEE(ZT

follows: ZEF  ZR)ATEMOBMEN
TR :

for the year include one (2020: two) directors, whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis shown in note 39. The emoluments payable
to the remaining four (2020: three) individuals during the year are as

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+t-BLEE

2021 2020
—E_—F T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREFTT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EX¥e - EFEERL
other benefits in kind HithEWEF 2,879 2,594
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING 10.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group fell
within the following bands:

EERANAX —BEES

<= (&)

() TEBEFHAL(H)
AEEZSHTALOHEN T
UTHE :

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
Emolument bands B 462
AR#445,000T2
AR #889,0007T
RMB445,000 to RMB889,000 (equivalent (% 7°500,000%8 T E
to HKD500,000 to HKD1,000,000) 1,000,000/ 7T ) 4 2

AR 889,000t 2
AE¥1,334,0007T

RMB889,000 to RMB1,334,000 (equivalent (F8%#21,000,000/8 T =
to HKD 1,000,000 to HKD1,500,000) 1,500,000/ 7T ) — 1
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11. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

1. AEKRARBEX

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t-BLEE

2021 2020
—B-—fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARKEFT
Finance income AE WA
— Interest income - FIEMA 10,932 13,825
— Net exchange gains on financing activities - RETEEAME N TR
(note a) (Mizta) = 15,170
10,932 28,995
Finance costs RE A
— Borrowing costs — {ERRBAR (1,631,394) (1,477,909)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets W BEREER
(note b) ERtberE (HiEb) 139,644 204,006
(1,491,750) (1,273,903)
- Net exchange loss on financing activities - REREHE K IR R
(note a) (Pff7ta) (33,712) —
— Unwinding of provision (note 33) - RBREME (PMHFE33) (11,724) (8,355)
(1,537,186) (1,282,258)
Finance costs — net A KA (1,526,254) (1,253,263)

(@ Amounts mainly represented the exchange gains or losses of

translating financial assets and liabilities denominated in Non-

functional currencies.

(b)  Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of
5.73% for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 5.74%).

(a) MFEXIBHEMENFIREE
FHENREEERBENENA

by #H=E-_ZT-_—F+-HA=+—H

EFE - BREARTIR5.73% (=
Z-FF 5.74%) B INETF BT
T INEARE -
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

174

12. FREHEX

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+t-BLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ZEFTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R AR T T
Current income tax BIEARRIS B
— Corporate income tax - REFFH 146,046 239,640
Deferred income tax EEFTISHE
— Corporate income tax - EMEH (121,725) (78,327)
24,321 161,313

(a)

(b)

PRC corporate income tax

Certain subsidiaries in certain industries operating in the western
region of Mainland China can enjoy a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 15%, provided their revenues generated from main
operating activities accounted for more than 70% of their total
revenues of the period.

Certain subsidiaries operating wastewater and solid waste treatment
projects in Mainland China are eligible for a tax holiday of three-year
full exemption followed by three-year half exemption of corporate
income tax commencing from their first year generating operating
revenue.

Except for preferential treatments available to certain subsidiaries as
mentioned above, other subsidiaries within the Group in Mainland
China are subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of
25% (2020: 25%).

Thailand corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Thailand is
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 20% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: The subsidiary operating solid
waste treatment project in Thailand is eligible for an eight-year tax
holiday of full exemption from July 2013 to June 2020 and subject to
corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 20% from July 2020).
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—ETFEANANELBE
BE-ZE-_ZEFtLtARBKRET/HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Hong Kong profits tax
The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group did
not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: same).

Indonesia corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Indonesia is
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 22% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profit of the group entities as follows:

AN

A G B 15 SRR BT &

12. RS (&

(c)

(d)

EBRNNEH

BE-_F_—%+=-A=t—~H
IEFE  BRANBENEHHE
5165% (ZB-FF :16.5%) °

BRASEREZ T - —F
+Z A=+ BLEEEIEESR
BEEBRRTES - 0 TR
EREFNEHBEB(ZE_FF : 1§
@) o

HELEMEH
HE—_ZT-_—F+=-A=+—H
IEFE  EHRKEEERER
B &K B A B BIR22%H) 55 E B
EEMTCEMBR(ZE_ZF -
HE) o

A& B % P15 A5 A& A IR IR A
B RE B A & E R s A
N F AR ENERS
BoAEWOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t-HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETT
(Loss)/profit before income tax Frisfisn (Ei8) wF (1,030,933) 502,624
Less: Share of profits of investments W AR A ARRE)
accounted for using the equity method FEME1RE = A (78,517) (78,570)
(1,109,450) 424,054
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits  1%ZARI A &% & A Y
in the respective companies MEGENFIIE (231,774) 104,131
Effect of tax losses not recognised as deferred RIERBELEFEHREER
income tax assets MBEENTE 221,091 24,501
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax AR 2
purpose 35,004 32,681
Income tax expenses FrisfiF s 24,321 161,313
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 12. RSB (A&
(d) Indonesia corporate income tax (Continued) (d) ENE¥FFmBHR (&)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry- MEE O REEEMBER ZET
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit FMIEHEEERRNEBREF R
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December AEARRKERHTBNER 218
2021, the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of MNeR—_E-_—F+-_A=+—
RMB264,900,000 (2020: RMB43,809,000) in respect of tax losses B AEBTERATLEEIKHEX
amounting to RMB1,231,498,000 (2020: RMB208,518,000) that can RIERBRAHNTIEEBARE
be carried forward against future taxable income, which will expire by 1,231,498,000 L (= &F = T 4 :
2026. A R 208,518,000 7T ) # 3R i 1
FT 158 & & A R #264,900,0007T
(ZZ-ZF : AR¥43,809,000
L) BEBR - NFRikES
ZI|Hf o
13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BR(BR) &F
(a) Basic (a) EXR

The basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares issued during the year ended 31 December

BEREANBEIZARR LT EBKRE
EEBEERUNBEZE_ZT=_—F
+—A=Z+—BLFEEEETH

2021. EER T E -
Year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=+—BHLEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_FF
(Loss)/profit attributable to the ordinary AR EBIRA R FE(L
shareholders of the Company (RMB’000) (E548) % F
(ARETT) (1,001,876) 223,095
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BT T AR NI T 8
in issue (thousands) (%) 1,193,213 1,193,213
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RMB per share)  &RERN (Fi8) /&F
(BERAR®T) (0.840) 0.187
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as there
were no potential diluted ordinary shares outstanding as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Diluted earnings per share is the same as
basic earnings per share as there were no potential diluted ordinary
shares outstanding as at 31 December 2020).

DIVIDENDS

At the board of directors meeting held on 31 March 2022, the directors
of the Company did not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB0.06 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB71,593,000) out of retained earnings of
the Company.

The 2020 dividends of RMB21,166,000 were paid in August 2021.

13.

14.

B fF B 1% R B 5

BR(EBE)BRE)

(b) #%
BHREBEZE-_ZE=-—F+=A
=+ —BUWEBTEINELE
BEER HEREEEERS
BEAESEMER(ZZ-Z2F : &
EZEZ-_ZFF+-A=+—HT
WMETEINNEBEER T LB
WEREERFNEGRELZT
HE) o

i 2
E-ZE-_—_F=A=+—HB87HNES
CEFL  ARAESTEAREE=
T —FF+ A=+ HLEFEBAR
AIRBEMNPEMNTMAPRE(ZF
—TF  gRETBRARKCGT - &
H4 ARH71,593,0007T) °

il

—E_TFREARY21,166,0007LF
RZZFBE=_—FNAKM -
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15. SUBSIDIARIES 15. BﬁE’Aﬁ
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021, LTRZZTE-_—F+=ZRAR=+—H=*
all of which are private limited liability companies: ZEA ﬂ%ﬁ CHARELETERA

Al

Ownership

Place of interests held

incorporation Ownership by the non-

and operation, Issued and interests held controlling

kind of legal fully paid-up by the Group interests (%)

Name (note a) entity capital (%) (note ¢)  Principal activities

aEff R FEREREMN

EXWER BRTR rEBEMN BEADL (%)

=18 (M &Ea) FERRER BEHAERE BEAD (%) (Miake) FEZEH

Dali Water Industry The PRC, RMB 45 (2020: 45) 55(2020: 55) Wastewater treatment
Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability 165,051,000 and water supply
("Dali Water") company**

REBKBERRE HE AR 45 55 )57KERIE Rk
AR AE BREMRR* 165,051,0007c (ZZZFF :45) (ZZEZTF :55)

( TREAXE])

Yunnan Yun Shui The PRC, RMB 57 (2020: 61) 43(2020: 39) Environmental protection
Construction & limited liability 913,405,000 equipment sales and
Engineering Co., Ltd company** construction

EREKERIRE HE AR 57 43 BRRJBEHERER
AT BB EERF** 913,405,000t (ZZ-ZF :61) (ZZT-FF :39)

Yunnan OriginWater The PRC, RMB 57 (2020: 61) 43(2020: 39) Environmental protection
Membrane limited liability 55,614,800 equipment sales
Technology Co., Ltd. company**

ERMRERRERHR HE AR 57 43 BRRJBHE
BEREFEAT BB EERF** 55,614,800t (ZZE-FF :61) (ZTZTF :39)

Jinghong Water Supply The PRC, RMB 51(2020: 51) 49 (2020: 49) Wastewater treatment
and Drainage Co., Ltd. limited liability 80,000,000 and water supply

company**

SORmAATEK R ARY 51 49 KGR KK
BEREFEAT BB EERR** 80,000,000t (ZZ-FF :51) (ZEBZZF 49)
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

15. B D B (#4&)

Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation Ownership by the non-
and operation, Issued and interests held controlling
kind of legal fully paid-up by the Group interests (%)
Name (note a) entity capital (%) (note ¢)  Principal activities
iR FEREREWN
EEBER BRTR AEBEM BEADL(%)
L GED) FERERER BEHAERE EEAD (%) (MiaEe) FEEH
Yunnan Zhengxiao The PRC, RMB 100 (2020: 100) — (2020: —) Solid waste treatment
Environmental limited liability 30,500,000
Investment Co., Ltd company**
EHERRRIRE FE - AR 100 —  ERERE
BRAT BRETAF* 30,500,000t (ZZZTF :100) (ZTZTF:—)
Yunnan Water Hong Kong HKD 100 (2020: 100) —(2020: —) Investment in
(Hong Kong) 1,735,147,000 wastewater treatment
Company Limited and water supply
EfKE (BH) HEEE BT 100 —  REFKEEREK
RN BRA A 1,735,147,000 (ZZZ=TF :100) (ZZTZTF:—)
Huize Water (Qingzhou) The PRC, RMB 100 (2020: 100) —(2020: —)  Water supply
Company Limited limited liability 53,152,000
company*
BEKEG (BM) HE AR 100 — K
BRAT BRETAR 53,152,000t (ZZTZTF :100) (ZTZTF:—)
PT Sumber Organik Indonesia IDR 95 (2020: 95) 5(2020: 5) Solid waste treatment
Indonesia 10,250,000,000
Hfe 10,250,000,000 95 5 [ERERRE
NEE (ZT=ZFF :95) (ZZ=ZTF:5)
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15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

180

%\
it

15. B D B (#4&)

Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation Ownership by the non-
and operation, Issued and interests held controlling
kind of legal fully paid-up by the Group interests (%)
Name (note a) entity capital (%) (note ¢)  Principal activities
iR FEREREWN
EEBER BRTR AEBEM BEADL(%)
L GED) FERERER BEHAERE EEAD (%) (MiaEe) FEEH
Shandong Tengyue The PRC, RMB 97 (2020: 97) 3(2020: 3) Solid waste treatment
Dangerous Chemical limited liability 108,571,429
Wastes research and company**
treatment Co., Ltd.
(“Shandong Tengyue")
R BfelmERY) PR AR 97 3 BEERE
HEREERAR BREMRR 108,571,429 (ZZEZFF :97) (ZT=TF :3)
(MEEE] )
Tai'an Tengyue The PRC, RMB 97 (2020: 97) 3(2020: 3) Solid waste treatment
Environmental limited liability 10,000,000
Protection Technology company**
Co., Ltd.
FLTERRERER HE ARY 97 3 EERE
BRAA AREERA* 10,000,000t (ZZ=F% :97) (ZZ=FF :3)
Jinan Yunshui Tengyue The PRC, RMB 97 (2020: 97) 3(2020: 3) Solid waste treatment
Environmental Industry limited liability 50,000,000
Co., Ltd. ("Jinan company**
Yunshui Tengyue”)
B EKERRREH HE ARE 97 3 ERERE
ARAT AREERA* 50,000,000 (ZFTZFF :97) (ZZ=FF :3)
( [BEEKER] )
Xinjiang Qinggeda The PRC, RMB 100 (2020: 100) —(2020: —) Wastewater treatment
Yunshui Environmental limited liability 227,500,000
Industry Investment company**
and Development
Co., Ltd.
MEBEREDKRR e AR 100 —  AKER
REBRAR BREMRR 227,500,000t (ZZT=FF :100) (ZT=TF:—)
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15. i 1 8 (&)
Ownership
Place of interests held
incorporation Ownership by the non-
and operation, Issued and interests held controlling
kind of legal fully paid-up by the Group interests (%)
Name (note a) entity capital (%) (note ¢)  Principal activities
iR FEREREWN
EEBER BRTR AEBEM BEADL(%)
L GED) FERERER BEHAERE EEAD (%) (MiaEe) FEEH
Langfang Hyflux The PRC, us$ 100 (2020: 100) —(2020: —) Wastewater treatment
NewsSpring Co., Ltd. limited liability 12,400,000
company*
RS S8 SRR FE - 12,400,0003 T 100 —  KERE
BRAT] BREMFAF* (ZZ=ZZTF 1000 (ZF=ZF:—)
Xinjiang Yunshui The PRC, RMB 100 (2020: 100) —(2020: —) Wastewater treatment
Environmental limited liability 500,000,000
Industry Investment company**
and Development
Co., Ltd.
METKRRIRE el AR 100 —  AKER
BRAA BREMRR* 500,000,000t (ZFT=FF :100) (ZT=_TF:—)
Guizhou Renhuai The PRC, RMB 90 (2020: 90) 10 (2020:10) Wastewater treatment
Yunshui Environmental limited liability 522,839,000
Industry Co., Ltd. company**
EMCEEKRER el AR 90 10 AKER
BRAA BREMRR* 522,839,000t (ZZTZ-Zf:90) (ZZZTF :10)
* Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law * REEPBEEEIMAIEBE L%
*x Registered as domestic enterprises under the PRC law *k RiERBEEEIMAERND ¥
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15. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

182

(a)

The English names of these subsidiaries referred to in this report
represent management’s best effort at translating the Chinese names

of those companies, as no English names have been registered.

According to the capital injection agreement date in 9 April 2014, the
Group and the minority shareholders will hold 45% and 55% equity
interests of Dali Water, respectively. As at 31 December 2021, The
Group has controlled Dali Water through an agreement entered into
with one of minority shareholders of Dali Water pursuant to which
the minority shareholder confirmed to act in accordance with the
Group in decision on relevant activities of Dali Water. (2020: same).

The total non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2021 are RMB1,961,636,000 (2020:
RMB1,932,201,000), and are considered individually immaterial to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of investment in
subsidiaries pledged as security for borrowings are RMB3,133,640,000
(2020: RMB1,339,307,000).

In December 2021 and January 2022, lenders of certain Overdue
Borrowings had taken for property preservation by judicatory, which
included frozen of the Group’s 100% equity interests in a subsidiary
with net asset value of RMB177,406,000 as at 31 December 2021.
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15. B D B (#4&)

(a)

AR E PR A B 5% M B A Al Y
RXERDEEBZENBEESP
XEBOER  REZRKEEM
EMRERXEHE -

BEBHAE-_ZT—NEMNA A
AR EERpE  A5EHED
HRFAG D BlIF A REKKBEA5%
MES%HARIE - B E T = —4F
+—A=+—8 KREBEBE—
PEHEGB -2 RIBKBEDHBRE
FIT T 3 89 5 3% 1 122 il K 3B 7K 75 19
AR B PERERER T
1 A K32 K 15 9 #8 B OE B R
RERAEE -—RTH(ZT=Z
F:ER) -

R—ZE-_—-—F+=-RA=+—H
EEMBARIMIEERERE
A AR1,961,636,0007T(=
T -FTF : AR¥1,932,201,000
TL)  MOAEAR A ¥ AN 5 B (R Bl 3
BR

RZEZ—F+=A=+—
B X EEBEARY
3,133,640,0007T K 7 Hf BB 2 7 &9
REGIEER(Z T -FF : A
R #1,339,307,0007C) °

RZEZ—F+ZRAR=ZF=Z
F—R BETaHERONERA
ERBAVEFRETVERS
EFOEREAREBIEENE A
AIE100% R  R_T = —F
+=—A=+—8 ZKMEBAAKN
EEFEAARKI177,406,000
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

U RERZEARNRE

NEHEERBRRERNSREDOT

As at 31 December

R+=-—B=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREF T
Joint ventures (note a) & e (Mizka) 39,200 728,050
Associates (note b) BN E (Biskb) 1,045,551 124,734
1,084,751 852,784

The amounts recognised in the profit or loss accounts are as follows:

NEBE@EEBENSEDT :

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—BHLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Joint ventures AENF]
— Share of profit for the year - BEREF 75,004 73,252
Associates =Nl
— Share of profit for the year - BIEFRE A 3,513 5318
78,517 78,570
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16.
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(@) Investments in joint ventures

LESRZEARNKRE (F)
(a) REEQFAMNRKRE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=+—BLtEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARB T T

Balance at 1 January R—A—BH&EE 728,050 976,601
Addition = = 40,000
Share of profit for the year R FEREF 75,004 73,252
Dividends declared by a joint venture REEERAIEIRARS = (29,000)
Disposal (note b-2) HE (MiaEb-2) (763,854) (332,803)
Balance at 31 December R+t-—A=+—BW&Es 39,200 728,050

(a-1) The Group has interests in joint ventures that is accounted for

(a-1) AEBFARGLRANKET)

using the equity method. LARE 25 R ABR ©

Percentage of ownership interest
As at 31 December

Place of business/ FEEERZRBES
country of R+=—A=+—8H
Name of entity incorporation 2021 2020
—E 3.1
BEREE AR S B B =R —E=—F —_T_TF
Beijing Bailigerui Resources Technology PRC 40.00% 40.00%
Company Limited (“Beijing Bailigerui”)
EREMBRIREREHRBERAE P
( THEREFEIR] )
Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental Protection PRC N/A 49.00%
Company Limited (“Haiyun Environmental
Protection”)
MDBERRER A (EEERR]) P T~ER
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. UEHZEARNRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(a) Investments in joint ventures (Continued) () REERTANRE(E)
(@-2) The table below provide summarised financial information of (a-2) TR E R A £ E IR
joint ventures that are individually immaterial to the Group. EANEGERANTEKE
e
2021 2020
=E=—F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETF T
Aggregate carrying amount of individually ERITERE & REIH
immaterial joint ventures BERTE(E 39,200 728,050
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of: REESEATEIES
4FE
— Profit from continuing operations and total - REFBEEE
comprehensive income FEREE R A K
iRE e 2 5E 75,004 73,252
(b) Investments in associates (b) REEELQNTNKRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t-BLEE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Balance at 1 January R—HA—BW&EeR 124,734 119,416
Addition (note b-2) AE (MizEb-2) 947,304 —
Share of profit for the year FEAG FF 5 F) 3,513 5,318
Disposal HeE (30,000) —
Balance at 31 December RtT=-—A=+-—HMNEe 1,045,551 124,734
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

186

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

using the equity method.

(b-1) The Group has interests in associates that is accounted for

16.

DR EARNKRE (AF)

(b) RBEQXTNWRE(H)

(b-1) AEHEFRREE QAR
COEPN 5, N

Percentage of ownership interest
As at 31 December

Place of business/ FrEEEZESHL
country of BR+=-—B=+—H
Name of entity incorporation 2021 2020
—E 31
EREE = EX 32 B9 Bl =R B —F —T_TF
Zhejiang Qianjiang Biochemical Co., Ltd. PRC 20.24% N/A
("Qianjiang Biochemical”) (note b-2)
ANIETEDLEROBRAR A EY T iE A
(M#1Et]) ) (Fdatb-2)
Langfang Yunxin Environmental Protection PRC 49.00% 49.00%
Company Limited (“Langfang Yunxin”)
BT EIIRFAEER AR A EY
( [EHEHF] )
Beijing Kunlun Coastal Sensing Technology PRC 25.00% 25.00%
Co., Ltd.
EREREFERRMAERAR il
Qingdao Yuanchuang Energy Conservation and  PRC 15.00% 15.00%
Environmental Protection Venture Investment
Fund Partnership (Limited partnership)
SEREISMERRAZEREESEREE [
(BER&R)
Henan Liwei Biological Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd PRC 40.00% 40.00%
Yellow River New Energy Branch
AEMEEDERRNHBERAF H

FAFTRERD A Al
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investments in associates (Continued)

16. LEBZEZEARNKRE (F)

(b) RBEQXTNWRE(H)

(b-2) On 6 June 2021, the Company entered into an Equity b-2) RZE-_—F,xA/,8"

Acquisition and Share Issuance Agreement with Qianjiang
Biochemical, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to dispose of its 49% equity interests in Haiyun
Environmental Protection to Qianjiang Biochemical at a
consideration of RMB777,140,000 to be settled by issuance of
new shares of Qianjiang Biochemical to the Company which
represented approximately 20.24% equity interest in Qianjiang
Biochemical. On the same date, the Company entered into
a profit guarantee agreement with Qianjiang Biochemical,
pursuant to which the Company undertook to indemnify
Qianjiang Biochemical in the event that Haiyun Environmental
Protection fails to achieve any of the accumulated minimum net
profit as agreed for each of year ending 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023, the Company shall compensate Qiaojiang
Biochemical of certain number of Qiaojiang Biochemical's shares
held by the Company calculated according to the proportion
of actual shortfall in net profit out of the agreed minimum
net profit, the shares will be transferred at their par value
of RMB1 each and will be cancelled after they are return to
Qianjiang Biochemical. In the event that the actual shortfall
of net profit exceeds the agreed minimum net profit, the
compensation of exceeding shortfall should be made up by
cash. On 23 December 2021, the aforesaid equity transaction
has been completed and the Group recognised the investment
in Qianjiang Biochemical of RMB947,304,000 according to
the fair value of the 20.24% equity interest of Qianjiang
Biochemical as of 23 December 2021 and a fair value gain of
RMB170,164,000.

In December 2021 and January 2022, lenders of certain
Overdue Borrowings had taken for property preservation by
judicatory, which frozen of the Group’s 18.42% equity interests
in Qianjiang Biochemical with carrying value of investment in
associates of RMB862,121,000 as at 31 December 2021.

ANAREETHENFTR
WA KRBT &
I - AR AB GRERE AR
& AR ¥777,140,000 7T #5
EFEANEZRIR4I9% MK
BHEFEIEL  REH
HREBTEERMAR T
THRNEE(BITERD
20.24%R &) - BB - AR
A 8T A (LT S & FITE A
HEmRZE B - AAFE
HIMEERRAEREE=
T ZF__Fk=-
T-=F+=ZA=+—AH1t
EFEEENK R REFF
B AR A EAREFFEMN
#) 58 AR T FI Bt 1 80 B BR
EREEBETECHELRAR
HEME THENEIEEL
Rfn - ZERMDEAGRE
BEARBITHEREBE
WESERE T AL EEH o
WFFHHOERZEEBLY
ESEFAE - BlEBREE
WHERNRSEE - R
T-—F+=ZA=+=8 "
FRERSEEK - RE
—E-—F+=ZA=+=H
BT A£162024% M EH D
FE & AR 170,164,000
THAFERE - ANEE R
REBTEENREBAR
#947,304,0007T °

RZEZ—F+ZAK=
TZ-F—Rf  AT@EE
HHERAD BB AERE
FERBVERDER RN
—E-—F+=-R=+—
BREASEEBEE I AL
B 18.42%0% 7 K 1 Bt &
ARMBERTMEARE
862,121,0007T ©
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. LEBEARNKRE (F)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investments in associates (Continued) (b) REtENTINIRE (&)
(b-3) The table below provide summarised financial information for (b-3) TR E R ¥ A& B3~
associates that are individually immaterial to the Group. BAMNBERNRNTEE
e
2021 2020
—E-—F T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETF T
Aggregate carrying amount of individually BRI~ EAHE A FIH
immaterial associates BERTE(E 1,045,551 124,734
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of: REESEATEIES
e
— Profit from continuing operations and total - REFEKE
comprehensive income EBERD RN K
e W ERE 3,513 5,318
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. % BERRZRE

Electronic
Plants and Motor  equipment  Construction
buildings Machinery vehicles  and others in progress Total
EFHRER
BERET e Pk Hity ERIR f@st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETn ARETR ARBTT ARETn ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R-B-ZF
—RA—-B
Cost 5% 1,237,604 1,757,963 76,541 152,903 963,096 4,188,107
Accumulated depreciation 2t g (248,456) (621,794) (58,626) (81,780) —  (1,010,656)
Net book amount BREFE 989,148 1,136,169 17,915 71,123 963,096 3,177,451
Year ended 31 December 2020 Hz-z-Z2H
+=B=+-H
ILFE
Opening net book amount BYIREFE 989,148 1,136,169 17,915 71,123 963,096 3,177,451
Additions RE 27,209 212,239 6,125 14,915 839,586 1,100,074
Transfer from construction in progress —~ B EERIR 81,869 129,931 — — (211,800) =
Transfer from investment properties ERERENE
(note 18) (FfizE18) 122 - — — — 122
Disposals & — — (29) (@,117) = (4,146)
Depreciation charge (note 9) &R (MiE9) (43,813) (117,11) (11,655) (19,073) — (191,652)
Closing net book amount BRREFE 1,054,535 1,361,228 12,356 62,848 1,590,882 4,081,849
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EF
+ZA=t+-H
Cost AR 1,347,153 2,100,133 82,544 163,203 1,590,882 5,283,915
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (292,618) (738,905) (70,188) (100,355) —  (1,202,066)
Net book amount REFE 1,054,535 1,361,228 12,356 62,848 1,590,882 4,081,849
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& F B 1% R B 5

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

190

17. ¥ -BERKRE(E)

(Continued)
Electronic
Plants and Motor  equipment  Construction
buildings Machinery vehicles  and others in progress Total
EFHRER
Bz RkET i g HE Hit ERIR @5t
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARBTR ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-B--§
+=B=+-H
LLEE
Opening net book amount BOEEFE 1,054,535 1,361,228 12,356 62,848 1,590,882 4,081,849
Additions N 3,897 20,808 2,146 5,975 363,627 396,453
Transfer from construction in progress ~ EREEEIR 241,065 160,714 — 64,137 (465,916) —
Disposals HeE (15,787) (517) (27) (332) - (16,663)
Depreciation charge (note 9) ERx (MiE9) (47.417)  (126,876) (11,630) (24,752) — (210,675)
Closing net book amount BARBREFE 1,236,293 1,415,357 2,845 107,876 1,488,593 4,250,964
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-F
+=B=+-H
Cost A 1,576,329 2,274,843 84,250 232,376 1,488,593 5,656,391
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (340,036)  (859,486) (81,405)  (124,500) —  (1,405,427)
Net book amount BEFE 1,236,293 1,415,357 2,845 107,876 1,488,593 4,250,964
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17.

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation was charged to profit or loss accounts under the following
caption:

17. ¥ BERRE(E)

FEDNERKRERNATER MR

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—BLEE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZEZTHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARKETT

Cost of sales SHE A 175,227 171,782
Administrative expenses TR 34,433 19,010
Selling expenses HERX 1,015 860
210,675 191,652

(@) As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for borrowings are RMB1,578,864,000
(2020: RMB1,348,533,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

@ RZZFEZ—F+=ZA=+-—
H X BHEEBEARE
1,578,864,000 T K ¥ % - W E K
REEER( S -ZTF 0 ARK

1,348,533,0007C) ©

18. REWY*

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t-BLEE

2021 2020

B —F —EETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARET T

Balance at 1 January N—B— B 23,960 24,927
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BEEYE - BB REE = (122)
Depreciation charge ERS (845) (845)
Balance at 31 December R+=-—A=+—BH&Ee 23,115 23,960

(@) The Group had no contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance as at 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

£

—

RZE-_—F+=ZA=+—81"
AEBVEABEEREELGD
BEE(ZZEZZF : HRA) -
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

18. REWME (&)

Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties were (b)

performed by independent third party valuers to determine the

fair value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2021.

The fair value of these investment properties as at 31 December

2021 as assessed by the valuers by direct comparison method were

approximately RMB38,531,000 (2020: RMB37,094,000).

19. LEASES

192
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AEBREMERBILE=F1H
EMETBYHE UBTHRE
MER-_ZT-_—F+=-_A=+—
BNAFE -ZSHREMER=
TE-_—F+-_A=1+—HHAF
B ER L E R ED
A A R¥38,531,000 (=2 - %
F : AR#37,094,0007T) °

19. HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. ARt EEAEE A& ANHEE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance () REtEEEBRERY
sheet 4 3
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating AMEEBRBEILTIATEEGH
to right-of-use assets: EEEAENSE
Land use Offices and
rights® warehouses Total
b {55 A RO WAEREE BEt
RMB ' 000 RMB ' 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 R-B-ZF—-H—H
Cost B AR 254,185 70,153 324,338
Accumulated depreciation ZEHNE (33,730) (19,925) (53,655)
Net book amount SR E 220,455 50,228 270,683
Year ended 31 December 2020 HBE-T_ZfF
+=A=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount ERFNAREFE 220,455 50,228 270,683
Additions NE 79,803 10,610 90,413
Currency translation differences BlmE =5 (149) = (149)
Depreciation charge (note 9) wERS (H:39) (10,230) (14,200) (24,430)
Closing net book amount HRERERE 289,879 46,638 336,517
At 31 December 2020 R-EB-ZF
+=A=+-8
Cost B AR 333,839 80,763 414,602
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (43,960) (34,125) (78,085)
Net book amount BRI E 289,879 46,638 336,517




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

19. LEASES (Continued) 19. HE (&
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) REHEEEBRERN
sheet (Continued) SE(E)
Land use Offices and
rights® warehouses Total
- i {55 A AEO BREREE 5T
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARKETT ARKETTT

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z—-—F

+=A=+-8

WHFE
Opening net book amount HRYIAREDFE 289,879 46,638 336,517
Additions NE 7,842 11,934 19,776
Currency translation differences B E =58 (215) — (215)
Depreciation charge (note 9) HERx (FHFE9) (9,696) (12,992) (22,688)
Closing net book amount HREREDFHE 287,810 45,580 333,390
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—fF

+=ZA=+—H
Cost XA 341,466 92,697 434,163
Accumulated depreciation e (53,656) (47,117) (100,773)
Net book amount BREFE 287,810 45,580 333,390
(i) The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China 0) 7R &= [E B A B oK P N ENFE K

and Indonesia government for fixed periods of 20 to 50 years. FalE TR ELHE - BEFE

HAPBR /20 % 50%F o
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19. LEASES (Continued)

194

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income shows the following amounts relating to leases:

19. *ﬂh (II'E
(b) REGHERREMESK

HmREANESHE
APHRRRAME S KERIIR
ATRAEAMNSE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FEREEERERX

Offices and warehouses WAEREE 12,992 14,200
Land use rights i R 9,696 10,230
22,688 24,430
The Group leases land use rights and various offices and warehouses. REBHRELTMFEREUANRZE
Rental contracts of offices and warehouses are typically made for MAERBEE -WMAEREBEN
fixed periods of 1 to 10 years. HEANBERIZ10EMETEH

(c) As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of land use rights
pledged as security for borrowings are RMB60,404,000 (2020:
RMB44,965,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS

The following is the summarised information of the financial asset
component (receivables under service concession arrangements) with respect
to the Group's service concession arrangements:

B fF B 1% R B 5

2&%@%%@%?%?%@
Y Fx I8
BAEEBEEFCLREEHNSR
BEAKIBD (RBFHFCELHETH
FEUWGRIE) M E R T -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKETT

Receivables under service concession RRIS AT 48 & 2 HE T~ B e L R IE
arrangements 6,509,663 5,304,961
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (16,543) (3,590)
6,493,120 5,301,371
Portion classified as current assets PERRDEENBD (86,731) (65,877)
Non-current portion JERENEL 5 6,406,389 5,235,494
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FF B 75 i % B RE

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20. RBETRERETNE

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued) W IE (&)

(@) In respect of the Group’s receivables under service concession (a) ?ﬁﬂsﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁi‘“%ﬁm—r
arrangements, credit risks varied amongst the Group’s projects WEWZIEMmMS  ZE8REBEXN
operated in different locations of Mainland China. The collection EBE A Ij(ﬁ*?‘l—}im%@ b HY
of receivables under services concession arrangements is closely BHEME - BREEEWKKIES
monitored in order to minimise any credit risk associated with the AR EAEERRE  REFTLE
receivables. & BT R R W R IE &Y W Bl 1B R

T E B EEE o

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—8H
2021 2020
=E-—F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Yunnan Province TEE 1,915,588 1,273,889
Shandong Province IT-E) 1,144,019 1,139,194
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region BT MasE 897,945 490,657
Jiangsu Province TERAE 714,456 663,220
Hebei Province EIBIEY 459,636 416,652
Henan Province A 363,240 341,342
Anhui Province ZHE 359,363 349,906
Tianjin City PN=7) 152,907 146,966
Fujian Province BEA 141,240 142,656
Guangdong Province BRE 125,511 124,620
Chongging City BEEM 102,340 96,046
Zhejiang Province AR 81,044 74,777
Liaoning Province EEL 52,374 45,036

6,509,663 5,304,961
The receivables under service arrangements were billable receivables. AR 7 4 B 4 % 22 HE TR 1Y FE Uk ZR0E
They were mainly due from governmental authorities in Mainland AR RARENEKZE  Hx
China, as grantors in respect of the Group’s service concession BRAEANEFBRBETRLE
arrangements. Based on past experience, the directors of the ZHE T AN R ﬂqiﬁgﬂ(}?%
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is BoBEBELCER E=E25
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a BThE S E R R E B Jﬁ
significant change in credit quality and the balances are considered AREEEEtEEAEIH AL
fully recoverable. BRI AR AR 2 Ei e o
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20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

The expected collection schedule of receivables under service
concession arrangements is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B fF B 1% R B 5

20. RIBIGETRE

WK IR (&)

ZHTHE

(b)  MRBIFAFLEREET M ERFOR
MR REE R T

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT ARKETT
Within one year —F AR 86,731 65,877
One to two years —EWF 93,784 84,531
Two to five years MZERSF 348,382 310,763
Over five years HiEhF 5,980,766 4,843,790
6,509,663 5,304,961
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

198

21. B EE

Unfulfilled Technical
Goodwill Development  Operating contract know-how
(note b) expenditure  concessions rights Licenses and software Total
BE KA EHRHHR
(D) BRAX RTLEER BRERN R B EH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETn ARETr AR¥Tn AR%Tn ARETn ARET:R
At 1 January 2020 RZ2-Z2§-f-H
Cost A 441,298 5,359 11,233,601 52,301 658,186 106,524 12,497,269
Accumulated amortisation ESE i — — (937,593) (38,971) (59,228) (16,204)  (1,051,996)
Net book amount EHFE 441,298 5,359 10,296,008 13,330 598,958 90,320 11,445,273
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-Z-EF
+ZB=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount BREFE 441,298 5,359 10,296,008 13,330 598,958 90,320 11,445,273
Additions "E — 4,214 1,848,877 — — 2,225 1,855,316
Currency translation differences ERMEEE (15,706) - (22,383) — — (40) (38,089)
Amortisation charge (note 9) Zx () = - (349,094) (703) (19,764) (4,389) (373,950)
Closing net book amount BRERFE 425,592 9,573 11,773,448 12,627 579,194 88,116 12,888,550
At 31 December 2020 R-BZE%
+ZR=1+-H
Cost KA 425,592 9573 13,060,135 52,301 658,186 108,709 14,314,496
Accumulated amortisation 2itEH = —  (1,286,687) (39,674) (78,992) (20593)  (1,425,946)
Net book amount REFE 425,592 9573 11,773,448 12,627 579,194 88,116 12,888,550
Year ended 31 December 2021 B2-B--%
TZRA=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 425,592 9573 11,773,448 12,627 579,194 88,116 12,888,550
Additions NE - 3,416 341,631 - - 23,675 368,722
Curreny translation differences ERBERE (4,961) - (35,874) - - 37) (40,872)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RREAR - - (179,829) - - - (179,829)
Amortisation charge (note 9) BiEx (M) = — (405,238) (703) (19,073) (4,106) (429,120)
Impairment charge (note 9) WERY (Fi9) (77,854) — (120,301) — — — (198,155)
Closing net book amount BREAFE 342,777 12,989 11,373,837 11,924 560,121 107,648 12,409,296
At 31 December 2021 R=ZB=-f
t=B=1-H
Cost KA 420,631 12,989 13,186,063 52,301 658,186 132,347 14,462,517
Accumulated amortisation 2 EHRAE
and impairment (77,854) — (1,812,226) (40,377) (98,065) (24,699)  (2,053,221)
Net book amount REFE 342,777 12,989 11,373,837 11,924 560,121 107,648 12,409,296
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Amortisation was charged to the profit or loss
accounts under the following caption:

21.

B fF B 1% R B 5

B EE (&)
(a) BECHNESEATHT

5|15 B kR :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BLEE

2021 2020

— B —TE-TF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARETT

Cost of sales SHE KA 420,663 368,042
Administrative expenses THRFAZ 8,457 5,908
429,120 373,950

Impairment test for goodwiill

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has recognised goodwill with
total amounts of RMB342,777,000, which arose from acquisition of
subsidiaries in prior years. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the goodwill was allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU"). The
recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on fair value
less costs to disposal. The calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determined the projection period based on their
past experience and expectation for the market development and is
consistent with their business plan. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates.

(i) A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is
presented below:

(b) AEREERR

RZZEZ—F+=-A=+—8"
AEBEHABBLEAARE
342,777,0007C + X ZRA L AFE
Wiz 8 BT B8 22 ) i BE A o Rk (B A
HME BEIREHRSEALE
(TBEeELEM]) - BEESE
BNMAKRESEDREAFE
BESERAET - stEHXFA
ReneEA KEEEEIZ
MAFHTKREEZ - EEERA
MEEHREENREREAENS
TRBREETMSEENTER -
BREFENKEETE R -BR
FFEHBMBESRENFERT M
HEr S RERHEE -

(i) MNUT2IBEENE 2D EE
EME

e

As at 31 December

BRt+t=-—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT
Solid waste treatment ERE R E 149,764 180,536
Water supply oK 103,288 120,254
Wastewater treatment SEIKEE IR 76,512 111,589
Construction and sales of equipment BENMREHEE 13,213 13,213
342,777 425,592
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 21. BILEE (A)
(b) Impairment test for goodwill (Continued) (b) BEREUNR (&)
(i) Key assumptions used for fair value less costs to disposal iy SEBELBMHAEAITF
calculations of each CGU were in the range as follows: BEREERAAELNTE
BRENHBERMT :

As at 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLEFE

Construction

Solid waste Water Wastewater and sales of
treatment supply treatment  equipment
BER
[E] % 52 32 fit 2k 5K RIEHE
Average annual growth U %8 S 5 £ 18 & 2K (i)
rate of revenue (iii) 3%-10% 0%-10% 0%-10% 10%
Long-term growth rate (iv) KHIERRE(v) 3% 3% 3% 3%
Discount rate (v) ALIR % (v) 10%-14% 11%-14% 11%-14% 12%
As at 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTHF+_A=+—HLEE
Construction
Solid waste Water ~ Wastewater  and sales of
treatment supply treatment equipment
#EER
[l 8% iz I8 ok 757K Ba 32 REHE
Average annual growth U 58 S ¥5 £ 18 R 2K (i)
rate of revenue (iii) 3%-10% 3%-10% 3%-10% 10%
Long-term growth rate (iv) & HIE K &K (iv) 3% 3% 3% 3%
Discount rate (v) 8L IR K (v) 10%-14% 11%-14% 11%-14% 12%
(i)  Management determined average annual growth rate of iy BRAESDNREBEARER
revenue based on past performance and its expectations for HYTERRNTERE T
each market development. AT EHE E o
(iv)  The long-term growth rate used is consistent with the forecasts (v) FREHRERETERE
included in each industry report. FRE TR — 3 -
(v)  The discount rate used is discount rate applied to the cash flow V) FIRBEXRABSRETE
projections which reflects specific risks relating to each business. L mEasIa X » Bk

EHERNEERR -
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(9]

Impairment charge

As at 31 December 2021, management has performed an assessment
of the CGU. The carrying value of the CGU is compared against the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-in-use (“VIU") and
fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCOD"). Based on the assessment,
recoverable amounts is determined as the FVLCOD.

In performing the impairment assessment, key assumptions and input
data adopted by the management include forecast prices, forecast
production volumes, forecast operating costs and capital expenditures
and discount rates. Management determined (1) the forecast water
price based on the management expectations and also local policies;
(2) the forecast production volumes based on management’s
production plan and forecast production volume for the remaining
concession periods as set out in the reserve reports; (3) the forecast
operating costs and capital expenditures based on its financial budget
and business plan; and (4) the pre-tax discount rate reflected specific
risks relating to the relevant business.

Based on the assessment, the Group recognised net impairment
charges on goodwill and operating concessions of RMB77,854,000
and RMB120,301,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: nil).

21.

AN

A G B 15 SRR BT &

BVEE(H)

(c)

RN

RZZE-_—F+=-A=+—8"
EREHHASELEMETT
FE-BHRSELBENNERE
HRESEETER  BRA
FEMOBREEXRA(AFENR
BEXADENSERFTRAEER
(MEABEDMAL  EABEAR
BEE ARIKkESELRE
AFEMRESKREITHE -

FEETRENGE  EREMK
RHERRREEBEREERRE
B BRAES  FERAELRAR
BeXHARMBRE - EBER
BATEATR : (WVEREEE
TEH R E M B R A TR E ¢ (2)
BRAEEDERNFBERSHZT
HEVRIeR & R E & I8 A ERT 3
REAEE  QREBEAMBER
Ko ZE 75 5t 81 5| 5T FEOR B & A Ko
AEa st - ROBATHIR KA R
BREL XTSRS E R R

ER LR EFNH B@2=2F%
——%+-_A=+—HIEE -
AEBHEEERBETLEER
D RIFER T AR ¥ 77,854,000 7T
B A R #120,301,0007T H 5 1E 3
X(ZFZFF T

22. INVENTORIES 22. 7 &

As at 31 December

R+=-—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—EZ—F —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREEF T
Raw materials JRAT 58,945 62,902
Work in progress TR 22,968 17,892
Finished Goods UK T 34,130 27,543
116,043 108,337

No provisions for inventories have been made for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: same).

HE—_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HBLHF
B UYEFARTERE(ZZS-=F
R -
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 2. ESZREMERRERTE

PREPAYMENTS f+ : IR
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BT R ARBTF T
Trade receivables Z 5 ENRIE
— Related parties (note 37(g)) - BBt (MI3E37(9) 2,052,478 2,395,236
— Local governments — b5 BT 1,130,648 1,072,050
— Third parties -$=x 2,684,947 2,936,151
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (395,341) (145,570)
5,472,732 6,257,867
Other receivables H A pE U KRIAE
— Related parties (note 37(I) - B (EE37()) 40,567 39,861
— Third parties -$=5 1,942,621 1,995,577
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (113,747) (32,854)
1,869,441 2,002,584
Total trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWGRIELEE 7,342,173 8,260,451
Less: non-current portion of trade and other B B S REMEYGIEIEREI B
receivables (914,561) (422,564)
Current portion of trade and other receivables & 5 & H t fE Yt 5 IB 7R Eh 2P 6,427,612 7,837,887
Prepayments TEfTFRIE
— Related parties (note 37(g)) - Bt (FIsE37(9) 267,842 232,084
— Third parties -%=5 1,380,298 1,112,307
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (39,267) —
1,608,873 1,344,391
Less: non-current portion of prepayments B RN FIEIEREN S (1,463,032) (1,168,930)
Current portion of prepayments TARTFRIBRENE D 145,841 175,461

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A "] Annual Report 2021 F [& i &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(a) Trade receivables

Ageing analysis of gross trade receivables (including amounts due

from related parties of trading in nature) at the respective balance

sheet dates, based on the invoice dates or contractual terms, is as

follows:

S 5RE (&)

(a) EZEWFIEA

23. ES R EMEBERRERRA

REFEBREZHHBHAOKT
FIEHMEBESREGHIR(BEEE
2 £ E H e A R R 77 BUR) AER AR

gofrmT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEF T
Within one year —FEURN 1,020,168 2,921,478
One to two years —E=WF 1,981,864 1,263,267
Two to three years == 870,572 1,103,251
Over three years =FUE 1,995,469 1,115,441
5,868,073 6,403,437

The Group have different credit policies for various products and

services, depending on the requirements of different business

segments and the contractual agreements with different customers.

Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

FEBEZBRERMERBEYETNRZEE
HE  RETRFEBHBPINZRK K ED

REFHEDBEMNE °

7K B 5 78 WS E AR E R R R B

™o

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+—BHBLEFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZETF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARKEFT

Opening balance at 1 January R—B— BH &R 145,570 85,804
Impairment provision BERE 305,892 59,766
Write off impairment losses on financial assets  #fi#5 4 & &R AR E (56,121) —
Closing balance at 31 December R+—A=+—BWERES 395,341 145,570
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 2. EFRHMEKKRERE
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) NRIE (&)
(b) Other receivables (b) HttFEW KA
Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of other 7N £ B H b pE Uk 3R TE Y R E B
receivables are as follows: BEWT

Year ended 31 December

E+ZA=+—-HLEE

2021 2020
—EF-—F ZEZTH
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTTT

Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BWEA&eR 32,854 31,814
Impairment provision IERE 82,927 1,040
Reversal due to collection [ 4 ] ifn 48 B (2,034) —
Closing balance at 31 December R+t-A=+—BWHREL 113,747 32,854
(c) Prepayments () FERFIE
The Group's prepayments are mainly for purchase of goods and NREENENRETEARS S
services, acquisition of land use rights, and acquisition of equity SRR - (R URE R R
interests. RN BB Y TR R o
Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of prepayments 7N = B ¢ T8 Bk I8 I B g
are as follows: mE
Year ended
31 December
2021
BZE
—E_—F
T=HETF=0F
LEFE
RMB’000
AR®T T
Opening balance at 1 January B—A—BWHM &R =
Impairment provision B 39,267
Closing balance at 31 December R+T=B=+—HHWHREER 39,267
(d) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the (d) REsEEnsESEERR
carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The At gErEkZIENERME -
Group does not hold any collateral as security. AREBWEZFITRIEBYIES
EIR o
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24. RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2021 the restricted cash mainly comprised of guarantee
deposits for construction of projects and deposits under frozen by the
judiciary (2020: same).

24. IRHBE
R-ZZE-_—F+_A=+—8 " ZRH
REFEZRREZBEENRES K
AAEPIRAEMER(Z T T F : 48

@) e
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T AR T
Guarantee deposits for construction of projects — ZRIE B FIRZES 237,441 123,427
Deposits under frozen by the judiciary e aAS PR AR TF K 35,092 2,074
272,533 125,501
In December 2021 and January 2022, lenders of certain Overdue Borrowings R-_EBE-_—FE+_AKR_FT - —F—
had taken for property preservation by judicatory, which included frozen of A EBETAalERNERACDERTE
the Group cash in banks of RMB35,092,000. HEEEEMNBMEREEE  BIE R
REBEBERITHIRE A R¥35,092,000
3T e
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. BENRBEEEY

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AR T T
Cash at bank and in hand (note a) BITEREFHERS (HiTa) 428,427 1,697,688
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 25. ReRBEeESEWN(HE)
(@) As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents of the Group are @ MZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—8"
denominated in: AEENRERREEEMAT
HEHEETE

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+-—-8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARKET T

RMB AR 392,735 1,654,934
IDR HeE 11,710 9,329
HKD BT 10,416 2,821
usb e 9,456 25,249
SGD AN T 2,113 487
THB K 1,997 4,868
428,427 1,697,688
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. g &
Number
of shares
(thousand) Share capital
KRB EE
(F8&) g 2%
RMB’000
AR TR
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZZ-ZFTF—AF—H "
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —E-FTF+-_A=+—8"
—E-—F-F—-BRK
—T_—F+=-A=+—H 1,193,213 1,193,213
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PR TS SRR BT A

Hth &

Capital Statutory Translation
reserve reserve reserve Total
R 2= 5% 48 EERE RERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR AR¥Tr AR¥Tr AR¥Tx
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-B-ZH
—B—HBK&e 1,819,435 487,573 (26,420) 2,280,588
Capital contribution by non-controlling  FEIZERRAEZSHYEE
interests 369,923 — — 369,923
Currency translation differences EEsmE =R = — 12,009 12,009
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) EERFERE
(Hftzta) = 138,207 138,207
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-B-ZTHF
+=ZA=+—8#K
EER 2,189,358 625,780 (14,411) 2,800,727
Balance at 1 January 2021 R —F
—A—BH&RR 2,189,358 625,780 (14,411) 2,800,727
Currency translation differences HEBREEE — — (22,147) (22,147)
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) EEEFERE
(Ffttta) — 39,693 — 39,693
Transactions with non-controlling IR IR H
interests (66,198) — — (66,198)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-B——
+T=ZA=+—H#
&R 2,123,160 665,473 (36,558) 2,752,075
(a) Statutory reserve (a) ZERRE
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, except BEFREEREERER B
for sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, all PRC companies MNEBREIN FAEFBERANH
are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation calculated BB E SR e H A REEE

under PRC accounting rules and regulations to the statutory reserve

fund, until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their

registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon

approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses carried forward

from previous years or to increase capital of the respective companies.
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28. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENT 28. KAEAXIHR

The perpetual capital instruments have no maturity, and the payments KABATEWEREE « BIRMA KA
of distribution can be deferred at the discretion of the Company. When BAARBBBEELE - AR A RERH
the Company elects to declare dividends to their ordinary shareholders, TERKRRERRE @ AIARNREERR
the Company shall make distribution to the holders of perpetual capital B A T2 RERXABEARATEREF
instruments at the distribution rates as defined in the subscription BAEEDE

agreements.

The average annual distribution rate is about 9% for the year ended 31 BT+ _-_A=+—HItEE
December 2021 (2020: about 7%). HFEHFEDRENRBI% (ZTE_ZF :

WET%) °

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t-HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Balance at 1 January R—A— Bk 500,000 2,610,000
Issuance BT 1,622,300 500,000
Redemption =] (500,000) (2,610,000)
Profit attributable to holders of perpetual KABATEREAEIERET

capital instruments 113,587 117,640
Distributions to holders of perpetual capital MK AEARTARFE AL DR

instruments (113,587) (117,640)
Balance at 31 December RT+=—BA=+—HK&EH 1,622,300 500,000
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PR TS SRR BT A

29. BORROWINGS 29. B
As at 31 December
R+t=—HA=+—8H
2021 2020
—EBE-—F —F_FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Non-current IERED
Long-term bank borrowings REJIRITER 2,778,605 10,946,507
Corporate bonds and other borrowings NEfES REMERK 5,191,834 6,919,414
7,970,439 17,865,921
Current MED
Short-term bank borrowings FEHERTTER 4,439,748 4,157,826
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings Eﬁﬁﬁfﬂ%#\é’m ii%s) 10,508,225 2,141,836
Current portion of corporate bonds and other NEMES REAERAREE S
borrowings 5,737,134 3,376,232
20,685,107 9,675,894
28,655,546 27,541,815
(@)  The Group’'s borrowings carried weighted average interest rates of (@ BEZTE-_—F+=ZA=+-—

5.73% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:

5.74%).

(b)  As at 31 December 2021,
depicted in note 37(h)&>)&(j)&k).

(c) As at 31 December 2021,

other borrowings from related parties is (b)

borrowings of RMB13,946,858,000 (c)

(2020: RMB12,175,993,000) were secured by pledge of the Group’s
receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets,
right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets and the Company’s investments in subsidiaries. As at 31
December 2021, the Overdue Borrowings were secured by the
aforesaid assets with total carrying value of RMB2,952,281,000.

BIEFE - A% B &R nEFH
FRRAE5T3% (T F
5.74%) °

RZTE=—_—F+=-HA=+—H"
REBH AN EMEREREER
B 537 (h) &) &()&(K) °

R-TE-_—F+-A=+—8 &
KA R #13,946,858,000 L (= &
—ZTF : AR¥12,175993,0007T)
HAEERBETEELTTHEREK
FIE ANEE -FRAEEE -
ME BEERZEARETEE
EARARKBARNKEL
HIEER R-ZZT=-—F+=A
=+—HB @HERANELERE
EFEEE BEEEAAR
2,952,281,0007T °
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

210

(d) As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as

follows:

29. fE K (A&

(d RZZTEZ—F+=ZA=+—8H"

AR B {5 SR ER

FRMAT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
Within one year —FUA 20,685,107 9,675,894
One to two years —EWF 5,020,600 5,912,923
Two to five years MERF 590,743 5,815,518
Over five years HBARF 2,359,096 6,137,480
28,655,546 27,541,815

(e)  The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and

the contractual repricing dates at the end of each of the year are as

follows:

() W& A E R E s 0 F)
REHERRANENEREDH

mF -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Within six months ~MER AR 3,870,187 7,976,954
Six months to one year NERE—F 13,301,154 9,400,166
One to five years —EhF 9,228,000 7,560,809
Over five years HBARF 2,256,205 2,603,886
28,655,546 27,541,815

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate their

fair value.
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(f)

The Group's borrowings were denominated in:

29. 16
)

PR TS SRR BT A

(II‘E

REBBHRATIEEE :

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—~
2021 2020
—E-—F T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTFIT
RMB AR 27,607,592 25,320,134
usD ET 999,181 2,130,805
THB B 30,783 70,393
EUR BT 17,990 20,483
28,655,546 27,541,815

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group failed to
repay RMB1,157,710,000 of certain borrowings according to
their scheduled repayment dates. Although the Group managed
to settle some of these borrowings during the year after the due
dates, RMB1,118,793,000 remained unsettled as at 31 December
2021. The total amounts of these Overdue Borrowings, including
interests payable and those portions of such loans that had original
contractual repayment dates beyond 31 December 2021, amounted
to RMB3,920,203,000 (the “Overdue Borrowings”). Furthermore, the
Group was not able to comply with certain financial covenants of its
other borrowings (the “Covenant Borrowings”) with a total amount
of RMB1,695,958,000 as at 31 December 2021. Consequently, the
aforementioned borrowings totaling RMB5,616,161,000 as at 31
December 2021 would be immediately repayable if requested by the
lenders. Out of such amount, borrowings of RMB2,983,632,000 that
have original contractual repayment dates fall beyond 31 December
2022 were classified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2021.

HE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—
BIEFE  AEBERERBE
EXBHEEETERARE
1,157,710,0007T ° & & 7 & E &%
AR BB —FANEEL D%

EEX -ARZT=—F+=A
—+*H » AR #1,118,793,000
TANARES - ZS @B E
H(EREENFERRENERSR
BfiA-—S=-_—F+=—A=+—
HEMBBEERT D) BARYK
3,920,203,000 T ([# BAfE 51 1) °
o - AEEKRESTHME R
(R=ZZF=Z—F+=ZA=+—H
M E A AR 1695958000

TOZETHBRHE(RH B
K MMERARR  RZF

—_—f+-_A=Z+—HB8 Lt
#5845 N R#5,616,161,0007C K
BRAEKBELBNEE - -
RAENERBRHA=-_T ==
+Z A=+ BEBEMERAR
#2,983,632,000L A =& = —
T A=+ BRI BEAREE

& -
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

212

(9)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E k1% &

(Continued)

These matters triggered cross-defaults and resulted in certain other
borrowings of the Group (other than the Overdue Borrowings and the
Covenant Borrowings) with a total amount of RMB10,781,143,000 as
at 31 December 2021 becoming immediately repayable if requested
by the lenders, of which RMB6,628,398,000 represented non-current
borrowings with original contractual repayment dates fall beyond 31
December 2022 that were classified as current liabilities.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group further failed to
repay scheduled instalments and interests of RMB362,615,000 relating
to borrowings with a total amount of RMB4,619,134,000, of which
total amounts of RMB3,164,749,000 were related to borrowings that
were either overdue or otherwise in default as at 31 December 2021.

From December 2021 to January 2022, lenders of certain Overdue
Borrowings amounting to RMB764,360,000 had applied to the courts
in the People’s Republic of China for property preservation measures,
and the courts ordered to freeze the Group’s certain cash in banks,
and equity interests in an associate and a subsidiary. In January 2022,
the Group reached a settlement with one of the above lenders for
Overdue Borrowings of RMB381,866,000 as at 31 December 2021,
but failed to repay the agreed rescheduled instalments in February
and March 2022. On 23 March 2022, due to further legal actions
taken by the relevant lender, the Company was listed as a person
subject to enforcement by Urumgi Intermediate People’s Court, for
the settlement of the outstanding amount of RMB371,503,000. The
Group believes that the property preservation and enforcement caused
by relevant Overdue Borrowings will not constitute major contingent
liabilities of the Group and has not recognised any provision in the
consolidated financial statements.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s defaulted and cross-defaulted borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB17,851,689,000.
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29. f& &

(9)

(II‘E
(%)

ZEEHBEBEIXEN
TEHAEEAR T = —F
+ A=+t BHEBAEARE
10,781,143,000 7T &) & F E b {8
X (38 HA 5 3R R B E6 18 BRBR AN ) BR
BEZAEE(HERAEZR)
He o AR#6,628,398,0007T A
WHBEARBDEBENRENER
HEBA-ZTE-_—_F+=-A=+—
HERIERBMER -

NEE A% - AEE#E— P Rae
1%t%¢§%%zm5m0ﬁ%ﬁ
EDHAREAE - HEERE
%E%/\Eiﬁmw 134,000t © &
FORZIE-—FF+-A=+—
B - AR ¥3,164,749,000 7T ¥ f&
BEAS B KB ©

BEZE-_—F+=AF=%F
ZZE-ARA 2EABARE
764,360,000 7T #) % T % H (& 3
BERADEFEARKEMBER
BEUERE2EN ZEBRESHE
EAEEERTHETRER
R—EBEA AT R—HEHER
ANEE R_T=_—_F—A8 -
AEEHEFAEFRAZ—HEE
—E_—F+ZRA=+—H8=
£ A A R % 381,866,000 JT &) #
HIfEFUERCAEE - BRBEN =T
ZZFZARZAEELHTEE
BN BMEAR R ==
F=ZA=+=H BREBEEX
NIREU#E — F R 2TE AR A
WEBKRE R HER I A EHR
TN UEBREERBEARE
371,503,000t - AEBER A HEA
BEE RS BN ERE AR
HITHBRTEBRAEENE
AIARBBERAEELERE G
B 75 R N RERAT Al B o

HEAHYBHREREMEZR -
AEBHEBEORRINENERA
#) AN R #17,851,689,0007T °
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EZREMEANRIE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETT
Trade payables: B P EMNFIE :
— Related parties (note 37(g)) - BAEt s (FIEE37(9)) 1,498,780 1,468,045
— Third parties -%=F 5,210,270 5,825,723
6,709,050 7,293,768
Notes payables ANES 318,010 160,000
Other payables: E fth B K8 -
— Related parties (note 37(g)) - BAEE s (FIsE37(9) 246,061 305,788
— Third parties - F=5 1,200,576 955,240
Staff welfare benefit payable FERTE TAE R 59,957 46,849
Other taxes payable H b e IR 200,531 262,476
Dividend payables ERRE 73,655 12,229
8,807,840 9,036,350
Less: non-current portion B EmBNER S (2,833,401) (5,906,360)
Current portion BN 5,974,439 3,129,990
(a) Trade payables are settled in accordance with agreed terms with (@ EBSEMNFEREEEERGE
suppliers. WIRREEE -
(b) At 31 December 2021, the ageing analysis of the trade payables by MNRZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—8 "

BEERBHLEOERREL D
BHRNFENKREITET ¢

based on invoice dates or contractual terms, is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARET T
Within one year —F A 1,635,012 4,202,807
One to two years —EWF 2,701,724 1,590,313
Two to three years ME=4F 1,250,758 1,168,930
Over three years =FUE 1,121,556 331,718
6,709,050 7,293,768
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31. DEFERRED INCOME

214

Deferred income represented government grants received from governmental
authorities with respect to Group’s constructions of wastewater treatment
facilities, water supply facilities, solid waste treatment plants as well as the
provision of water supply service. The movement of deferred income is as
below:

31. IEE W &=

A FE W i 2 4 A SR B R DS K BR IR AR
e~ fROKER B 88 BE W) AR TR R A K B2
 fH 7K AR 75 2 AT % 18 3% R RO DR T
By JEFEWE B EHIT

Government

grants

KT 8 B

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Opening balance at 1 January 2020 R-B-ZHF-A BN 701,720
Additions nNE 40,625
Credit to profit or loss accounts ST AE=ER (32,577)
Closing balance at 31 December 2020 R-B-EF+-A=+—HWHLRELR 709,768
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 R-BE-—F—F—BWHD&H 709,768
Additions NE 167,130
Credit to profit or loss accounts T AB=IR (33,238)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FENEBAR (26,500)
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 R-B-—F+=-H=+—BHNPKREE 817,160
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(a) Deferred income tax assets

32. IEFEFTBH

() EEFEHEAE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—~H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® TR AREFIT
The balance comprises temporary RESREETRERE
differences attributable to:
Deferred income BT W s 158,028 140,228
Tax losses MIAEE 662,857 467,596
Accrued expenses and impairment provision FEET A ROBERE 341,992 278,293
Total deferred income tax assets RIEFTBHREERRE 1,162,877 886,117
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities EIHBEEFRGHAE (290,750) (184,680)
Net deferred income tax assets FIRLEMEHERE 872,127 701,437
Accrued
expenses and
Deferred impairment
income Tax losses provision Total
EBEXR
Movements BE IEE W = BIEEE HERE @at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARE T ARBT T AR®T T
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-B-ZEHF
—B—BWEE 149,153 260,426 213,493 623,072
(Charge)/credit to profit or RIBEEF (k) /
loss accounts A (8,925) 207,170 64,800 263,045
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZHE
TZA=+—HI#&E 140,228 467,596 278,293 886,117
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-ZBE-—F
—A—BN&R 140,228 467,596 278,293 886,117
Credit to profit or loss accounts REREHEA 17,800 195,261 63,699 276,760
Balance at 31 December 2021 R=-B=-—F
TZA=1+—HHW&EH 158,028 662,857 341,992 1,162,877
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

216

(b) Deferred income tax liabilities

32. IRIEFRIGH (&

(b) EEFRBHREE

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H

2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®E T ARET T

The balance comprises temporary REREEYRESR

differences attributable to:

Fair value gains NEEKE (838,856) (877,940)
Service concession receivables AR 75 5T B W R (699,408) (526,964)
Others Hit (78,921) (57,246)
Total deferred income tax liabilities RIEFS A AR (1,617,185) (1,462,150)

Set-off of deferred income tax assets EIHREFSHERE 290,750 184,680
Net deferred income tax liabilities RS AE (1,326,435) (1,277,470)
Service
Fair value concession
gains receivables Others Total
BR #% 4% &F
Movements BE) A FE R E W E Hit st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR%®Tx
Opening balance at R-E-ZF-A—AH
1 January 2020 e (914,306) (329,278) (33,848) (1,277,432)
Credit/(charge) to profit or RiBaERFATA
loss accounts (308 36,366 (197,686) (23,398) (184,718)
Closing balance at R-B=2F
31 December 2020 t=A=+—-H#
k&S (877,940) (526,964) (57,246) (1,462,150)
Opening balance at R-E-—%—-A—HK
1 January 2021 B (877,940) (526,964) (57,246) (1,462,150)
Credit/(charge) to profit or R A
loss accounts (30%) 39,084 (172,444) (21,675) (155,035)
Closing balance at R-E=—F
31 December 2021 tTZA=+—-H®
R (838,856) (699,408) (78,921) (1,617,185)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

33. &1

Maintenance

costs Others Total
RERAE Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥T T AR TR
(note a)
(Bff 7£a)
Opening balance at 1 January 2020 R-E-_ZTF—H—H
R ER R 45 R 356,018 3,105 359,123
Provision capitalised in intangible assets RER B ER BREIE
BIEEAR 129,941 — 129,941
Amortised to profit or loss accounts BHEEER
(note 11) (BFaE11) 8,355 — 8,355
Paid during the year FABNKIE = (183) (183)
Closing balance at 31 December 2020 R-T-Tf
+ZA=+—H®W
RS 494,314 2,922 497,236
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 R-—ZE-—%5—HA—H
HYHA ) 45 84 494,314 2,922 497,236
Provision capitalised in intangible assets A B B S R
BIEER 17,287 — 17,287
Amortised to profit or loss accounts HiHz 8RR
(note 11) (P&E11) 9,529 2,195 11,724
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 RZ=-T=—4%f
+t=ZA=+—B#W
MR 521,130 5,117 526,247

(@) Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by the
Group, the Group has the contractual obligations to maintain the
facilities it operates to specified level of serviceability and/or to restore
the plants to a specified conditions before they are handed over
to the Grantors at the end of the service concession period. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the facilities, except
for any upgrade elements, are recognised and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the year.
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34. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash used in operation

34

. EHRERERME
(a) REFTARE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1+—-BLEE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARKETT
Profit before income tax FrfS B4 Bl s A (1,030,933) 502,624
Adjustments for: BATSEEL A
— Impairment losses on financial assets - SREEREREE 419,125 70,156
— Impairment Losses on intangible assets - B EERERE 198,155 =
— Impairment Losses on prepayments - FERFRIBREEE 39,267 =
— Depreciation of investment properties - REYENE 845 845
— Amortisation of intangible assets - B A E#H 429,120 373,950
— Depreciation of property, plant and - Y% - BEREETE
equipment 210,675 191,652
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets - FRREEETRE 22,688 24,430
— Share of profit of investments accounted - DARERE A BRBVFE(S
for using the equity method HEmF (78,517) (78,570)
— Other gains — net - H iz 558 (164,333) (48,810)
— Finance costs — net - BERANFEE 1,530,806 1,258,992
Change in working capital: HEESE
— Inventories -FE (7,705) (4,851)
— Contract assets - BHEE (1,933,239) (2,630,702)
— Trade and other receivables and - B 5 R E M EUFIEA K&
receivables under concession B E T HE T H
arrangements W TE (1,133,369) (2,667,471)
— Prepayments - FBfFRIE 6,552 (264,092)
— Trade and other payables - B 5 REMEMNKIE (246,490) (318,061)
— Contract liabilities - 6B E (807) (18,525)
— Deferred income — EFE N A 133,892 8,048
Cash used in operations REFARS (1,604,268) (3,600,385)
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34. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 3. Ot REREBERME(F)
CASH FLOWS (Continued .
. ! . . .). (b) kREMETH
(b) Non-cash financing activities RE-—T-——f&£+t-HA=+—§
During the year ended 31 December 2021, capital contribution from IFERE o RS T A
non-controlling interests included amounts of RMB183,308,000 by B A TS T4 2@ %18 B
contribution of certain concession projects to a subsidiary. & 4 5 A R #183,308,0005T °
(c) Net debt reconciliation () BREHEYE
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR T ARKETTT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBELEEY 428,427 1,697,688
Borrowings & (28,655,546) (27,541,815)
Lease liabilities HEEE (45,271) (49,034)
Net debt B FRE (28,272,390) (25,893,161)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBESEEYD 428,427 1,697,688
Gross debt — fixed interest rates ERAE — BEMX (16,844,726) (17,232,948)
Gross debt — floating interest rates BB — SEFIE (11,856,091) (10,357,901)
Net debt 0k (28,272,390) (25,893,161)

Annual Report 2021 4 E 4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k %18 & M5 B R A & 219



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& BB 5 R M

34. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

%\
it

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued)

220

() BEXFEYUKRMA)

Liabilities from financing activities

4. SHEERERME(F)

REMETHNEE
Cash
and cash Lease
equivalents Borrowings liabilities Total
BeR
ReZEY EEN HEAE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR AR¥Tr AR¥TrT AR¥TxR
Net debt as at R-ZB-_ZTHF—H—H
1 January 2020 KR ER 2,468,435  (21,618,930) (50,610) (19,201,105)
Cash flows BeneE (770,599) (6,222,168) 11,988 (6,980,779)
Other changes (i) H b ZE)(i) — — (10,412) (10,412)
Foreign exchange adjustments  SMEHTE (148) 175,345 — 175,197
Other non-cash movements Hi3ER e EF) = 123,938 = 123,938
Net debt as at it 223
31 December 2020 +=A=+—H#K
FEK 1,697,688  (27,541,815) (49,034)  (25,893,161)
Cash flows REmE (1,269,964) (680,594) 19,326 (1,931,232)
Other changes (i) H b = Hh(i) — (457,943) (15,563) (473,506)
Foreign exchange adjustments  JNEHr & 703 24,806 — 25,509
Net debt as at R-B=-—F
31 December 2021 +=—A=+—HK
FEB 428,427 (28,655,546) (45,271) (28,272,390)

(i) Other movements mainly comprise finance expenses recognised for borrowings

and lease liabilities.
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred as of 31 December

2021 is as follows:

35. A&
HE_F-_—F+-A=1+—-HEIH
BHREENBEAZHEAT

As at 31 December

Rt+t=-—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARB TR ARETFT
Property, plant and equipment, concession YIZE - B R - FRTSEIER &
projects and construction projects ERIEB 11,723,410 12,539,792
Equity investments @it E 240,298 240,298
11,963,708 12,780,090
36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 36. BEIER
As at 31 December
R+=-—BA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —TE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Provided for the borrowings of a joint venture LA & QA F KL QRS TIRED
and an associate (Note 37(m)) ER (HFE37(m)) 287,140 385,330
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of
third paries BE = EFIRENER 2,101 18,438
289,241 403,768
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(9]

222

Major shareholders
The following entities are the major shareholders of the Company

37. TE@MB IR Z

(@) TERK
UTEBREADNRMETERRK

Name Place of incorporation Ownership interests (%)
=L AR FREREF (%)
2021 2020
- —fF —E_TF
YEPI (i) EFE KFE) PRC 30.07 30.07
H
Beijing OriginWater EREKIR PRC 24.02 24.02
e
(i) On 11 January 2022, Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd., the (i) A—FT——F—AB+—8 &N

shareholder of the Company, changed the company name to Yunnan Green
Environmental Protection Industry Group Co., Ltd..

Subsidiaries
Interests in principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15.

Name and relationship with other major related
parties

FARREFEKBEXREAR
REABRARALEEESEMAER
BREEXEBEARAF -

(b) M A
EEMER AN FIERAHES -

() BBATHNEBRERME
ERBLTHNEE

Name Relationship

=t kS

YHTH Controlling shareholder of YEPI
EREIREE EEA KRB ERAR R

Caiyun International Investment Limited (“Caiyun Investment”)

FEBBRKRERRAR ( [RERE])

Yunnan Investment Group
ER&EE

Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“YCIH")
EHEERREERERERAR ( [EPERER] )

Yunnan Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“YNDAMC")
THEEEBEERAT ( [EEEEEERE] )

Fellow subsidiary

EES =P

State-owned enterprise

IR SR

State-owned enterprise

BAERE

State-owned enterprise

BELE
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(d) Key management personnel compensation

(e)

Key management includes executive directors. The compensation paid
or payable to key management for employee services is shown below:

PR TS SRR BT A

37- iggﬁﬂ%ﬁ?&%(ﬂ'ﬁ)

(d)

EREBEAEBETMH
BEEEEABREATES B
ETRBENABMIEEZERA
BHHHMMT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BLEE

2021 2020

—EZ—F —EFF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits EHIE TRRH) 8,605 10,094

Transactions with other state-owned enterprises
In accordance with HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, state-owned
enterprises and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled by

the PRC Government are regarded as related parties of the Group.

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by
state-owned enterprises. During the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, the Group had transactions with state-owned enterprises
including, but not limited to, operating services, construction services

and equipment sales.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business on terms comparable to those with other entities
that are not state-owned. The Group has established its pricing
strategy and approval process for purchase and sales of products
and services. Such pricing strategy approval processes are consistently
applied regardless of the counterparties are state-owned entities or
not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that none of these
transactions are material significant related party transactions that

require separate disclosure except for the transactions with YCIH.

(e)

HEEMEAEEETHX
2

RIRE B G SHRBIF 245 [ RIS
RE] - P ERAER R EEE
e B £ 2 T LB A AR
AREENBEF -

AEBEHRELEFTENE
BERERKEER REEZ
T —FR-ZT=-ZFTF+=A
=T—HIEEE AEEHEESF
TEETHXZIBEETRER)
BERE BRBRBRBMEHE -

WERSDHEREENBEER
BIER R A EHEMIEE A BT
I E LB RREST - AEE
ERVEBEEMERRBOEER
B R B /ERIE - B BT B R AL
EREZERER M AwmEFH
TERBEEER KEZTZEESR
MEANEER ARAEER
R ERZ SR TTE LR

MEATEBEB IS HHEE
EAREEEEETHRIRIN
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.

(Continued)

(f) Significant transactions with related parties
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had
the following significant transactions with related entities which are

carried out on terms agreed with the counter parties in the ordinary

course of business:

TEBRB LIRS (&)

(f) HEBAINEERS
REBEZE_ZE-_—FR-_Z_FF
+—A=+—HLEE A£H
HEMERBREFAINETER
BERHENBRETTATE
AR :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AR T
Sales and purchases of goods and services HERBEE MRS
— Sales of goods and services to YCIH - HEEMERB T
THRREER 38,848 423,025
— Sales of goods and services to other - HEEm&RE T
related parties B fth BB 7 3,556 6,443
— Purchase of construction services from - NEEEREEEE
YCIH EIE RS 1,159,585 2,530,841
— Purchase of construction services from - WEERRBEEERY
Haiyun Environmental Protection 58,858 89,061
— Purchase of goods from Beijing - R RBEXREEER
OriginWater 1,397 2,893
Finance costs of borrowings &AL E B A
— Caiyun Investment - HERE 71,798 79,047
— YHTH - EHEIREE 160,400 100,167
— A joint venture and an associate - —REE AR KREEE AT 2,788 89
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests ~ FEFERREZHEE
— YNDAMC - THEEEER = 800,000
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/
purchases of goods and services

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting
period in relation to transactions with related parties:

PR TS SRR BT A

37- iggﬁﬂ%ﬁ?&%(ﬂ'ﬁ)

(o) AHE BEERRRE
EENERECMHNEES
23
BA TR B SR B 07 32 B M
FEBREREN -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E=-—F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Trade receivables for sales of goods and HEERMRBHNES

services JEJ‘ISZTAIE
- YCIH *ﬁﬁi&;‘%l 2,024,084 2,298,727
— Haiyun Environmental Protection - BERR 9,204 76,512
— Other related parties — HhEEEs 19,190 19,997
2,052,478 2,395,236

The balances of trade receivables from sales of goods and services are

mainly denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and settled in
accordance with agreed terms with related parties.

HEERMRRBOHE S ERFOR

M EEIAARKIE « W
28 REBEEERHOT
B RS -

A T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT

Prepayments for purchase of goods and BEE R 2 T 5RIE
services
- YCIH - EEEREH 262,691 207,411
— Beijing OriginWater - dEREKIR 5,148 24,673
- YHTH - EEEREE 3 —
267,842 232,084
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. FE@BM AR F (&)

(Continued)
(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/ () HEE BEERRER®
purchases of goods and services (Continued) EENERENNEIES
&R (4&)
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—~
2021 2020
—E=-—F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥® T ARETT
Trade and other payables for purchase of BEEREREZES REM
goods and services FET3RIE
- YCIH - EHRKEER 1,628,721 1,642,456
— Beijing OriginWater - dEREKIR 14,400 20,150
— Haiyun Environmental Protection - BERR 101,720 75,948
1,744,841 1,738,554
Less: non-current portion of trade and other B B REAERFRIER
payables JERNERAES 5 (98,199) (1,548,223)
Current portion of trade and other payables B 5 MEA N FRIAR
BIERZE 1,646,642 190,331
The trade and other payables for purchase of sales of goods and BEEMERB2E S REAME
services are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and are NHREBAARBE  \EEH
settled in accordance with agreed terms with related parties. P8 KRR B BB T 4) TE B9 1R

£h 4+ =
NEEE -
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(h) Borrowings from a related party — Caiyun Investment

37.

B fF B 1% R B 5

TEBRB LIRS (&)

(h BHBSER — BER
C

2021 2020
— B T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETT

Opening balance at 1 January
Repayments
Currency translation differences

R—A—BHA&eR

Closing balance at 31 December

RT-A=+—BWHREER

1,566,002 1,813,189
(685,341) (130,290)
(20,137) (116,897)
860,524 1,566,002

The borrowings granted from Caiyun Investment are denominated
in USD, unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with

agreed terms with Caiyun investment.

Borrowings from a related party — YHTH

FERERTHME KX
B EEAW 58 LEREHE

FERBHENGREE -

() BEBHER — EWE
Bk 55 B

2021 2020
— B T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETT

Opening balance at 1 January
Receipts
Repayments

R—A—BHN&EeR

Closing balance at 31 December

RT-A=+—BWHREELR

813,572 —
8,504,086 4,023,976
(4,951,328) (3,210,404)
4,366,330 813,572

The borrowings granted from YHTH are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, bear interest and repayable in accordance with agreed
terms with YHTH. As at 31 December 2021, interest and other
financial charges payable to YHTH amounted to RMB212,137,000

(2020: RMB72,918,000).

EERREERE THERAA
R¥EE - - EKB 518 WA
BEEEFEEKE BT K
REE- R_T-—F+_-A
=+—H ENZEEREKREEDN
MNEREMBTBEAAARE
212,137,000 (Z T - T4 : A
R #72,918,0007T) °
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. FE@BM AR F (&)

(Continued)
(j) Borrowings from a related party — Yunnan Investment () AEBHSER — E8E%
Group
2021 2020
— B T -TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBT T
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BWEN &R = =
Addition Ehn 500,000 —
Closing balance at 31 December R+=A=+—BWHRERR 500,000 —
The borrowings granted from Yunnan Investment Group are EMEFRETHERUARES
denominated in RMB, unsecured, bear interest and repayable in B E\E® - 8 WAEBESR
accordance with agreed terms with Yunnan Investment Group. As at EREBRNTHERESR - RN =
31 December 2021, interest and other financial charges payable to T-——F+—_A=+—8FEfH
Yunnan Investment Group amounted to RMB12,639,000 (2020: Nil). ENEENNEREMBEER
AANR®12,639,0000(ZF=F
£ F) -
(k) Borrowings from a joint venture and an associate (k) MEEATIREE A THE
N
2021 2020
—E-—F =T =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARKETTT
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BWEA&eR 30,000 —
Receipts & 39,838 88,000
Repayments ER (5,000) (58,000)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=B=+—BWHIREEE 64,838 30,000
The borrowings granted from a joint venture and an associate are EE RN ERBENRRTHER
denominated in RMB, unsecured, bear interest and repayable in 2022. MARBE - EEE 58

WER =B FHE -
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37.

() Funds due from/to related parties
(i) Funds due from Beijing OriginWater

TEBRB LIRS (&)

() BEBINESER
(i) FBRIREKFHE
&

by

2021 2020

—E=Z—F —EETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BWEN &R 25,063 24,311
Payment (NES — 754
Receipt Wk — )
Closing balance at 31 December R+tZA=+—HBWERERR 25,063 25,063

(ii) Cash advances with other related parties

(i) BEMEHT R E

E=F ¢
2021 2020
—EZ—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BWEA&eR 14,798 11,970
Payment INES 1,325 8,146
Receipt G (619) (5,318)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=B=+—BWHIREEE 15,504 14,798

The funds grant to related parties are denominated in RMB,

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

AR TIRHENE ST UARKFE -
EER 2EREBRERER -
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. T EBHM AR5 (&)
(Continued)
(I) Funds due from/to related parties (Continued) () EEBINESER(EF)

(iii) Funds due to other related parties

(iii) FEfTHE BB 75 9 &
=

2021 2020

=E=-—F =T =T F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARETT

Opening balance at 1 January A— B — B &R 5,279 2,065
Receipt R — 3,906
Repayment BR (5,279) (692)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=A=+—HBWHREH — 5,279

The funds grant from related parties are denominated in RMB,
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

(m) Guarantee

o

i

(m) TR

BB RENESYUAREF
B EEA 2EREREKRME

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—~H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARETT
Guarantee provided by YHTH in respect ERRIRER AL B E RIREA
of the borrowings of the Group R 1,567,780 537,450
As at 31 December
Rt+t=—H=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZTHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R AREFT
Guarantee provided to related parties in ~ FiA & A B REEA D BRI E K
respect of the borrowing of a joint ) B 5 R A ER
venture and an associate 287,140 385,330
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38.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(n) Credit enhancement
In order to facilitate the Group to issue perpetual bonds during
the year ended 31 December 2021, YHTH has undertaken to
the bondholders to acquire the Group’'s perpetual bonds of
RMB1,622,300,000 under certain circumstance and also provided
certain properties of YHTH as security (note 28).

PR TS SRR BT A

37- iggﬁﬂ%ﬁ?&%(ﬂ'ﬁ)

(n)

BE

RERAEBERBEE_T=_—F
+Z A=+ —HIEFEFHITKE
B EEREREEEMESIFE
ARFERFREBATEBELRE
B A R #1,622,300,000 7T B Kk &

B WYRHEEREREESETY
¥ERERMIFE28) -
BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 38. ARRIEERFER
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTEZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - BB R 167,763 172,327
Receivables under service concession RIS FFET A = R HE T HY
arrangements FEUFRIE 71,620 75,809
Investments in subsidiaries RIBRARMIEE 9,945,412 9,360,945
Contract assets EHEE 5,827 —
Intangible assets mREE 14,880 3,681
Investments accounted for using the equity LAREZ A ABRKIZE
method 1,021,930 791,549
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk EAth e FRIA 1,140 1,112
Prepayments ﬁﬁm« 404,359 384,361
Financial asset at fair value through other AFEFTEREEFH:TA
comprehensive income ﬁf’ﬂﬁéﬂﬁlﬁuﬂ’\]ﬁﬁﬂﬁ% 76 76
Deferred income tax assets BEMGEEE 151,897 155,182
11,784,904 10,945,042
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 6 26
Trade and other receivables é%&ﬁfﬂﬁﬂﬂlm 1,370,594 1,733,048
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWHE A 12,141,401 8,455,880
Prepayments FEfTFRIE 1,087 1,061
Restricted cash IR HIR & 68,994 79,250
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 17,569 41,077
13,599,651 10,310,342
Total assets REE 25,384,555 21,255,384
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) 38.

232

AARMEEREBER(A)

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—H=+—8H
2021 2020
— B T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBTFT
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to ordinary ARAREBRRREGES
shareholders of the Company
Share capital [N 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves (note a) Hibf#E (Fiiita) 2,365,076 2,365,076
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings (note a) (BitE18) REBEF (HizEa) (30,767) 235,524
3,527,522 3,793,813
Perpetual capital instruments KAEART A 1,622,300 500,000
Total equity BRER 5,149,822 4,293,813
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities B h=
Borrowings fE R 4,784,769 5,770,783
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings AR 8,319,260 7,261,201
Trade and other payables B o5 REMENKIEA 7,130,704 3,929,587
15,449,964 11,190,788
Total liabilities HmafE 20,234,733 16,961,571
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEAE 25,384,555 21,255,384

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors

of the Company on 29 April 2022 and was signed on its behalf.

Director

EZE

ARREEABERBAARAEEEN
T _FNA=+TNABEHETHTIA

ITRABEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

38. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(@) Movement of other reserves and retained earnings

3. A AEERER(A
() HftfBERAERNEE

(Accumulated

losses)/
Capital Statutory retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
(RetEE)
BR A< 5 45 EE B REEF @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR¥TRT AR¥TR
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-E-EHF
—A— BH&RR 2,195,657 131,960 201,500 2,529,117
Profit for the year F R — — 250,465 250,465
Transfer to statutory reserve ERETERE — 37,459 (37,459) —
Dividends for the year ended BE—_ZT—N&F
31 December 2019 +=ZA=+—H1t
FERE — — (178,982) (178,982)
Balance at 31 December it 223
2020 +=A=+-BW
&R 2,195,657 169,419 235,524 2,600,600
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-B——F
—A—BH&ER 2,195,657 169,419 235,524 2,600,600
Loss for the year FREE — — (195,353) (195,353)
Dividends for the year ended  BZE T -T4F
31 December 2020 +=—A=+—H1t
FERE — — (70,938) (70,938)
Balance at 31 December R-B=—%
2021 +=A=+—H8#
R 2,195,657 169,419 (30,767) 2,334,309
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B % R 2R MY 5

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 3. EEEARER
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EEREENME
The emoluments of individual director and supervisor of the Company REFBEN /AR TEAZE
paid/payable by the Group are presented as below: EREEHMEE2NHT
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2021 () BEF=—FE=-—F+=
A=1+—HLFE
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary and other to pension
Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
2R EERAKE
Name of directors/supervisors EZ/BESi? He e MR Hitr @A R @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARETR

Executive Directors: HTES:
Ms. Li Bo (Appointed on 24 June 2021  ZE &+
and resigned on 30 September (R=B=—%
2021) ~AZTHEA
BZALR
—E--F
NAZ+HEHR) = = = = = -
Mr. Yu Long (Chief executive officer) TREHE
(B %) 10 2,028 - 130 — 2,168
Mr. Yang Fang BHEE
(Resigned on 11 June 2021) (R=B=—%
~NAT-H
EI) 100 218 - Y] — 360
Ms. Ling Hui EERT
(Appointed on 11 June 2021 and (R=F=—-%
resigned on 10 November 2021) ~NAT—H
BZETR
—E--F
T-ATHEE) - 181 - 2 - 202
Mr. Zhou Zhimi AEEEE
(Appointed on 10 November 2021) (R=F=—-%
+-A+A
EZ) - 13 - 2 - 15
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B 1% R &R MY 5

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2021

39. EERARER (AF)

() ESREESNME(A)
(i) BE-F=-—F+=

(Continued)

A=+—HIEFE

(#&)
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary and other to pension
Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
EER  EEEAS
Name of directors/supervisors ES/EEHS #he e B HitRA g i3 @3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRE ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Non-executive Directors: FUTES:
Mr. Li Jialong FRERE
(Resigned on 11 June 2021) (R-Z2-—%
NATBET) = = — — - -
Mr. Dai Richeng HAMLE — - - - - -
Mr. Chen Yong BELE — — — _ _ _
Mr. Liu Hui b
(Appointed on 11 June 2021) (R=Z=—F
~NA+—A
BZf) - — - - - -
Ms. Li Bo (Resigned on 24 June 2021)  ZR& L
(R=B=-%
ARZtTmA
BHE) = — — — - -
Supervisors: EE.
Mr. Long Limin EFRSEAE _ _ _ _ _ _
Mr. Zhu Zhen KA - 476 - 95 - 571
Mr. Huang Yi BHEL - 219 - 85 - 304
Ms. Tang Shuang ERLT 33 - - - - 3
Mr. Tan Hairui ERHEE 33 - - - - 3
Ms. Zhang Ling RBETL - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHGTES:
directors:
Mr. Liao Chuanjiang BRIEE 190 - - - - 190
Mr. Zhong Wei BREEE 13 - - - - 13
Mr. Zhou Beihai BEEE 13 — - - - 13
392 3,135 — 375 — 3,902
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 39. EE A R ER(E)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEREENME (E)
(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2020 (i) BE—FE-_ZFF+=
B=+—HIFE
Employer's

Allowances  contribution

Discretionary and other to pension
Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
BER  EBEERHKE
Name of directors/supervisors EE/EEHA e % WEELD HipigH STEIER et

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETL ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARET:T

Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Yu Long (general manager) FRAE(BER) 10 2,028 640 123 — 2,801
Mr. Yang Fang BHEE 100 533 138 110 = 881
Non-executive Directors* FUTES
Mr. Li Jialong FRERE
(Appointed on 16 July 2020) (R=%=%%
tA+7A
BZf) - - - - - -
Mr. Dai Richeng HAMLE
(Appointed on 12 October 2020) (R=ZZ-%%
+A+=AR
BZf) - - - - - -
Mr. Yang Tao BELE
(Resigned on 16 July 2020) (R=%=%%
tATABEL) - - - - - -
Mr. He Yuanping BT EE
(Resigned on 12 October 2020) (R=%=%%
+ATZREMA) - - - - - -
Mr. Li Bo FR&L - - - - - -
Mr. Chenyong RELE — - — - - -
Supervisors EE
Ms. Zhang Ling RERL 33 - - - — 33
Mr. Huang Yi BHEAL = 439 = 47 = 486
Mr. Long Limin ERREE — _ _ _ _ _
Mr. Zhu Zhen RExE = = — — - -
Mr. Tan Hairui EBHLE 33 = = = = 3
Ms. Tang Shuang ERat = 208 = 43 = 251
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30. EERARERE (AF)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued) () EEREENIHS (&)
(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2020 (i) BE=-—FE-—FF+=
(Continued) B=+—HIFE
(#&)
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary and other to pension
Fees Salary bonuses benefits scheme Total
BER  EBEERHKE
Name of directors/supervisors BE Bk e g4 (k=R H 78 7 TR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT AR%Tn ARET:R
Independent non-executive BUFkGTES
directors
Mr. Liu Chuen Kong BRIxE 190 = = = = 190
Mr. Ma Shihao BHREE
(Resigned on 12 October 2020) (WZFZ%%
+A+ZAEfE) 75 = = = = 75
Mr. Hu Song g E
(Resigned on 14 July 2020) (R=Z2=%%
tATEAEE) 50 - - - - 50
Mr. Zhou Beihai A %L
(Appointed on 12 October 2020) (R=Z-%%
TA+ZA
BZf) 13 = = — — 13
Mr. Zhong Wei BREEE
(Appointed on 12 October 2020) (R=Z=%%
TA+ZA
BZH) 13 = = — — 13
517 3,208 778 323 — 4,826
* There were no fees or other emoluments payable to non-executive * FRAYERMNIIERTES

directors during the year.
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39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

238

(Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:

none).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2020: nil).

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
As at 31 December 2021, there are no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies

corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2020: nil).

(e) The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their services as directors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 were RMB326,000 (2020: RMB451,000).
The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
were RMB2,635,000 (2020: RMB3,572,000).
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

Five-year Financial Summary

AFETEHE

F%ﬁﬂﬂéﬁiééﬁﬁflﬂ%éﬂﬁé

INCOME
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —EF-FF —_F—NF T N\F —ZT—LtF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBT T ARBTT ARKETT ARKT
Revenue Wz 5,280,743 8,396,630 6,538,024 6,255,628 5,142,242
Gross profit EF 1,316,564 2,096,132 1,832,313 1,498,009 1,304,724
Profit before income tax PSR A (1,030,933) 502,624 677,549 644,226 702,244
Profit for the year F N Al (1,055,254) 341,311 553,808 496,715 544,000
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEMEET) -
Ordinary shareholders of the Company AR B EBAARER (1,001,876) 223,095 398,153 397,753 422,812
Total comprehensive income for the year  FR4RA WaE4A5E (1,077,401) 353,320 572,023 323,974 695,742
Total comprehensive income AT AT EESRE
attributable to: WastBzE
Ordinary shareholders of the Company ARAREBARARE (1,024,023) 235,104 416,368 225,012 574,554
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET BEAHEEABE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B —FFF _FT-NF —_FT-N\F _FT—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AR Tt ARBTIT AR Tt AR T T
Assets BE
Total non-current assets SEMBEERE 40,462,391 36,676,593 29,164,775 23,363,751 19,092,066
Total current assets MENE ELRTE 7,963,229 10,576,221 10,704,357 9,310,095 8,003,983
Total assets BEMBRE 48,425,620 47,252,814 39,869,132 32,673,846 27,096,049
Equity and liabilities EEREE
Equity attributable to: LA G i 2
Ordinary shareholders of the Company RAEEBARAR R 4,014,202 5,175,361 4,749,316 4,556,822 4,536,565
Perpetual capital instruments KABRIA 1,622,300 500,000 2,610,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Non-controlling interests FEIEIRE R 1,961,636 1,932,201 1,186,669 1,177,450 949,384
Total equity e 7,598,138 7,607,562 8,545,985 6,934,272 6,685,949
Non-current liabilities JEMBBE 13,504,638 26,292,531 20,760,860 16,527,163 12,490,571
Current liabilities mENEE 27,322,844 13,352,721 10,562,287 9,212,411 7,919,529
Total liabilities BB 40,827,482 39,645,252 31,323,147 25,739,574 20,410,100
Total equity and liabilities ERREEeR 48,425,620 47,252,814 39,869,132 32,673,846 27,096,049
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2021

IREE = &”’*}éiﬁi%zom

INTRODUCTION

Yunnan Water is one of the leading integrated service providers in the urban
environmental protection industry in China. The Company keeps a mode of
“massive water” of raw water supply, tap water supply, sewage treatment,
reclaimed water, black and odorous water treatment, river comprehensive
treatment which covers all categories in water sector while carries out the solid
waste recycling business, such as the industrial waste treatment, medical waste
treatment, kitchen waste disposal, waste incineration and power generation,
carbonization and resource utilization of sludge and pyrolysis carbonization of
organic waste, and provides services including design, investment, construction,
operation and maintenance, comprehensive solutions and core technology system
integration. Yunnan Water will leverage its own advantages, closely combine with
the actual situation of Yunnan Province, around the green economy promising
province strategy, ethnic culture promising province strategy and a bridgehead
strategic objective of the PRC open to the southwest, firmly grasp the opportunity
of the implementation of the state’s “One Belt, One Road"” strategy, adhere to
its enterprise culture of the fear of heart, grateful heart, self-confidence, keep
careful, professional, rigorous working attitude, and build an “Internet of things
+ Internet” digital intelligent environmental protection enterprise. It is committed
to becoming an urban environmental integrated services provider with core
technologies, strong investment and financing capabilities, core competitiveness
and social influence which is based in Yunnan Province, serves the whole country
and moves towards South Asia and Southeast Asia.

In the face of the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19"), the Group immediately
supported the pandemic prevention and control work, timely understood and
managed the capacity and operation condition of medical waste disposal facilities
in the affected area, and fully guided and supervised the safe disposal of medical
waste in the affected area.

In order to enable stakeholders (including shareholders and investors, customers,
employees, suppliers and subcontractors, regulatory authorities, government
authorities and the society, as well as non-governmental organizations (“NGOs")
and the media) to understand our ESG policies, measures and performance, the
Group has prepared and published this ESG report (the “Report”).
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2021
RiE - E@ KEIRRSE2021

BOARD STATEMENT

ESG Governance Structure
The Group has established an ESG governance structure to ensure that the ESG
strategy is consistent with the Group’s business strategy and to integrate ESG

management into its business operations and decision-making process.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG issues as well
as ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s ESG risk management and the
internal control systems. In particular, the Board is accountable for examining
and approving the Group’s ESG management approach, strategies, policies and
objectives, prioritizing ESG-related issues, reviewing the Group’s performance
periodically against ESG-related goals and targets, and approving disclosures in
the Group’s ESG reports with the assistance from relevant designated personnel
("Designated Personnel”).

Designated Personnel comprises management and employees from major
subsidiaries and different departments of the Group and will carry out
management on the ESG issues under the delegation from the Board, so as to
assist the Board in supervising the ESG issues. Its primary responsibilities include
collecting and analysing relevant information and data on the ESG aspects; the
preparation of ESG reports; examining and assessing the performance in different
aspects such as environment, health and safety, labour standards, product and
service responsibility in the ESG areas; ensuring that the Group abides by relevant
laws and regulations; assisting to formulate ESG priorities; and assisting in the
preparation and implementation of the relevant strategies, framework and policies
on the ESG. The Designated Personnel regularly arranges meetings to discuss and
review ESG affairs, including but not limited to the effectiveness of current ESG-
related policies and procedures, performance, risks and opportunities, as well as
strategies and targets. The Designated Personnel also reports to the Board on
the development of such works, assists in identifying and assessing the Group'’s
ESG risks, and assesses the effectiveness of the Group’s ESG internal control
mechanism.

REPORTING SCOPE

The scope of the Report is determined by the management of the Group after
considering the importance of the impact of different projects on the Group’s
policies and financial performance, and whether the Group has direct control over
the project.

The information disclosed in the Report covers 190 water supply, wastewater and
solid waste treatment project in operation of the Group in the PRC, representing
an addition of 9 new projects in operation and a reduction of 10 old projects as
compared with the ESG Report for the year ended 31 December 2020. After the
Group’s data collection system becomes more mature and the work of sustainable
development deepens, the Group will continue to expand the scope of disclosure
in the future.
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MR BESGRE M HE o

ETAERTETRAIUREBENERE
RETIMHEK HEEFSHRETHESGERE
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REUE - BEESGHRE  BEANTHLAER
RESGE IS RIRIE - ERER R - B TIZ%E -
EREBREETSETRAFEARI  BREAE
SEETHRBERER 5 BB S EESGRIER
FIH 5 A K158 BIE K& E i A S BESGHE B 5
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AT (4 78 & B AUESGR Bg LA K 7T i A8 52 BESG
7R B 2 1 I B B A o

] & 8 E
ABERERARBANEEREZE T TR
EEHAREBREN LM BRAVENEE
M bR A SR B R B R B
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ABEMBEHRBEEREAEBAR T EH
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2021
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Report has been prepared with reference to the ESG Guide in the Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules of the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and based on
the reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance, and consistency.
During the preparation of the Report, the Group has applied these reporting
principles in the aforementioned ESG Reporting Guide as the following:

Materiality: Materiality assessment was conducted to diagnose material issues
during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the confirmed material issues as
the focus for the preparation of the ESG Report. The materiality of issues was
reviewed and confirmed by the Board and senior management. Please refer to
the sections headed “Stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” for
further details.

Quantitative: The standards and methodologies used in the calculation of relevant
information in the Report and the applicable assumptions were disclosed. The
key performance indicators (“KPIs") are supplemented by explanatory notes to
establish benchmarks where feasible. All the figures have been rounded up to 2
decimal places.

Balance: This ESG Report was prepared based on an objective and impartial
manner to ensure that the information disclosed faithfully reflects the overall ESG

performance of the Group.

Consistency: The statistical methodologies applied to this Report were substantially
consistent with the previous year, and explanations were provided regarding data
with changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies.

The corporate governance practices of the Group have been published in the

“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 60 to 79 of the Annual Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report covers the ESG activities, challenges and measures taken of the Group
during the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group attaches importance to stakeholders and their opinions on the Group's
business and ESG matters. In order to understand and respond to the concerns of
stakeholders, the Group maintains close communication with major stakeholders.
In formulating the operation strategy and ESG measures, the Group will take into
account the expectations of the stakeholders, and through mutual cooperation,
the Group will continuously improve its performance and create greater value for
the society.
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Through different stakeholders’ participation and communication channels, the

Group will bring stakeholders’ expectations into the Group’s operation and ESG

strategy. The communication channels and expectations of stakeholders are as

follows:

Stakeholders

Main Communication Channels

BBRTEANBNEL2EARBEREE  ~5H
@%%ﬁ%%%%%k$ﬁgmﬁ‘&56%
HIERBBRRBIEHENT

Main Concerns

B 5 & FTEBRRE FTEFEEER
Investors and shareholders 3 Annual general meeting and other ° Compliance operation
shareholder meetings . Information transparency
3 Financial reports o Protection of rights and interests and
3 Company website and e-mail the fair treatment of shareholders
o News reports, announcements and o Return on investment
circulars o Risk management
o Conference and teleconference . Corporate governance
. Site inspection
REERKR J BRRBAFREREMRREAS o BREE
. ISR E . ERERE
o NAEEEREL U REEEZERRATFFBR
J HEE - AERE . & @
. ERRBEER . BAREE
J BI5ER o ®tEER
Customers o Customer support hotline and e-mail o Products and services quality
o Customer satisfaction survey o Customer privacy protection
3 Visit and meetings o Business integrity and morality
BF . B X AGNE . EmEREEE
. BEEMBERE . BEFBRALRE
. FoMEgE . [EEL AR R
Employees 3 Training, seminars and briefing o Career development opportunities
3 Employee performance appraisal and o Health and safety
performance evaluation meetings ° Remuneration and benefits
o Culture, public welfare and sports o Working environment
activities o Protection of employees’ rights and
3 Working meeting and special meeting interests
o Face to face talks, e-mail contact and e Staff care
teleconference o Staff communication
3 Career development communication
mechanism
BT . Fol A e REN . ERERKE

. BIBMERREAFEEH
. zm\ﬂﬂ RREED

. FERNREEEH
. %ﬁ2&~@ﬁ%§& T

. BT RB BB

o fRREZ 2
o AR A
o TEIRIE

. BETE=RE
o BITHE

o BITE®
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Stakeholders Main Communication Channels Main Concerns
B5 & TEEBRE FTERIEE
Suppliers and partners 3 Business meetings, e-mail and o Long-term cooperation
telephone o Business ethics and reputation
. Review and assessment o Fair tendering process
o Procurement and tender meetings
3 Opinion survey
HEBMDBH . HEeE EBRE: . REESIERRE
. FEZHERT G . [EESCEEAY- 4
. REBHES . RNEHREF
o BERAE
Regulatory authorities and 3 On site investigation, supervision and e Compliance operation
Government inspection and visit reception ° Policy implementation
o Financial reports ° Pay taxes
o Progress report
o Telephone and e-mail
. Information disclosure
. Daily communication report
B 5 R R BT M . BEMER  EERRNMKRDES . aREE
. ISR E o BB AT
. EERE . BT R

. EHERESD
. EEEE
- BEBAER

The community, non-governmental o ESG reports o Giving back to society
organisations and media o Project visit and site assessment o Environmental protection
J Public hearing o Social welfare
3 Public welfare activities o Health and safety
o News reports and announcements
o Management interview
B - FEBTHE KR . ESGH & . EECgad
. HE2BRRSER . RIBIRE
. nEE . HERA
. NG . BREEZE

. HERRAE
. EIBE KA

244 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A &l Annual Report 2021 4 [& i &



MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of the stakeholders
on the ESG performance of the Group, the Group adopts a systematic method to
conduct the annual materiality assessment. The specific work steps are as follows:

Identify Related
Issues

AEIEEEE

Collect Feedback
from
Stakeholders

WEFHEDE

Identify Important
Issues

B EERE

Validation

B

Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2021
RiE - E@ KEIRRSE2021

EEHBMG

BEBRTREBEYAREZECRRNE
REME  ARERBE RGN EETE
FESRBFEIF ABIESBOT :

With the assistance of consultants, the Group has identified and determined the ESG issues list of the

Group during the Reporting Period based on the business development of the Group;

The list includes 13 topics with significant impact on economy, environment and society, and
high impact on stakeholder assessment, covering four major areas: “environmental protection”,
“employment and labour practices”, “business practices” and “community investment”.

AEBEBRBBH TREAEBENEBER  BHNUEE T AEERRE AAMNESCGERBE ¢

BEESHEURKE RENHENFERREREBOEFGNTEREREMI3EZAE  BE
[RERE]  [ERESIESR]  [2EEM M LREEIMABE -

Taking the issues in the list as the core content of the assessment, the questionnaire was designed and
distributed to stakeholders to rate on the importance of various ESG issues to themselves and their

impact on the Group's sustainable development, and respond to any open-ended questions;

The major stakeholders covered in this assessment include but are not limited to employees and
management.

NEEAREEREZHEBTAROARTRAMMEE  UEBEHNBEAE - ERHHE M FIRESGH
BHESNBRN RYAEEAHEZROFZEREFD MO ERKARMRE

ARFEMBEZIERNE BRETRREIRERE -

Through the analysis of the questionnaire results, the materiality of 13 topics was evaluated and the

materiality matrix of the year ended 31 December 2021 was compiled;
Reviewed stakeholders' opinions and the results of importance assessment, discussed with management
and determined the key disclosure of the Report and the key points to enhance ESG performance in the

future.

BBYREERSIT FEBEZENEENYRREEBE T - —F+ A=+ - HILFENSE
EEER

EZEHFNESREAEENTHER BEEETWLRERSRESHIA R KRR SESGHE MM &
oo

The materiality matrix was examined by the management of the Group.

EENRERIAAEEEEEER -
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2021

Materiality Matrix
EEMTLEREER

Anti-corruption
RES
Waste Management
BENER

| Employee Development and Training

REFREEI

Energy Consumption
RERUBRE

Service Quality and Standard
PRISE 8 RiZ%E

/

Emissions Control

PEmuz|

|

Corporate Social Responsibility
CEMERE

~ |

BEREEALZE

Employees’ Health and Safety

—

.

Water Consumption
KB ERE

HEDETENEERE

Employment Practices

REES

Prevention of Child or Forced Labour

PribE Takea s T

N |

Supply Chain Management
HESER

| SRECAREE

Climate Change Risk Management

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS’ ASSESSMENTS

HEAEEHABRNTERE

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and effective
management policies and internal control systems for ESG issues and confirmed
that the disclosed contents comply with the requirements of the ESG Guide.

CONTACT THE GROUP

The Group welcomes comments and suggestions from stakeholders. You
can provide valuable advice on the Report or its performance in sustainable
development, and contact the Group through the following ways:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-3907

E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group believes that it is crucial to comply with applicable environmental
laws, regulations and policies for the long-term development and success of
the Group. Therefore, we continue to keep abreast with the policy guidance
of the industry, analyse the latest applicable environmental protection
laws, regulations, policies as well as the best domestic and foreign industry
practices, and timely update our policies and procedures in relation to
environmental protection to ensure that our environmental management
is in line with the latest standards. In response to government’s carbon
reduction scheme and stakeholders’ expectation and their concern on ESG-
related issues, the Group has set targets for greenhouse gas (“GHG")

emissions, waste management, energy and water consumption.
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A1l.

Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2021
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IRIE -

Emissions

The Group is actively participating in environmental protection. All
the Group’s subsidiaries are required to strictly comply with the
Group's internal management system in relation to environmental
protection in order to meet the relevant legal requirements, including
but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC,
the Law of the PRC on Environmental Impact Assessment, the Law
of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
and the applicable pollutant emission standards formulated by local
governments. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation
to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes that would have a
significant impact on the Group.

EXHAUST GAS EMISSIONS

The Group continues to renovate treatment technologies and to
optimize its production management system, aiming to effectively
achieve the annual emission reduction targets for the operation
project, and therefore has received government recognition and
praise. For odour generated from wastewater treatment, the Group
has planted greenbelts around the gas sources and collected the gas
for biotreatment in order to meet national emission standards. For
hazardous gas generated from solid waste treatment, the Group has
introduced international advanced technologies and continued to
enhance the flue gas treatment equipment to ensure that harmful
components contained in the flue gas have been effectively removed
and the emission standards are met. The Group has also formulated
a completed job post system and detailed operating procedures to
strengthen the management and monitoring of the exhaust gas
treatment process, pay close attention to the working conditions,
strictly control the exhaust gas collection and treatment process,
and identify and solve problems in time, so as to ensure the stable,
efficient and normal operation of each exhaust gas treatment
equipment.

Due to the increase in amount of domestic wastes and wastewater
processed, the Group’s overall exhaust gas emissions during the
Reporting Period has increased.

A1l.

BEm ¥

AEEEGEBRRIE &5
EEkEMB ARG ERIEEST
AEEBRTEERENEEGE
MEBEEEREG  ERaE
BARMNPEAREMEIRER
EEY (PEARKMBEREY
ZBHEE) (PEARKXMEAK
RIS R AE) R 5 BT HlE 5
BRSAMBENIZES - RaRE
R AEETTABEAEE
EREBEEILEEREHEK -
mMAKRELHBERAREERE
&ﬁiﬁﬁwmimﬁiﬁ'ﬁ

HEAKEBRERTE
R
A5 [ T R R IR BT

FTEEEHE - fﬁﬁﬁTﬁz’;Ej}L
Eﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁéiﬂﬁ%ﬁiiﬂﬁﬁ
HEE EmMESTSABFN
BEMIFFE - $HEI5KEREBE
FEANRR  BMUEDNTES
EXRABEESLLRES R
BRAKEBETEVERS
TEFZE FHEINERTTHN
PR E - HEEEEZRESP
EENBERE AEEHSIER
BREERN  TEHEREER
TR ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ_?ﬁ(%ﬁ?@ﬁ
RHBEEKD  REBBEZHEM -
ZF%.)T%'JE%%E’JFJM%‘EW
FEAMRIEARTE - MR ERERE
BEMNEEMER ZYFET
S R PR I RE SR A0 U B N R 1R
B2 LR WHERMEE N
BREEREERBEONERTE -5
B IEEETT -

MR AEERRIAR S RKERER
B AEERBRE BAHER
BERFEMERT LT -

Year ended 31 December

E+ZA=+—-HLEE

Exhaust gas emissions Unit 2021 2020
% R HE R B —E-—F —EFF
Particulate matter (PM) tonne 8.79 14.03
FERLY(PM) e
Sulfur oxide (SO,) tonne 31.36 25.50
malt %(SO ) i)
Nitrogen oxide (NO)) tonne 226.30 194.97
A ALWNO,) [
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GHG EMISSIONS

The Group’'s GHG emissions arise mainly from the purchased
consumption of electricity. The Group has implemented various energy
conservation measures to minimize GHG emissions. Please refer to the
section headed “Energy Consumption” below for details.

In response to the national vision of “carbon emission peak by 2030,
carbon neutrality by 2060”, the Group has set a goal of actively
promoting its independent research and development of organic
solid waste anaerobic pyrolysis carbonization technology, expecting
to realize "returning carbon to soil” and “closed circuit carbon cycle
for human life”. In addition, Yunnan Water and several entities
jointly signed the “carbon emission peak, carbon neutrality” strategic
cooperation agreement in March 2021. Taking this as an opportunity,
Yunnan Water will strengthen technology research and development,
resource integration business expansion, and actively assist in serving

the goal of “carbon emission peak, carbon neutrality”.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s GHG emission intensity
is approximately 0.05 tonnes of CO,e per sq.m., representing an
increase of approximately 25.00% compared with the year ended 31
December 2020. This is mainly due to the increase in the amount of
domestic wastes and wastewater processed, resulting in an increase
in GHG emissions. The Group’s GHG emissions during the Reporting
Period are summarized as follows:

BEREHEK
AEENRERBHEREIERS
RIMNBENHERE -AEBECERE
BEERLER  LEBR D HE
FREREHNE - FBH2E
IXIRERBFRE]—4 -

72 e B R [ 2030 % & 18 - 2060
RAEMINES  XEERET
EHREEEA EHENEHERE
BARMBCKENT 2 BIE - BE
FEIRME AN LI ALE A E i
FIRER] - it 2o - @K
BR2021F3AEHEZREM AR
BEMGEE - BP B AE
WE - AR ERKEE
neg AT ARES EBH
B @B RS REE - G
MIEE -

REEHRR  AREMRERE
PERUE E 49 /50.0508 — AL ik &
B/REFHK BEE-ZT—
EE+ A=+ —HLFERL
En#25.00% - EXERERZLE
R A R S5 KB TE B g N -
BIORERBEREL M - R}
SHR - AEBEMREREIER
EMdmT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLFE

Indicators’ Unit 2021 2020
BEE B =E=—F —_T_EF
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)? tCOLe — —
HEAERBHM(HEE)? WA E R
Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO,e 278,778.97 234,281.00
REREERERBHE R (HEE2) WE S E e
Total GHG emissions tCO.e 278,778.97 234,281.00
BERBEREE Wo—SEtREE
GHG emissions intensity? tCO,e/sq.m. 0.05 0.04
BERBHENEE? W=t E =
FEEEF oK
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Notes:

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent with
reference to, but not limited to, the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Research
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development, “2019
Emission Reduction Projects — Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power
Grids in China” published by Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
People’s Republic of China, “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix
II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX, and the
“Global Warming Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report
(2014) (AR5).

2. The Group only owned a small number of motor vehicles and consumed
limited fuel, therefore, the Group did not collect relevant fuel consumption
data.

3. As of 31 December 2021, the Group's gross floor area is approximately

5,679,289.44 sq.m. (As of 31 December 2020: approximately 5,653,329.90
sg.m.). This data will also be used to calculate other density data.

SOLID WASTE TREATMENT BUSINESS

The Group has always insisted on providing customers with high-
quality solid waste treatment services, actively focusing on solid waste
treatment issues and continuously developing solid waste technologies
as well as promoting the recycling of resources.

The Group installs and uses monitoring equipment in accordance with
relevant national regulations to monitor the discharge of pollutants
in real-time and disclose the data of pollution discharge. The Group
has special personnel to supervise the implementation of solid waste
treatment and disposal measures, and timely collect, transport and
treat solid waste according to the regulatory requirements and the
disposal measures formulated to eliminate the pollution impact. In
addition, the Group monitors the content of solid waste such as
heavy metal from time to time, track information of comprehensive
utilization of solid waste and expand the way of comprehensive
utilization. The Group strictly follows the hazardous waste treatment
and disposal plan to regulate and dispose the hazardous waste, so as
to effectively prevent the occurrence of secondary pollution on the
site.

The Group collects, transports and disposes of medical waste in time,
and takes effective measures to prevent the loss, leakage or diffusion
of medical waste. In the event of major infectious disease outbreaks
and other emergencies, the Group will take effective measures to
dispose of pandemic medical waste in a timely, orderly, efficient
and harmless manner to prevent the second transmission or spread
of pandemic disease and to ensure the proper handling of medical
waste. At the same time, the Group’s medical waste treatment
process only produces a small amount of non-toxic and sterile residue
and no wastewater, which can truly achieve harmless and minimized
disposal.

e hERHRE2021

#x -

1. 0 E R REUR TR — |AEHR
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Case Study: Zhengxiao Environmental Protection - Retrograde on plague road to guard the lights of
thousands of homes (Z#{T » FEERENR)

BARME  ERBR — BRIT FEEREAR

Yunnan Zhengxiao Environmental Protection Investment Co., Ltd. (E@EBERRREFRAF)
Environmental Protection”), which is the largest medical waste disposal enterprise in Yunnan Province, is owned by

("Zhengxiao

Yunnan Water. In 2021, a total of approximately 16,887 tons of medical waste was treated by Zhengxiao Environmental
Protection, including medical waste from 3 provincial and municipal designated hospitals for the treatment of novel
coronavirus pneumonia (“NCP"), 32 NCP fever clinics, 19 isolation hotels, and 1 airport isolation area. During the
Reporting Period, Zhengxiao Environmental Protection strictly handled the medical waste collected from NCP fever
clinics and designated hospitals as soon as possible, without temporary storage or overnight treatment. Medical waste
is collected by special revolving boxes, which is collected and transported by the special cleaning vehicles of Zhengxiao
Environmental Protection from medical units and transported to Kunming Medical Waste Centralized Disposal Center for
strict treatment, with the collection rate of medical waste reaching 100%.

EHRBRAERRANEBREYEECE — CHERRAREBFRAFA(ERBR] - EBRRE_ZT - —F
EFEHEEBZEEMN6,887ME - KA MM AR B A(INCP]) 3K EHBELAER - 32KNCPEAFIZ - 19K
FRREEEE - VERSREEE - RBRSHRN - Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*ﬂ%ﬁi B TNCPERFIDMERER M ENEZEEYSE —KHE
TRE TERF TER -BEEVHEAEAEENE KEBEREALEIRRREMFEEHREER  EEE
PAmERENETREROHRBES %[%J%%EW&Z%%%ﬂHOO% o

Through years of technical research and development and engineering BBRLERMARMIERER -
TEMAKBKNE EHETEAR
SRR - ZEMERR
EENIRERFNIR  EE
ELHUEREREEEDE
o ZEMABM TR

application, Yunnan Water has successfully and independently
developed low temperature pyrolysis carbonization technology. The
technology is applied to the disposal of various types of organic solid A
wastes, such as sludge, domestic waste, kitchen waste and excrement.
The technology has the following features:

1. Flexible treatment scale: it is especially suitable for the 1. RIERESE - EREER
B MBS R ERE
organic solid waste in counties, towns and villages which MET T e BEE R A A #HE

reduction, harmless and resource utilization treatment of

cannot be covered by waste incineration power plants, filling
the gap in the organic solid waste treatment market in this

region;

Wide range of application: the requirements on the heat value,
classification, particle size of the organic solid waste are not
strict;

Solving dioxin disposal problems at source: the low temperature
and anaerobic environment in the pyrolysis machine can
eliminate the necessary conditions of metal oxide catalysts for
synthesis of dioxin, making the dioxin content in flue gas can
be discharged up to standard without the need of activated
carbon injection system in flue gas purification system;
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4. Solid biochar products are stable in nature, its heavy metal 4. ERAEMKEMHMEER
leaching toxicity, chlorine and other pollutants concentration FEeBRESH &%
comply with the national class Il of soil use specifications, and EAMREESEFABRI
can be applied in flowers and trees and other carbon based HLEEARE  JEAN
fertilizer; TEEBMARENRER

5. Recycling products, such as iron, copper, aluminum, glass, 5. AIEMEUWKE - AR K
sand and gravels, are availably recovered, achieving resource B WABSEERELEY
utilization, reduction and harmless of the domestic waste. B TEENRHERE

mEfFESL -

During the Reporting Period, the Group set a goal of continuously REEBA - AEEEEFEE
increasing solid waste treatment projects, and actively promoted the MEREREERMNBIR  BiRH
anaerobic pyrolysis and carbonization technology of organic solid & 75 4 [E BE 4B 4 20 AR Bk AL BT
waste, so as to realize the resource utilization, reduction and harmless AABBERE Z /N - 5B
of domestic waste in more small cities and towns in China. EREFENFNERLE - BEL
MmEEL -
The Group is committed to promoting the upgrading of industry REBYARETERAZEM
standards and improving the system, and forming a benign interaction STEBIE - R R AR
between technology, standards and system to protect the ecological HENRMEEE  REAERE -

environment.

Case Study: 2021 Solid Waste Strategy Forum

BRI : 2021E B B B R =

In December 2021, the Group participated in the “The 15th Solid Waste Strategic Forum 2021" hosted by E20
Environmental Platform and China Urban Construction Design & Research Institute Co., Ltd. With the theme of

“leading the future with high quality”, this forum takes waste incineration, municipal sanitation, organic solid waste,
soil remediation and landfill and solid waste recycling as five plates, and comprehensively presents the territory of each
sub-field of solid waste. The forum joined hands with relevant competent government departments, industry leading
enterprises, universities, colleges and design institutes, financial institutions, research institutions and industrial media
representatives to jointly explore the road of high-quality development in the field of solid waste under the background
of “double carbon goals”. Yunnan Water actively promoted the technology of low-temperature aerobic pyrolysis and
carbonization at the forum, and actively communicated with all parties and responded to their inquiries. Luo Yuxuan, a
chief engineer of the Company and general manager of the technology and risk control center, delivered a speech on
behalf of the Company on the topic of “returning carbon to earth, collaborative disposal of multiple types of organic
solid wastes — low-temperature aerobic pyrolysis and carbonization technology”.

RIZE-Z—F+- R AKEZ2EAR0RRFENFTRBTRERARGE AR QR EMHN12021 (E+H/E) B EE B
wiE] - AEREUASEESIBERKIA/EE NP E  THIRE  AHEE T REEEEE  BEERE
REARSR - 2E2REESASELRE  BEFRAHEBEIENR TERELE SRERLRFER - o R#E
BOTHRBREFEERR HARNEEBEERREIEREFIERTHNSEEER K - T KBRHEREHE
FEORBAEMMI RN  BRESHETIRMEEMMAAE - ARA TR  KRWMERZEROALERTFTE
FEREIRRQAANERAL  ZHUEREEHREE — EKABARBRICRMIBEETES -
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During the Reporting Period, the solid waste treatment volumes of the
Group's solid waste treatment business are summarized as follows:

REREEA - A% E R R R
EBOEREREEMANT

Year ended 31 December

E+ZA=+—-HLEE

Type of solid wastes treated Unit 2021 2020
P B2 22 [ BE #9385l B —E-—F —E-TfF
Hazardous wastes tonnes 10,243.24 17,520.18
e EY 17

Medical wastes tonnes 32,899.94 40,733.88
BEEY i

Domestic wastes tonnes 635,008.09 399,078.17
AR R 1A

HAZARDOUS WASTES EEEEY

The operation of the Group does not produce a significant amount of
hazardous waste.

NON-HAZARDOUS WASTES

The Group generates non-hazardous wastes in its daily operation
of business, which are mainly dewatering sludge generated in the
process of its sewage treatment and water supply and slag and fly
ash generated in the process of the Group’s solid waste treatment.
The Group has comprehensive management system in place for all
kinds of solid wastes generated in the process of its production and
operation, strictly complies with national discharge standards and
adopts effective measures to reduce and properly dispose of solid

wastes.

For solid wastes such as sludge generated in the process of sewage
treatment and water supply, the Group strictly follows relevant
national policies, regulations, industry standards and the requirements
of environmental impact assessment report approval to establish
comprehensive production management system and process control
system in order to manage the measurement, transportation and
disposal of solid wastes to prevent secondary pollution. Besides, the
Group possesses advanced membrane technology in the industry
and has actively carried out research and development in order
to effectively reduce solid wastes generated during the operation
process, and to transform the produced sludge into resources with
sludge carbonization technology.
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For solid wastes generated in the process of solid waste treatment,
the Group adopts a number of comprehensive treatment measures
including classification or sealed storage in strict compliance with
national policies and industry standards to achieve the purpose of
harmless and recycling treatment, and sets up safety warning signs
according to regulatory requirements. All disposals of such solid
wastes are carried out in strict compliance with national policies and
regulations and requirements of government-approved environmental
impact assessment report.

For the daily office operation, the Group puts great efforts to
promote paperless office and use office automation (“OA") system
and video meeting system by connecting OA platform with various
departments of the Company to reduce waste arising from document
circulation. The Group exercises control over the purchase of
stationeries such as paper, implement strict registration system in
respect of the collection of office supplies and encourage employees
to print on both sides of paper to reduce waste of paper. During the
Reporting Period, the Group only uses a small amount of paper, so
the Group does not collect any information about paper. The Group
also advocates the reuse of office stationeries including envelopes,
folders, etc. Besides, the Group encourages not to use disposable
tableware such as paper cups in the office and encourages the
purchase of rechargeable office equipment in order to reduce the
usage of disposable batteries.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s non-hazardous wastes
disposal intensity is approximately 0.10 tonnes per sq.m., representing
an increase of approximately 11.11% as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2020. The main reason is the increase in the
amount of domestic wastes and wastewater processed which leads to
an increase in the generation of non-hazardous wastes. The Group's
non-hazardous wastes disposals during the Reporting Period are
summarized as follows:

HYEEEEBIETHNEEY
AEBBREREARBERTE
BREZRDEXTHEREZE
RAERBHE  OEREEE
EREBENEN  TRAGSE
KBRERE2ERER MEEE
W e B RS R IR B R AR
MEERTHENREZEFE
WEZRMARE -

HERAZATFERF AKEX
NEEEKEHRL  EARLQE
EIRIA o NDES W R
B BBOAT B ER R A KA
RO TXMHREBRRTESE
FORE - AREHMREEAN
BESETEY HRLIARN
AREREENECLERGE
SEETEmEITH  RIARR
B -RMEHMA - AEEEGES
LEMREK B A EE I ER
SEMAHARNEE - A&E
TREEEERPLAE - WE
HoXHRERSR U KE
BB AETERERE KX
MERE FASTHEBEEIRE
B RRE RS —REEE
EREE I

R EHR - AEEEERE
BEMEBEREH B0
TR BEEE_ZT-_TE+
A=Z+—HILEFEMRLEMLY
MN% - EXTBREZ4EFNR
AR5 KERIE S /g INE AR EE
ERFELANEZTEEYE LR
migmMme RBEHR - XEBEH
EEBEMEFSRBHWAOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HBLHFE

Type of non-hazardous wastes Unit 2021 2020
BEEEYPESE B =E=—F —T_TF
Slag tonnes 113,719.91 72,385.88
1EE Mg

Fly ash tonnes 14,376.23 13,754.96
IR 17

Sludge tonnes 450,649.11 411,031.63
J5 g

Total disposal of non-hazardous wastes tonnes 578,745.25 497,172.47
BEEBRYRELE 7]

Non-hazardous wastes disposal intensity tonnes/sq.m 0.10 0.09
BEEVWRETE WE R 5 oK
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WASTEWATER DISCHARGE AND TREATMENT

Wastewater generated from the sewage treatment and the operation
of water supply facilities mainly contains small amount of domestic
sewage and equipment flushing water and was discharged after being
processed by the sewage treatment facilities in the plant of the Group
and meeting the required standards. Wastewater generated from
the operation of solid waste treatment facilities was recycled or be
discharged into the municipal pipe network after being processed and
meeting the required standard, striving to achieve “Zero Discharge”.
After being processed by the Group’s sewage treatment facilities, the
Group's emissions of chemical oxygen demand (COD) and ammonia
nitrogen (NH3-N) were reduced by approximately 137,375 tonnes and
16,819 tonnes respectively (reduced by approximately 128,311 tonnes
and 33,892 tonnes respectively in the year ended 31 December 2020).
The Group’s wastewater pollutants emissions during the Reporting
Period are summarized as follows:

5K R B TE
FEKEEBMEKREEEFEE
MEKEBEADEETES KA
BEREAK EAEERAS
KR BB 5% mFﬁLﬁémmo
AP E R R BEAELN
ﬁ*'W@EWWE%ﬁmEE
MR WHREZRERER
RBEATHRER SHEHIZ
BEp) o A EE WIS KE R R
HEEE ASENLELETAE
(COD)R & ANH3-N)H HE T & 5
B ISR T #9137,375M08 12 16,8190
(B2 -Z2F+-A=+—
BIEFE 5 RIEIR T 4128,31118
K:.33,892Mf) - RIREEA - ZJS‘EE
E 855 K55 2 ) B p 3R IR it
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLHFE

Type of wastewater pollutants Unit 2021 2020
BKERMER B —E=-—F —ET_ETF
Chemical oxygen demand (COD) tonnes 15,074 14,994
bt EFH 4 2(CoD) U7}
Ammonia nitrogen (NH3-N) tonnes 944 953
ZA(NH3-N) 145

Use of Resources

As one of leading integrated service providers in the municipal
wastewater treatment and water supply industries in China, the Group
always takes the environmental, social and governmental impact
into consideration in its core operating practices and strictly controls
the resource consumption of each project according to the principle
of economic operation as well as strives to increase the resource
utilization rate and improve the operation skills of staff to maximize
the resource utilization.

The Group conducts daily monitoring and statistical analysis for
each operating project to understand the consumption of energy,
water resource and raw materials, so as to determine indicators
of the energy consumption, water consumption and raw materials
consumption and supervise and evaluate each project. In addition
to complying with relevant national laws and regulations, the Group
has a series of internal monitoring, management and assessment
systems in place, sets the control target for total energy consumption
and gives early warning and fine-tuning to production projects of
which the energy consumption increases rapidly, in order to ensure
that the Group can utilize the resource in an effective way while
maintaining high-standard operation. The Group has been striving to
achieve maximum benefit for customers and the environment with the
minimal resource consumption, and to promote clean and sustainable
resources and energies.
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION

During the Reporting Period, the energy consumption of the Group
was mainly purchased electricity. The Group encourages all staff
to save electrical energy during the production process and office
work. The Group arranges cleaners to conduct inspections during the
non-office hours to ensure that the electric devices such as lighting
equipment have been switched-off. In addition, the Group has set
the target of holding environmental protection activities every year to
enhance employees’ awareness of energy conservation.

Waste-to-energy incineration is a way to achieve “reduction, resource
utilization and harmlessness” through incineration, converting thermal
energy from incineration to electricity to avoid wastage of resources.
The Group enhances the measures on stacking fermentation of
waste to increase the heat utilization ratio and also adopts variable
frequency control for large-power motors in order to reduce self-
consumed electricity and increase the on-grid energy. Besides, the
Group adopts advanced operating technology during the incineration
process, enhance the thermal insulation effect of the equipment and
recycle thermal energy for secondary use to increase the re-utilization
rate of energy. Moreover, metering devices for electricity, water, heat,
etc. are installed at the energy supply accesses to measure the energy
used, in order to control consumption and reduce costs.

In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process
of wastewater treatment, the Group focuses on technological
transformation of key equipment with high energy consumption and
low efficiency, including the lifting pump, air blower and sludge
dewatering systems, etc. The Group will continuously develop and
promote new green technologies to reduce energy consumption in
the process in the future.

BEIR B FE

AEBRBEHANERBEREE
ERIMNBENHRE - EEEMBR
NPERP  AEEEZEARET
FIHRE - AEETZERZA
BAERDRHEETKE - BR
RARBEAERBRNBERAMN
o ltih AEBERESFEMN
REREEHNHEEZ  URAE

THREEH -

WPERGEHERBREREER
DRE - ERE - EBF(E]
ARENEE{RER B2
BRRE -ANEBEEHMRABT
FHEBEBENERIAIRDRER
R=E . YR EERRA R
SREE T AR KD B A L 0 kA
BEE-RAE EREEED K
SERMEENBRFETE - mNA
RENRAFRBUR BB X
R MR AN BFE  ESER
BBMAE- Bz AEE
ERBRHEEAORES K- 2
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B AEHERE R ARE -
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In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process of FHEMHOKBREFREIRER
water supply, the Group continues to innovate production technology RESERMAE - REETE
and improve the production management system to increase water EHEERN TEELEEETE
production rate. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s energy HE - UIREEKE -RREH
consumption intensity is approximately 83.82 kWh per sq.m., A AEERNEREREENR
representing an increase of approximately 19.66% as compared with 83.82 T R M /BET K » HE
the year ended 31 December 2020. The main reason is the increase F_TTF+-_A=+—-HIt
in amount of domestic wastes and wastewater processed, which FEMELIEMA19.66% EXE
leads to an increase in electricity consumption. The Group's energy FEREEEFENIRIARGKERES
consumption performance during the Reporting Period is summarized RN - EHENEEEM - R
as follows: WEBMAN  AEEMERBEER
WL T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLEFE

Type of energy Unit 2021 2020
BERER By —E-—F —T_TF
Direct energy consumption? kWh — —
HE LR E R F B B
Indirect energy consumption
H#ERERE
— Electricity kWh 476,027,301.43 396,040,455.72
— & TR B
Total energy consumption volume kWh 476,027,301.43 396,040,455.72
RREEAE TR
Energy consumption intensity kWh/sqg.m. 83.82 70.05
BERERETE TRE BRETHK
WATER CONSUMPTION KB H FE
The Group helps people in different regions to resolve water supply AEEFBEHTRBENR R E
problems and provides them with healthy and sufficient tap water. RKERMEGLEHEE ARR
During the Reporting Period, the volume of water sold by the RERRE ZHHBERK: K
Group amounted to approximately 252,504,290 m? and the volume SERBEHRANEKRKEN A
of wastewater treated by the Group amounted to approximately 252,504,290.0032 75 K * if1)5 K&
755,529,870 m3. The Group requires all its operating projects to use &%) A755,529,870.0032 75 K o
reclaimed water for flushing and cooling of equipment if permitted AEBERELEEBEELEER
and to use reclaimed water for all greenery in factories and office EATHBEANFEABEKERE
areas, so as to reduce water resource consumption during the EITHREFLH  BER{AE
production process. To further reduce water consumption, water in all AL AR EBE A B AKX - AR
the solid waste treatment facilities is fully recycled and reclaimed water RAEBERBKEREM-
is also used as flushing water in some toilets. The Group also sets a RE—FHPAKE  KEET
target to maintain the percentage of reclaimed water consumption to KEBEREAKEEHNBERF
enhance employees’ awareness of water conservation. Moreover, the R - 3 EB 5 T A R R R K B
Group invests resources to carry out activities such as posting water BAEK AEBNREHFETE
conservation signs to remind staff to save water. KEREBDLWERZR - LIRA

BTHHOMKER Ktz
AEBTEAERFARES B
BRMEAARKEZRETT A RE
E2EETHOMAK-
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IRIE -

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s water consumption intensity
is approximately 5.66 m? per sq.m., remained the same as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group’s water
consumption performance during the Reporting Period is summarized

RBEHAN  AEENREKEE
i’]?%566IE>Jﬁ/L“*E/+

HEZE EET-_A=1—
Eti&tﬁtb%ﬁ%*@lﬁé#ﬁ%

as follows: B REENKREERERES
R
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-BA=+—-HLEFE
Indicators Unit 2021 2020
EE B —EZ—F —T_TF
Reclaimed water m3 11,747,970.66 12,623,083.93
BAEK SFOK
Tap water m? 20,386,310.55 19,394,987.60
B 2Rk K LK
Total water consumption m3 32,134,282.21 32,018,071.53
FEKkBE 37K
Water consumption intensity m3/sq.m. 5.66 5.66
KB E SR REEF T K
For the Group’s water supply business, the Group draws water from AAEENHKEBEESS

local sources with proper government approval. Therefore, the Group
does not have any water sourcing issues.

USE OF PACKAGING MATERIALS

As an environmental-friendly water service enterprise, the Group
does not use any packaging materials during the daily course of its
business operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources
ENVIRONMENT IMPACT MANAGEMENT

The construction of environmental protection projects will have
certain impact on the environment and natural resources. The
Group considers such impact as one of the key factors when
making investment decisions. The Group performs evaluation of the
abovementioned impact according to relevant laws and regulations.
The Group applies “simultaneous design, construction and operation”
acceptance check after the project has been put into operation to
meet the requirements of the relevant and laws, regulations and
policies. Besides, the Group has also developed relevant systems
and procedures to monitor and manage environmental impact of
all projects in order to avoid excessive use and waste of natural
resources, minimize the negative impact of the Group’s business
operation on the environment, thus achieving sustainable development
and creating long-term value for the Group’s stakeholders and
communities.

A3.
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& o
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RAEEEE
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As treated wastewater in the wastewater treatment business will be E5KEIE B EEERSK
ultimately discharged to the environment, the Group strictly adheres FHABARESR - REDFK
to the processing requirements to guarantee the stable quality of HRENTZE AEETHEBE
treated water and reduce its impact on the environment. In addition, EREPBRENTIELE  #
the Group has strengthened the maintenance and repair of drainage REKKERBFEZEIZ - ILIN - K
pipelines and sewage treatment equipment to ensure the integrity EEMARTHKEBNGKEIR
and normal operation of pipelines and equipment and to eliminate FEBORBENMEE  REEE -
accidental discharge. When abnormal problems are found, the Group RETE O FRET HBEW
will contact and report to the environmental protection department in P BRBAEFTHER K&
time. Eg kR EIRREPPIHE I IER -
The Group attaches great importance to the treatment of pollutants AEETHYEEREREZFE
including exhaust gas, liquid waste, odour and equipment noise EWMER -BR- KR &ER
generated in the solid waste treatment process, and takes various BESAYVNAERT T TaEE
control measures for various pollutants to eliminate the environmental ] WHREGTEAYER T AR
pollution caused by solid wastes and plays a positive role in protecting B - TEERTEEEEDY
water and soil. The treatments are as follows: RIBRS A - W EIREKEMN LT
ERETHEBIER SR MEN
™~

. In addition to fly ash, exhaust gas also contain harmful e BRERII EREEZTEA
substances including nitrogen oxides (NO,), Sulphur dioxide &1 BNO,) + = & {t
(SO,), hydrogen chloride (HCl), heavy metals and dioxins. The (S0,) ~ | L &HC) - E &
major harmful substances are organic substances including BN _=HEEZEEYE -
dioxins, which are controlled with the more economical and SATENEENME A
effective “3T+E” technology; THREVESERY K&
EgRARAKE  BHH

[3T+EJ BT T LASD &I
. After treatment of liquid waste with the professional . FERRAEAHERENE
wastewater treatment system set up in the plant, the effluent ¥HREKEE RS ERE
will be reused or used for greening and road cleaning; and H K 8 FE 1T B AR 3 B R 4%

EREBRBRSE R

. Odour is used as combustion gas, or effective measures . ERRIEAMRTE @
including adsorption and filtration with adsorption device using FENER RS = S )
activated carbon are adopted to ensure air quality. BEENRBHEBEREREG

£

For the thermal pollution during production process, the Group has HREEBRBIPNRSE K&

adopted advanced thermal insulation material to provide the heat B 5K e ) bR B R S E AR

generation equipment with thermal insulation treatment in order to HETREERE  BREREE
ensure that the heat source point reaches the operation standard. B {EEZ A -

For the noise pollution during production process, the Group has HEAERETFHNBRE S K

installed blimps for the noise-generating equipment and utilized green FEHEELARBORBLERS

plants to absorb noise according to function zoning, so that the B -UWREBENESE  FMAKE
noise emission can meet the standard. The Group has also formulated EY R - FEREHERE

a completed job post system and detailed operating procedures, 1Z o AREEIE FIE 5T E M@

strengthened the maintenance and management of noisy equipment, HIEFFAAORERE MRS

paid close attention to the effectiveness of equipment operation REZENEENETRE  BU%

conditions and noise reduction measures, found and solved problems EREETIAMBERERNS

in time, and ensured the stable and normal function of noise control moM - RFFERBRBBE  BIR

measures. BERBEGIEREEE EREE
fER o
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Climate Change

Climate change posed escalating risks and challenges on the global
economy, which may also negatively affect the operations and
services of the Group. Therefore, the Group deeply understands the
importance of identifying and mitigating any significant impacts of
climate change. In accordance with the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD") established
by the Financial Stability Board, the management of the Group has
assessed and is fully aware of climate-related risks and opportunities
affecting the Group’s operations. Based on the assessment results,
the Group has incorporated climate risk into internal control processes
to manage and review climate-related risks and seize related
opportunities. With reference to risk classification by TCFD, the Group
has identified climate-related risks and opportunities, as well as the
corresponding management measures as follows:

Physical risks

Extreme weather conditions, such as extremely cold or hot, storm,
heavy rain, typhoon, appear more frequently and its severity increased
gradually, which may result in risk of reduction in productivity,
interruption of the supply chain, and damage to the assets of the
Group, and even interrupt the operation of the sewage treatment
plant of the Group. This may result in decrease in the Group’s
revenue, and increase in the cost of repairing or restoring damaged
location. Extreme weather events may also hinder the work of
employees and even cause casualties. In response, the Group has
developed a business continuity plan, which is designed to reduce
or avoid losses when extreme weather affects the Group’s place of
operation. The Group will also identify such risks and give priority
to those with serious impact so that preventive measures can be
taken in the first place. At the same time, the Group will study the
possibility of changing its business model to reduce or avoid these
serious impacts on its business operations.

Transition risks

In order to achieve sustainable development and move towards the
vision of “carbon emission peak by 2030, carbon neutrality by 2060
(2030%x & ~ 20608k )", each of local governments has enacted
climate-related legislation or tightened relevant regulations to support
the global decarbonization goal. For example, Chinese government’s
competent regulatory authorities commence to set limits on
greenhouse gas emissions and implement mandatory carbon trading
policy, which could increase relevant operating costs. The Group
will strengthen communication with regulatory authorities and make
proactive business adjustments according to changes in regulations
and policies in a timely manner. In addition, the Group will conduct
additional investigations as necessary to identify carbon emission
hotspots in its operations and explore ways to improve them.

Ad. T ix%E 1t
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In addition, the Stock Exchange requires public companies to EoN - BRI ER EmAREHR
strengthen climate-related disclosure in their ESG reports, which ESG#R 45 o hn o8 22 & 1% A5 B8 A9 4%
may increase operating costs. Failure to meet climate change- BREEERA RS R MG
related compliance requirements may expose the Group to the risk e tnREEREREZE/NABH
of claims and litigation, which may result in a decline in corporate EHREXR AEEAEEERE
reputation. Therefore, the Group will regularly monitor existing and BEARaARE R - FhEEEA] AL
emerging trends, policies and regulations related to climate change TR o Btk - A& B2 E A
to avoid reputational risks arising from a slow response. In addition, HERESCEBENRBELHES
in order to reduce the Group's environmental impact and meet the B OHRRER NUEBRERE
requirements of the Stock Exchange, the Group has set targets to EEMERNBERMR ot -
reduce energy consumption and GHG emissions. The Group will BRLOAEBHRBENZERT
continue to evaluate the effectiveness of its actions on climate change EBMTAMNENR AEHEHBHE
and enhance its capacity to address climate-related issues. B RETRE AR E RSP

B -AKEBEETHAEH
EERERBTHOFRME I
B HEHRIRABREENES

Opportunity #iE

With the formation of a global consensus on the goal of “double BEE 2 ERAREE - B ATk
carbon” (Carbon Dioxide Peaking e Carbon Neutrality (fxiEI£ ofii - BEEXBOERK  ZEKEER
#1)), Yunnan Water, as a leading integrated urban environmental BANWERBEARE DK
service provider, has ushered in unprecedented development RIATABMERKLS - EMKG
opportunities. Yunnan Water has seized the market opportunities ZNMMEHBMIIER - TEH
and new pattern, constantly explored and innovated, independently Welx - BE 2008 EER
developed more than 200 patents, realised the great leap forward ERTHEEERN2EMNBEBER
development from Yunnan to the whole country and the whole BRI SFK - BRI
industrial chain layout and project reserve in the fields of water NERE  SpF - GESAHER
supply, sewage, membrane materials, solid waste, medical waste and TEEXEMRAMBEREFE A
hazardous waste, and has its own competitive advantages such as BRRZE  miHEEE K -
policy support, market-oriented management team and professional BEERLENEGIRFED -
core technology. Yunnan Water is committed to be integrated EMAKEB IR ALRER - E
environmental services provider at the municipal level based in MEE- - EMEELEED  #
Yunnan, covering the nation and moving towards to South Asia and B EM Rag KR E e
Southeast Asia, with core technology, strong investment and financing BEERLODBEFOAREEZE NN
capacity, core competitiveness and social influence. WEBIRIRR A RIS -

Since the China Environment Chamber of Commerce released the B2 TITHBBERESEMFE
annual “Top 50 Environmental Enterprises in China”, Yunnan Water [P EIRIE D058 15 8 | AR -
has also been included in the list every year. In recent years, the EFKBEFHHEIAEER -
world’s major economies have also successively launched relevant MER HAZSTELEBOE
policy measures and policy guidelines, and green and sustainable BN T HEBEBURE A R ER
financial markets are becoming more and more vigorous. In 2021, el - ZEMaEE LR mis IR
“CITIC Trust e Yunnan Water Carbon Neutral Green Renewable BRKBEY R_ZE-_—F
Creditor’s Right Collective Investment Trust Fund”, the first carbon FEEAE2ERTHNEERT N
neutral green renewable bond issued by CITIC Trust in China was FEREMBE  [PlEETeEM
officially implemented. The trust financing plan will promote Yunnan KGR Mg EHERIRE
Water to further expand the market, accelerate the transformation SEEeEAFEIEXZE
to urban environmental integrated service provider, and help Yunnan Mo ZlErEmEstE  BHEHE
build a 100 billion level green environmental protection industry. FKBE—FBERTS - MRA

WHERERSREHEE - BD
EETETERRERRESR -
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B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

Employees are the largest and most valuable asset of the Group and
the core of our competitive advantage. Therefore, the success of
the Group depends heavily on the ability to attract, train and retain
employees. The Group adheres to the people-oriented principle,
respects and protects the legitimate rights and interests of every
employee, strictly regulates labour and employment management, and
guarantees employees’ occupational health and safety. The Group has
also formulated a series of relevant personnel management policies
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations to protect the vital
interests of employees, fully respect and value the enthusiasm and
creativity of employees, aiming to build a harmonious employment
relationship, provide employees with healthy, sunny and positive
working atmosphere, and to guide employees to actively integrate
their personal pursuits into the long-term development of the Group.

The Group has complied with all laws and regulations related to
salary compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
antidiscrimination and other treatment package and benefits, including
but not limited to the Company Law of the PRC, the Contract Law
of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the PRC and the Labour
Security Supervision Regulations in the PRC. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with labor laws and regulations that would have a significant impact
on the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has a total of 6,998 (2020:
7,007) employees within the reporting scope of this Report, all of
whom are full-time employees. Employees by gender, age group,
employment category and region are as follows:

Number of employees by gender

BI85

= Male = Female

ES 58
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Number of employees by age group

BRFERARE D

987 —\

1,561

1,939 /

2,511

u 30 years old or under = 31-40 years old = 41-50 yearsold = 51 years old or above
305REkIA T 3124058 41E505% 51 A £

Number of employees by region

R EE 5

6,606

= The PRC = Hong Kong Others
H B EHth
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RECRUITMENT, PROMOTION, REWARD AND DISMISSAL

The Group carries out open social recruitment in the market and
around the world following the principles of fairness, equality and
competition, and makes overall assessment and recruitment on a
selective basis. The Group also recruits excellent college students
through campus recruitment, and enables college students move
forward courageously toward their career goals under the professional
and allround talent development mechanism. After employees are
hired, the Group enters into labour contracts with employees in
accordance with labour laws and regulations to effectively protect
rights and interests of employees.

Guided by target results, the Group has established an employee
performance appraisal system that covers employee performance,
competencies, attitudes, etc., and appropriately applies the appraisal
results to employee performance pay, promotion and salary
adjustments. In order to create a healthy, diversified and inclusive
working environment, all promotion, salary review and position
transfer decisions are based on the individual performance of
employees and the business conditions of the Group for objective
consideration.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s overall turnover rate* was
approximately 16.59%. The employee turnover rates® by gender, age
group and geographical region are as follows:

By gender LAt Bl &l 5
Male B
Female 7
By age group LLEF R 48 Bl 8l o
30 years old or below 3055 8 A T~
31-40 years old 31-405%
41-50 years old 41-50%%
Above 50 years old 505% A
By region Lt & & 5
The PRC F
Hong Kong BA
Others Ht
Notes:
4. The calculation formula of overall employee turnover rate is shown as below:

Overall turnover rate = X/Y * 100%

X = Total number of employees leaving employment during the year

Y = Total number of employees at the end of the year

Relevant figure has been disclosed from 2021 onwards.
5. The calculation formula of employee turnover rate by specified category is

shown as below:

Turnover rate by specified category = X/Y * 100%

X = Number of employees in the specified category leaving employment during
the year

Y = Number of employees in the specified category at the end of the year

Relevant figure has been disclosed from 2021 onwards.
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B2.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K 1% &

age) &”’*}éiﬁi%zom

REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

On the basis of evaluating the value of employees’ positions, the
Group has established a fair, reasonable and competitive remuneration
and benefits system based on its business strategy and with reference
to the industry level and regional level. At the same time, the Group
strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations, continuously
improves employee benefits and reviews the working hours of
employees, pays various statutory social insurances according to laws,
and guarantees that employees enjoy statutory holidays and other
benefits. In addition, our employees are entitled to paid annual leave,
wedding leave, maternity leave and other holidays.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Group has strictly complied with relevant national and local
government laws and regulations, adopted a fair, just and open
recruitment process, and formulated relevant systems to eliminate
discrimination in recruitment process, no employee will be
discriminated against due to factors such as race, gender, colour,
age, family background, national tradition, religion, physical fitness
and nationality, so that employees can enjoy fair treatment at all
stages of recruitment, salary, training, promotion, termination of labor
contracts and retirement, and we can also try our best to recruit
professionals with different backgrounds to join the Group. The
Group is committed to providing equal opportunities in all aspects
and maintaining diversity of employees, and also prohibits any unfair
treatment.

Health and Safety

The Group regards employees as important assets of the Group and
therefore attach great importance to occupational health and safety
management in the production and operation process. The Group
has complied with all laws and regulations related to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards, including but not limited to the Safety Production Law
of the PRC, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Occupational Disease, the Fire Protection Law of the PRC, the
Special Equipment Safety Law of the PRC, the Special Equipment
Safety Supervision Regulations and the Hazardous Chemicals Safety
Management Regulations in Mainland China and the laws and
regulations of other applicable countries. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with health
and safety-related laws and regulations that would have a significant
impact on the Group. In the past three years (including the Reporting
Period), the Group has not found any major violations of applicable
national laws and regulations related to health and safety that have a
significant impact on the Group, nor has it recorded any work-related
death accident, nor working days lost due to work related injuries.

The Group has implemented the safe production responsibility at
each level, carried out hazard identification and risk assessment, and
strengthened hazardous operation management during the operating
management process. Safety inspection is conducted regularly to
eliminate hidden safety hazard at the production site and prevent
the occurrence of accidents. During the project construction process,
the Group is committed to fulfilling the safety responsibilities of the
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owner, and has formulated a series of safety measures and policies ZrBE  WEHE—RILEE
to enhance safety monitoring in order to ensure construction safety BREMBE  MARL2EE @ ®
and provide its staff with a safe working environment. Yunnan Water REILL: REIRH-—E%X
has also obtained the OHSAS18001 International Management System PHIRIE - EEKEIEE
Certificate and further strengthened the operation and management OHSAS18001 #) Bl B & 12 88 R &
of the occupational health and safety management system. E E—TREBERRLZLEE

BRANEENER -

The Group has implemented the following measures to create and REBDEH T A TEE Bk
maintain a safe working environment for employees: AEEBEERERFLTE2IER
35 -

. Set up a safety management organization in accordance with o EBHRERMZEZERHEE
regulations;

. Hire registered safety engineers; e EFBERFMTEIRA:

. Appoint safety management personnel; e ([ERLEEBEEAE:

. Formulate safety, quality and environmental management e flER: HE REEHE
policies and goals; F B AR

. Establish a safety management system and system; e RBURXERBRHEMER:

. Compile and publish a comprehensive emergency response e REIBEMEELEFTHR
and rescue plan for production safety accidents and a special AREENEBRAARNEZ 2
emergency response plan for safety accidents; and EMEHEESER &

. Establish a safety production committee and hold regular e KULRERHEZERITEH
meetings to study, deploy and solve problems in the production ARgE R MBS
safety management process. REELXEERBETRTFRE

HIRIRE -

Case Study: Experience Exchange Meeting on Safety Production and Management of Construction Projects in
2021
BRERMR 20201FERBEREEEEELRIRE

In order to further strengthen the safety production management of the Company’s construction projects, promote

the outstanding experience and practices in the practice of safety production management of construction projects,
implement the safety production responsibility, actively find out the problems and gaps in the safety production
management of construction projects, timely fill in the shortcomings, improve the safety production management level
of project managers and enhance the safety production awareness of employees, Yunnan Water held an experience
exchange meeting on safety production and management of construction projects in April 2021. At the exchange
meeting, the construction unit shared the responsibilities and tasks of the construction unit in the safety production
and management of the construction project, and introduced the specific practices of the safety production and
management of all parties involved in the construction, while the construction unit shared the management practice
experience such as the construction of safety production and management system, hidden danger investigation and
treatment, safety education and training.

RE-—FNBRARRRBEBLZLEERE HERRBBREZAEERERTRARHN TR MMOE &
PHEERMT IPEHRERBEXLEEER I FAENMEREZE  KEMEER RSSBREKLENREE
BARFE URRGEEIXZEEES TEHABR-_Z-—FNAERTEREALZLEETELERIMNG - £X
MEL BREMHSZTERENACERBELXZAETENRE A NARTH2ESTNLXE2EAEBTENA
BME MEIBNADZE TR EEEERALERNBREHFERERLCE2HERISEREELR

@
)

=
3
s
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Preventive and Control Measures of COVID-19 ARG B

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, Yunnan Water has conscientiously HBEEIBBEUAKR  EFKBER
implemented the deployment of epidemic prevention and control BEREE FABTIHPARAK
by superior government departments and the Group, established a SENEBEHEIERE KL
leading group for epidemic prevention and control, and formulated ZIEMZEIEAZ/NE  HIFE R
and issued the implementation plan for epidemic prevention and TEREHEEHmHEMRISEH
control and the emergency rescue plan for epidemic prevention and HESRIERER - AEEEH=
control. The Group has incorporated the emergency management of BRBEPREETENAESE
outbreak prevention and control into the construction of emergency IBRERER U@ (REBEEH
management system, established and improved emergency systems EE2ERETRHE) Bk
and plans such as Emergency Response Plan Management System BIEREEMIEBRIR(ERERB
((REEHE2BERXEESIE) ), Emergency Rescue Plan for HHBEEYEERSBR)SE
COVID-19 ( CGhEM A & IEESMIETESR) ), and Emergency Plan for SHEREE -

Medical Waste Disposal during Major Epidemic ( { EAZ IS HIRE B & E
MEERZTER) ).

Due to the obvious rebound of the global epidemic, the local HE2HEIEREHE  BIHNER
aggregated epidemic caused by overseas import has successively ABIBEMALRENRIBED LR
affected many provinces. In order to further implement the epidemic KRZEED BT E— T
prevention and control work, Yunnan Water held a special meeting EEETIE - BEKBR2021
on epidemic prevention and control in August 2021. The special FIAAMEIBEHEEES - BIE
meeting on epidemic prevention and control was held in the form of MzEEEa RS MR AL #
on-site and video. Members of Yunnan Water leading group, main 7 EMKBAERTFHE &
heads of various departments, and main heads of major regions and HAEZREA  UREXE -
wholly-owned subsidiaries also participated. The meeting informed the RETFTRAIEZNEEATAES
epidemic situation at home and abroad and the epidemic prevention M@ TEAMBEINRIEE
and control of the Company. The meeting mainly covered the ARRBMRBEHEBR - &
epidemic situation at home and abroad and the epidemic prevention TERETEAMBEINNRERS
and control situation of Yunnan Water, analysed the current situation MEEREKBHEBHZEBR
and challenges of epidemic prevention and control of Yunnan Water, D E B E KSR B R E R
and the requirements of epidemic prevention and control of Yunnan MEEMAB - A RERKEER
Water. The requirements of Yunnan Water epidemic prevention and BEREIENER - EEKEE
control include but are not limited to: BEHEIENEZRLBEERDR
w o
. Strengthen business trip management and minimize personnel e IRHEER  RZERLSE
mobility across provinces and regions; HmBMABRE
. Improve the awareness of prevention and control and e ReEWEEHR EEEAR
implement individual prevention and control; b
. Strictly control gathering meetings, training and other activities; e  ERIEHEEMMNEH T
NEEE
o Accelerate the vaccination work; and . M EE T HERET £
54
o Strengthen emergency response. Strictly abide by the relevant . WL EEEE TIE - BiRE
requirements of epidemic prevention and control, and actively FRIEIEEEESK Bk
cooperate with the implementation of normalized prevention BT Ea(bB I -

and control measures.
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TRAINING ON PRODUCTION SAFETY ZRLEEE

The Group actively carries out safety trainings and education for the AEEEBRREIL2E
staff, regularly enhance the professional skill and safety awareness HE  THIRS B IMEBE
of the staff. The Group also distributes labour insurance supplies on MZe2EH#H VTEBAEHSER
time in accordance with the labor insurance supplies management mERHE LTRSS RA
system and organizes regular health checks every year for its staff in o BEEHAME TETRE
order to prevent them from being exposed to occupational harm and B BREITAATIEBRE
occupational diseases. CP RIBEMEERBERMNE

Ao

The Group has also formulated a series of emergency plans to deal AKEBENAERRESHFmSHE
with emergencies, such as the “Comprehensive Emergency Plan for —RIEZFER I EEZ S
Production Safety Accidents” and the “Emergency Plan for Sudden EHEEESTERIR(REMIR
Environmental Incidents”, etc., and requires to organize no less than REMFESER)E  WERKEF
one flood prevention drill training activity every year; the fire and AR DR — IR BB R B 553
earthquake prevention equipment and facilities shall be inspected at EEBUARGFHH AT RRER
least once a year to ensure that they are all in good condition. We DET-RRE - UERERE
strive to improve the ability of employees to deal with emergencies JEE AT c BRBBEER
through emergency drills for production safety accidents. PEMEZER REEIHR

BENHMEEREN -

Case study: “Safe Production Month” Activity
BRME [RE2EERIED

In response to the “safe production month” initiated by Yunnan Health & Cultural Tourism Holding Group Co., Ltd.
("YHTH"), Yunnan Water carried out a series of safety activities with the theme of “implementing safety responsibilities
and promoting safety development” in June 2021, so as to improve the safety awareness of all employees, eliminate all
kinds of potential safety hazards and continuously consolidate the foundation of safety management
REFHAEEERKEREEERAQ T(TEWEIJ)%@UE‘JHZ%EEHJ*F‘WJGI&B"_ E-—FRARAENUIEE
ZE2EMT HDLE2BERIRTIENRINECLED Re2E8X2EH  ERZEZ2BE THSELX2ERE
B o

Case study: “Four Ones” activities

BERME [HE—1ED

Through the “four ones” activity of “carrying out a hidden danger investigation activity, carrying out a safety education
activity for all staff, carrying out an emergency drill activity and carrying out a safety class activity for the main principals
of grass-roots companies”, the leadership of the main principals of grass-roots companies in safety and the independent
safety management ability of employees have been greatly improved.
BAIMAE-—ABEHEEY RAE-—AK2EXE2HUEEY FARE-ARESERTY HEEBLATZEEASR
—REEREHINIOE-DES  AARS TEBRAAFEEEANT 2 EENNETIB XL 2 ERBEN

o

Case study: “Ankang Cup ( ZEE#F )” Safety Production Knowledge Competition
BEMAR  [ZEFR I BZ2EEANRBRE

YHTH held the “Ankang Cup (% EE#f)" safety production knowledge competition in 2021, which aims to urge all units
to implement the main responsibility of enterprise safety and promote safety development. Yunnan Water won two
honors, including the excellent organization award and the second prize in the final of the “Ankang Cup (& FE#f)" safety
production knowledge competition of YHTH in 2021.

BREBERRT T - —F(ZEMNIELR2LENEHE EEBRBENZECELEIREMT HHLEH
B -EFMKBRERIREE - —FIZENER2EENIRBERERESEBRE —SREMEXKE -
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B3. Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to the establishment of its
internal management training and development system. Through
diversified training modes such as induction training, management
training, technical training and pre-job training, we meet the different
needs of employees at all levels and types and to improve their
skills so that they can continue to provide high-quality services and
assist the Group in its sustainable development, meanwhile assisting
employees in their personal growth and development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has approximately 77.92%?°
(2020: 37.72%) of the trained employees within the reporting scope
of this Report, and each employee completed approximately 104.41
hours” (2020: 6.68 hours) of training on average. The percentage of
employees trained®, and the average training hours completed per
employee® by gender and employee category are as follows:

B3.

R REH
AEEIECLEABE L
HERBRAOEY  BBABE
Fl - EEASREI - R ABE
B A rE T3S A Z TAE AR R
KimeEMEBREINTAEE
ko RITE I REE L8 TaLHk
FERUSEENRSE  BHA
SEETIHERRE  RARED
BETEARERER -

R|EBHA - REBRAREH
EHEBANTTNW(ZE-F
F 37 2%)MXIEE  BhlE
B HEK T 410441/ N7 (=
T-TF 668/ ) - %
MR REEEANESHZIEE

Bot UkESHESTKZ
PR BT

Percentage of trained employees by gender

BiupdloZIE o

Female
7+ 31.76%

Male
5 - 68.24%

Percentage trained employees by employment category

RESENE S ZIEDL

General staff,
—fAZE T - 96.24%
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Middle management,
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-BLEFE

2021 2020
Average training hours 39 52 I B —E-_—F —T-TF
By gender R R & D
Male S 92.23 7.71
Female Z 129.26 4.61
By employee category REEERES
Senior Management =SREERE 47.22 6.51
Middle management RREEE 35.82 10.03
Junior personnel EBAE 106.47 6.30
Notes: e
6. The calculation formula of overall percentage of trained employees is shown as 6. ERZIEEBS LN ELRK
below: (I N
Overall percentage of trained employees = X/Y * 100% BERIIJIEIESL = XY *
100%
X = Total number of trained employees for the year X=FRZiIEEBLAK
Y = Total number of employees at the end of year Y=FRKEBBAK

The calculation formula of average training hours per employee is shown as
below:

Average training hours per employee = X/Y * 100%

X = Total number of training hours for the year
Y = Total number of employees at the end of year

The calculation formula of percentage of employees trained by specified
category is shown as below:

Percentage of employees trained by specified category = X/Y * 100%

X = Number of trained employees in the specified category for the year
Y = Total number of trained employees at the end of the year

Relevant figure has been disclosed from 2021 onwards.

The calculation formula of average training hours by specified category is
shown as below:

Average training hours by specified category = X/Y * 100%
X = Total number of training hours for employees in the specified category for

the year
Y = Number of employees in the specified category at the end of the year

TRAINING MANAGEMENT

To help new staff to get involved as soon as possible, the Group
provides induction training programs for new staff to introduce the
corporate culture and various internal rules and regulations of the
Group. The Group's staff receives different types of training according
to their roles and responsibilities. For instance, during the Reporting
Period, the operation center carried out professional trainings on
MBR engineering, testing knowledge, automatic control system and
online monitoring; the financial center conducted financial business
trainings on financial system and policy and overseas investment, etc.;
the human resources department also held professional trainings for
segments on internal control, risk management, system construction
and safety management.
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The Group provides its staff with comprehensive training programs
according to the characteristics of different positions in order to help
employees grow rapidly and realize individual value and to contribute
to the growth and development of the Group. The Group provides
professional safety technical training for personnel in special jobs
such as boilers, pressure vessels, elevators, electrical, lifting, welding
equipment, vehicle driving, inflammable and explosive. Employees
need to pass the examination of relevant departments and obtain a
qualified operation certificate (license) before they can be allowed to
operate independently within the specified validity period. In addition,
for the on-duty personnel of special types of jobs, they must receive
regular safety education to ensure work safety.

Labour Standards

PREVENTING CHILD AND FORCED LABOUR

The Group has complied with all laws and regulations related to the
prevention of child labour or forced labour, including but not limited
to the Labour Law of the PRC and the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour in the PRC. During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with child
and forced labor-related laws and regulations that would have a
significant impact on the Group.

The Group strictly prohibits any child labour and forced labour. The
Group clearly stipulates that only employees who have reached the
legal age are hired, and new employees are required to provide true
and accurate personal information when entering employment. In
addition, the Group also conducts background checks based on the
information provided by the employees, and does not employ those
who are found to have falsified information. If any of these are found
to be illegal, we will also report them to the regulatory authority
to prevent similar problems from arising. The Group also conducts
regular audits and inspections to prevent any child labor and forced
labor in its operations. In addition, employees of the Group only work
overtime voluntarily when necessary. The Group will never condone
any negative behaviors such as verbal abuse, corporal punishment,
physical abuse, oppression and sexual harassment of its employees for

any reason.
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Supply Chain Management

FAIR AND OPEN PROCUREMENT

In accordance with the provisions of the Tendering and Bidding Law
of the PRC and other relevant national laws and regulations, the
Group selects qualified suppliers through public bidding on the public
resource trading platform where the project is located. The Group has
formulated the Administrative Measures for Bidding and Procurement
to regulate bidding and procurement activities and improve the
efficiency of fund use, and to safeguard the interests of the Group at
the same time.

In accordance with the principles of unified management, legality
and comprehensive selection of the best, the Group conducts bidding
activities for all construction projects and procurement activities for
goods, projects and services. All personnel involved in bidding and

procurement management shall abide by the following regulations:

o Strictly implement the relevant laws and regulations of the state
and Yunnan Province on tendering and bidding management,
and adhere to the principle of “openness, fairness, justice,
honesty and credibility”;

o Strictly abide by procedures, act in accordance with regulations,
manage in accordance with the laws, and be honest and self-
disciplined;

o Comply with bidding and bid evaluation disciplines, and shall
not disclose any bidding information and materials that should
be kept confidential during the bidding and bid evaluation
process; and

o Strictly forbidden to split project and circumvent the Company’s

bidding and procurement regulations.

Any violation of tendering and bidding laws and regulations and
noncompliance with bidding discipline shall be investigated, verified
and dealt with by the discipline inspection department of the Group.
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Draw up bidding o

For those that have not reached the bidding amount specified in the
Tendering and Bidding Law, the Group selects qualified suppliers by
bid invitation, competitive comparison or bid negotiation according to
the specific circumstances.

HRREIBBERBERENE
B AREREABEILR
RBHFEAR BFULLERZE
BORERABHER -

Total number of major suppliers by region Unit 2021
RUBEINTEHERAY B —B=-—F
The PRC Number 10
Y &
Total number of major suppliers Number 10
TEHETAY 1&

PROCUREMENT AND BIDDING PROCESS

After the project has met the bidding conditions and has been
approved by the Company’s management, the Group will organize
a unified bidding or comparative procurement for the project in
accordance with the bidding process stipulated in the Administrative
Measures for Bidding and Procurement and the Process for
Competitive Comparison Procurement of the Group. All of the major
suppliers were evaluated and engaged through the procurement and
bidding process mentioned above.

The following chart sets out the simplified “Bidding Flowchart of
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited”:

HRBRAERE
EEBEARARGRGELARE
BEERMLE AEEBERRBASE
E(RE  RBERIHE T AR
RIESBFULERBRE &
ZEBETR AR RRLE
KB -METEHERORE L
MR R K AR E 1T A AN
FH -

TE R RH(CERKERER
MERABHRZRIEE)

The bidding and procurement department is responsible for providing various approval documents

° The bidding and procurement department compares and selects, entrusts a bidding agency and a cost
consulting company, and the project department assists in reviewing the blocked bid price; and

° The bidding agency prepares bidding documents, the bidding and procurement department and the

contract cost department review business documents, and the project management center and the

s HEREAFTNRHEBEXM HEXREHN SREEMEXAB XM  BEEEPL  RiTEE

plan required for bidding filing;
technical risk control center review technical documents.
BEREBERFR J BEREDEERHEEZBERMT AN
e HEREILE ZABEREBARIREEBZERNAR HEMBHHHEREEETERZ K
AL B AZ B AT SO o
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End of bidding
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Establish a pre-qualification assessment team to review the pre-qualification documents under the
supervision of the bidding supervision leading team;

The assessment team issues a pre-qualification report; and

Issue a notice of pre-qualification results.

R ERBEENENE BEREBXMHETHE HEEERENEHETEE
FENMEHAERAERE K

BHERARERBA -

Form a bid evaluation committee to review the tendering documents under the supervision of the
bidding supervision leading team;

The bid evaluation team issues a bid evaluation report; and

Determine the bid winning results.

HEFRZES  HREXHETHE HEEERGNEETEE
AR AFIERE K

HEERIRLE

The bidding and procurement department, the project management center and relevant departments
clarify the key points of contract execution; and

The bidding and procurement department assists the project manager of the project department to
establish a working relationship with the contractor.

RRREH BERERRORARBFIHARARTERRTRE &

PERES R EE N EHE R ADH R TERE -
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The following chart sets out the simplified “Flowchart for Competitive TEAEEO(ERKERER
Comparison Procurement of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited”: MABR DA HFE ML ERERE
VE
Compare suppliers e The bidding and procurement department issues competitive comparison and selection invitation

documents to more than 3 suppliers based on the content of the task handover form. Among them,
the business conditions are drawn up by the bidding and procurement department and the purchasing
application department, and the technical requirements are drawn up by the technology and risk control

center or related departments; and
o The list of suppliers to be invited shall be jointly determined by the relevant departments organized by

the bidding and procurement department, reported to the leaders in charge and the general manager
for approval and implementation, and submitted to the bidding supervision leading team for review.

tbEfEH e HMERKBEERBEEIBEXEATABKULHEMBHBFUELBBEXF - EP - BHKETH
HERBHERBERFRLIRE  RWEBLARMERZF ORAEMLLIEE - &

s HEFZNNHSEHLERASRBHNAMAEAMNARAET ROoEERERACEREER

HBEEEESNEES -
Quotation and . After all quotations are collected, the bidding and procurement department will organize the application
evaluation department and relevant cooperation departments to jointly open and review the bids under the

supervision of the bidding supervision leading team;
° Adjust the quotation requirements, ask all parties to make the second quotation on the same level; and
. The bidding and procurement department organizes the application department and relevant
cooperation departments to jointly review the second quotation based on the same technical level, and

select the top three.

BERTRE . EXzk ABEERBEIES =2FBMREAREABMIARME FE AEEEERY
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The bidding and procurement department is responsible for organizing contract negotiations, with the
participation of the application department and the assistance of the relevant cooperating departments.

AERBHaEAMARKA  HHEM2E - HEEAFPIHE -

The bidding and procurement department and the contract execution departments clarify the key points
of contract execution;

The bidding and procurement department assists the project leaders of the contract execution
departments to establish working contacts with the supplier;

The bidding and procurement department tracks and urges suppliers to supply on time and quality;

If goods return or exchange needed, the bidding and procurement department will assist in contacting
the supplier to return or exchange the goods; and

The bidding and procurement department conducts after-sales evaluation of the supplier based on the
feedback from the contract execution.

AERBHEARATHIHIEERARTERHETIR

HAERBEBHARATHRIIAEAEARREFEL TIEHE

\ma

AERBIRRERESHEE  REHRE

MHERBE  BRRELSBYHEHRERRRE X

AERBEBREARAATOREEN R R EHETERTE -
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MANAGE ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RISKS OF THE SUPPLY EEMREENBEERERE
CHAIN

The Group attaches great importance to the management level of AEBESEHEHREREAFE
suppliers in terms of sustainable development. In order to better BFRTEAMNEEKE -ABHH
identify and control the environmental and social risks of the supply HAIFERHERREREZN
chain and maintain the stability of the supply chain, the Group has E k- ERHEEOERTE  AE
formulated strict procurement management methods. In selecting B2 #E RS REEE N -
suppliers, the Group will give priority to suppliers with good ERIEHERE  AEESBEL
environmental and social performance as its business partners. At the ERATRERACEEERE R
same time, the Group will communicate the Group's expectations NEEEAREBNAIERMN -
on material quality and safety as well as service to suppliers so as R AEBgREEHEELR
to ensure a steady and continuous supply of high quality materials EEHMERENET 2 U NRE
and services. In addition, the Group will conduct annual supplier MEE  {MBERETEEHH
assessment, which will include suppliers’ performance in environmental EmmEOME KRS -t -
and social performance, qualification level, quality of goods or services AEETHEEHETETFEE
provided, service adaptability and capability, and quotation. Supplier HERZZ  SHERERENR
assessment will be scored by the relevant departments receiving the MHEemEw - BEKRTE  BHAE
service, if the score is poor, it will be eliminated from the supplier list. MR EE  RIEEEE KAE
The Group also closely monitors the business practices of suppliers N ARBREFEARIRAAH
and subcontractors through on-site inspections. Any irreqularities EEERREY HEBERS
found during site inspection will be reported to management BESREMNBEBEINTS
immediately. EDEARE RIHERESE

ko ARENREBRSRE Y
B RS B ET BT
TOEL - MERSREHHE
RAEMBRER  BIAHESR
BRE -

GREEN SUPPLY CHAIN BRERERE

The Group is committed to integrating sustainability into its REEBRNBARBERERTE
procurement practices to minimise its impact on the environment, and BARKBER BREJFAIRRD
shares this philosophy with its business partners and suppliers. The AEEBHRBOTE  WEEHE
Group is expected to improve its suppliers’ environmental protection BEHEREBEEIS>ZHES -
awareness, and promote the good environmental performance and AEEHERALFEEFOHIRR
governance measures among its business partners and suppliers. In Bl OUTHEHESBHNLEER
addition, at the supplier meetings, the Group encourages suppliers to PHERIMNEBREXRERERRE
consider the risks posed by climate change to their operations and B B AEBERHERSZ
actively mitigate its environmental impacts. HEHEOREEEREZE(LY

HEZBAMER - 53R E
HHRFOTE -
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Product Responsibility

The Group attaches great importance to product and service quality
and corporate reputation. The Group actively ensures product quality
through internal control and is committed to providing services that
meet industry standards. The Group strictly complies with the relevant
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Law of the PRC
on Protecting Consumers’ Rights and Interests and the Advertising
Law of the PRC. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws and regulations
in relation to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services and methods of redress that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

PRODUCT QUALITY

Yunnan Water continues to improve the production and operation
quality management system of the Group, and formulates the
Production and Operation Quality Management Manual ( (EEEE
EE2FEFM) ) and the Engineering Construction Project Quality
Control Method ( { TR2ERIEB EEXHIHE) ), which clarify the
quality policy, objectives and commitments, specify the management
methods of the Group in all stages of the environmental protection
project, such as design, investment, procurement, construction,
acceptance and delivery, and systematically guide Yunnan Water and
its subsidiaries to establish, implement, maintain and improve quality
management mechanisms to ensure high quality project and product
delivery. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not recall any
products for quality, safety and health reasons.

For instance, the Group adopts advanced online monitoring systems
to continuously monitor the quality of the treated wastewater and
supplied water during the operating process of the wastewater
treatment and water supply facilities. Specifically, the monitoring
data of the online monitoring system for wastewater treatment will
be transmitted to the government platform for pollution sources
of the authority in a real-time way for 24-hour monitoring. The
Group adheres to the policy of “quality first, prevention first”, and
continuously improves process control in accordance with the cyclical

work method of “planning, execution, inspection, and processing”.
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Besides, Yunnan Water has obtained international management system
certificates such as 1SO9001, 1SO14001 and OHSAS18001, strictly
abides by the above standards during the process of production and
assembly, and enhances the operation of the systems on quality,
environment, occupational health & safety in order to ensure the
quality of the membrane products manufactured by the Group.

The Group carries out major businesses by strictly implementing and
complying with the relevant national or industrial standards. With
regard to the wastewater treatment business of the Group, the
Group is committed to ensuring that the treated wastewater meets
the requirement of Discharge Standard for Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plant (GB-18918-2002) or Environmental
Quality Standard V for Surface Water or local standards and that
wastewater discharge outlets are built in strict compliance with the
requirements of the environmental impact assessment report approved

by the government for designated discharge.

With regard to the water supply business of the Group, the Group
attaches great importance to water quality control from the water
source to users since the quality of the water supplied directly affects
public health. Water supplied by the Group meets a number of
national standards, including but not limited to Hygienic Standard
for Drinking Water (GB-5749-2006), Standard for Quality of Urban
Water Supply (CJ/T-206-2005), Technical Regulations on Operation,
Maintenance and Safety of Urban Water Supply Plant (CJJ-58-2009),
Technical Regulations on Operation, Maintenance and Safety of Urban
Water Supply Pipeline Network (CJJ-207-2013) and Urban Water
Supply Services (GB/T32063-2015) in order to ensure reliable and safe
water supply. The Group has established strict quality management
systems, tests and inspects against various indexes on production and
operation and conducts real-time monitoring on the water quality to
ensure that the water quality meets the relevant standards.
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With regard to the solid waste treatment business, the services
provided by the Group are governed by Pollution Control Standard
for Domestic Waste Landfill (GB-16889-2008), Pollution Control
Standard for Municipal Waste Incineration (GB 18485-2014), Technical
Requirements on Medical Waste Incinerator (GB-19218-2003) and
Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste Incineration (GB-
18484-2001). The Group has set up internal control systems and set
discharge limits for incineration plants according to strict operation
conditions and technical requirements in order to minimize the impact
of waste incineration to the environment and to the public.

PROTECTION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to devote
substantial resources in research and development capabilities. In the
PRC, the Group has numerous registered patents related to sewage
treatment, water supply, sludge treatment, membrane manufacturing
and application, and municipal waste treatment. As of 30 April 2022,
the Group has 37 issued patents in water sector, of which 36 utility
model patents and 1 invention patent; and 134 issued patents in solid
waste sector, of which 10 invention patents, 120 utility model patents
and 4 software copyright patents. The Group respects the intellectual
property rights of third parties, and is also committed to protecting
its own intellectual property rights from infringement. In the future,
the Group will closely monitor infringements in the market and crack
down on any infringements such as counterfeit trademarks.

ADVERTISING AND LABELING

As a company providing environmental protection services, the
operation of the Group does not involve major matters related
to advertising and labeling. Nevertheless, the Group is committed
to ensuring that the labels of its products conform to the actual
product conditions. The Group strictly abides by the Advertising
Law of the PRC and other relevant advertising and marketing
laws and regulations, formulates and implements relevant systems
for monitoring advertising and marketing, strictly reviews publicly
released promotional materials and sales commitments, and prevents
promotional content from being inaccurate or misleading, so as to
protect the consumers’ rights from being infringed.
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CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

The Group attaches great importance to customers’ opinions, and
establishes multiple communication channels to investigate customer
satisfaction, including written questionnaires, customer forums, return
visits, telephone inquiries, etc. The Group conducts investigation and
analysis of customer satisfaction and takes the results therefrom as
the basis for evaluating the performance and improvement of the
quality management system. If the Group receives complaints from
customers, it will handle them with care and all material complaints
will be kept in writing. The relevant responsible departments of the
Group will also analyze and investigate the contents of the complaint
and formulate a resolution opinion, and finally, they will give
feedback to the complainants and follow up the satisfaction of the
complainants for the resolution opinion. During the Reporting Period,
the Group had not received any material complaints in relation to
products and services.

The Group requires all external image display, event promotion,
marketing promotion and other publicity content of its units, agencies
and subordinate projects be produced and published after the
approval of the leader in charge, to avoid any form of false publicity,
and to ensure that the content of the publicity true and accurate.

Anti-corruption

PREVENT CORRUPTION AND FRAUD

The Group has established a disciplinary committee and a disciplinary
inspection and supervision office dedicated for preventing bribery,
extortion and fraud prevention as well as relevant investigations and
handling. The Group has established a corruption risk prevention
and control system, developed corruption risk prevention and control
measures, so as to implement dynamic management of corruption
risk prevention and control. In addition, the Group has established
whistleblowing channels via telephone and e-mail to accept reports
relating to the violation of laws and the code of conduct. The Group
also attaches importance to corruption risk education, organizes
corruption risk training, holds special lectures on corruption prevention
and enhances the anti-corruption awareness of the staff.
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IRIE -

The management and all employees of the Group strictly abide
by the Group’s code of ethics and conduct and relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Tendering and Bidding
Law of the PRC and the Interim Provisions on the Prohibition of
Commercial Bribery. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws and regulations
in relation to the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the Group. There
were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issue or its employees during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's Directors and employees
accepted 2 hours and 20 hours of anti-corruption training respectively,
of which contents include but not limited to how Directors undertake
and practice their anti-corruption responsibilities, ESG report disclosure
requirements on anti-corruption, relevant requirements and regulations
on anti-corruption required by the laws of the PRC, and the instance
of corruption committed by the public officials of listed company.
Through the training, Directors and employees at different ranks
are better informed of their respective roles and responsibilities in
anti-corruption and business ethics, as well as the points to note in

business compliance.

e hERHRE2021

AEBBEEBFAAEE THER
BEBETASEMNEETATAR
HEERER - REETRA(F
FEARAMEBZRIEE) KA
RELEAEBEBITANEITR
E) c RIMEHA - AEEIL A
BAMEEEREERH LB
PR BMELAERENEZRE
BOMEAEEEREATE -
RBEHRLEHAEE K EE
BIREWEEFENE SHFARMY -

%ﬁ%%m REBWEEFE
ITHRES T2/ K20/ EH
RBBEFN - BIHRBTRER
TRRESHMAZEERERRE
Bf  ESGHREFERREBH B
BEK FEZEEPREFHNE
BEREEH LR ETRAR
BMAEESNED - BBAEBE
I EEZRTRBAMNETIEM
HRETREEEREBEREEER
FTENAEACRET  URA
BICERNEEEE -
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IRIE -

age) &”’*}éiﬁi%zom

Case Study: 2021 Anti-Corruption Warning Education Activity
BRHFR 2021FRARKXETHEEE

In order to further establish a sense of integrity and build a solid line of defense against corruption and metamorphosis,
in December 2021, Yunnan Water organized its staff to the Yunnan Province Anti-Corruption and Integrity Warning
Education Base to carry out the 2021 Anti-Corruption Warning Education Activity. In addition to visiting the education
base, the employees of Yunnan Water also took a special warning education class to deepen their understanding of
national anti-corruption laws and regulations based on typical cases of violations in China in recent years. A total of 38
employees from the management and staff of Yunnan Water participated in the activity.

RE-—SHURZREEESR LFEERVEREANHR RZZZ—F+2/8 ZEEKKEBASINEEERBER
amﬂﬂgﬁ'ﬁgféffiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%mﬂﬂﬁﬁ°%$*ﬁEI%T%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂ’ELT 1545 Bl B &R
BER WAEFRAPEEZINABDRFINRT BRERRBIOEEFER - EMKEEEASNE TH3IBAZM
EE o

Case Study: Integrity Home Visit
BRWFE : RERH

In December 2021, the management of Yunnan Water went to the homes of employees to carry out integrity home
visits. The activity plays an important role in improving the integrity and morality of employees and helps them create a
clean family atmosphere at the same time. In addition, the activity conveyed Yunnan Water's care for its employees, and
shortened the emotional distance between management and employees. Finally, the family members of the interviewed
employees signed the Letter of Commitment to Keep and Help Integrity for the Families of Leading Cadres of Yunnan
Water Investment Co., Limited.

RIBZ—F+-A EFKBEBAERAELIRFT HERBKRFEY - FHHRURITETRRIERMER
mEEREEER ARBHMESEERRE BT 20 FHHEETEEKBHEINBEE  HLAETEREN
BT 7HEMBERIER K& XPEIRBHEZT(EFAKRKBATAERIRETRIBEABE)
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RiE - E@ KEIRRSE2021

Community Investment BS. #HERE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY TEMEEFH

The Group has a strong sense of social responsibility. As an active REBR—FXEERIHTEEFTFE
advocator for building a learning-oriented enterprise, the Group makes BRODLE - FRAEETANE
contributions in implementing the strategy of developing the country MBEREEE - KNEHEEGE
through science and education and reinvigorating the country through NARANERENRE B
talents development as well as building a harmonious society while TEEBBIZEBMA Ao E &
actively establishing and enhancing the reputation of the Group. B BEEMBHEEREETEM

HEMEENEE -

As a environmental enterprise, the Group particularly focuses on EAE—HEBRLE KXEBLH
environmental protection and education. During the Reporting Period, EIABIERENYE HRBSE
the Group has conducted different activities to raise the public BAA o AN B E R i EE #) AR
awareness on environmental protection. EABYHIBIERENSY -

Case Study: The World Environment Day on 5 June
BRHE : SEREA
The World Environment Day on 5 June each year is one of the United Nations’ main vehicles for promoting global

environmental awareness, raising government awareness and action on environmental issues. Yunnan Water launched
various activities, and on this special day of the World Environment Day, it also called on everyone to love nature, clean
beautiful homes, help prevent and control the pandemic, and build a better environment together.
BENAPIENERRRARKAEREIHEBERES RoNUAREMENIZTRBRITINEIZENZ
— EMAKBHETIRANEY ERRHEEFANBEFTE WEAXKEERAR - BREBRE BHEEBEDH
T HERFRE -

“Cloud Visit” of Yunnan Water's No.1 Wastewater Treatment Plant in Ruili (£ /K& I B ™ £ — 55 /K & 2 &)
EMABHEBEE-SKEE2E]

Yunnan Water's No.1 Wastewater Treatment Plant in Ruili provided “Cloud Open” and “Cloud Visit” for the society to

let the public understand the production process of the wastewater treatment plant. The No. 1 Wastewater Treatment
Plant is mainly responsible for the domestic wastewater treatment in the area north of Tuanjie Canal in Ruili, and makes
due contributions to the continuous improvement of the living environment of Ruili residents.

EEKBHBTE —SKEEHRAMESERM] FERRKIELE] - THRSKEERNEEBE - £ —I5KK
FTEARERBEAERNEUMIFENEESKERERAL  AHBEABRRSOTEHEAMZEANER -

Hyflux NewSpring Water Theme Day

ABHREKEEERBKE

In the theme day activity held by Hyflux NewSpring Water Co., Ltd.* (13 ¥ R/K#&HRAF)), a subsidiary of Yunnan
Water, the organizer invited children from Changshu Southeast Kindergarten to visit the wastewater treatment plant. At

the activity, children were provided with opportunities to easily understand every process of wastewater treatment from
generation, treatment to final drainage, and different and interesting experiments were conducted. Through this visit,
children will understand the preciousness of water resources and will cherish water more in the future.
EFKRBABIEFRKBERAFEPNETEFRREEDEZ T EARBHZEN/NPRL2EBI5KEER < IR
EEENORAMERL TR T SAKERES BERISGKHFKNET —EBIE YETTRAEBENER - BBEIR
2EEY  PBPERMERAKERNEE  BREMBEAK -
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BRI g MEIAWwE2021

The combination of “reverence, thankfulness and confidence” has
always been the cultural concept advocated by the Group since
its inception. The spirit of actively undertaking responsibilities,
dedication and caring heart of the Group’s employees fully reflects
the centripetal force and cohesion of our corporate culture. Under the
guidance of this concept, the Group will continue to strive to perform
its social responsibility as well as actively hold and participate in social
charity activities.

RO BRBEL - BELIZD
B—RAEERINR-—BEES
MEEXEDR - AKEBRTIE
oA RRER  BHEMAN
B RORRT AEEDLEX
fEeymO A RMBERE S - FE—X
LB RMIESIT AR B REHE
EEREBTHEEMT BEERE
Wo2EMERREEEY -

CONTENT INDEX OF THE “ENVIRONMENTAL, ERBMEXEMERLAAN
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE” OF (B - EREARHKEEID)
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED ARSI

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements Chapter/Statement

BEBERE =8 BH

Governance Structure Board Statement — ESG Governance Structure

BB EETHE —ESGRELEHB

Reporting Principles Reporting Framework

I 3R /= Al WMEEZR

Reporting Boundary Reporting Scope

IE ¥ &0 & & E
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R e NEIRTRE2021
Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)
BE- - —RIKE Description Chapter/Statement
RARBERER ik 308 1!
General disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and  Emissions
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to waste
gas and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and nonhazardous waste, etc.
Note: Air emissions include NO, SO, and other pollutants regulated under national laws
and regulations. Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide,
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride. Hazardous wastes are
those defined by national regulations.
—RRIEE ﬁﬁé%ﬁ&im fﬁﬁ%tﬁ&z CEKEEMHYES  AEREBEEEDOELE DY
@QEBE  ROBETHETABERZENHEBEELAOINER -
7 BEREREEASLY HECHRAEGIEREERAARENSTEAY -RER
BEE_StH Pk StER - SRRCEEY  2RCBEAE LT AEEE
MIEBEFROIRREE -
KPI'AT.1 Types of emissions and related emissions data. Emissions — Exhaust gas
emissions, GHG emissions
BREZIERALL  RERRBEEEREE - PER) — BEREEN - R=

KPI'A1.2

BB BB IEAT.2

KPI'A1.3

WA B2 48 AR 1RAL3

KPI' A1.4

AR EBIEIZA1.4

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tons) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility)

BE(HEE) R REE(BE2)RERBHME (AMERTE) k(0@
FE(MAGERSM  BHERZME) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity

)&

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FEAAEREEYRAE (UME) R (WER)EE (WABESEMN - 517
RIGEHHE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEEREEEYEE UEAE) R(WER)ZE(MABESEN - B1A
RpEETHE) o

REB TR

Emissions — GHG emissions

PR — R EREHW
Emissions — Hazardous
waste (Not applicable —
Explained)

PR —BEEEY
(TER —BFE)
Emissions — Nonhazardous
waste

BEOY) — BEERY
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B it B R E A 52021
Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)
BE- - —RIKE Description Chapter/Statement
REARBERIER ik 308 1!
KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Emissions — Exhaust gas

B B 1B B RALLS

KPI' A1.6

R A B IZA1 6

MM AT MM E B R R AEDE L BIRAERRM L -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

M EREEERESEEYN AL REAMRIYARERERIAEDE
L B 1R T ERER A 25 5] o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 : ERER

General disclosure

— AR EE

KPI'A2.1

WA B2 48 AR 1RA2.1

KPI' A2.2

8RR KB RA2.2
KPI A2.3

R 5 IR 1RA2 3

286 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K 1% &

Policies for effective use of resources (including energy, water and other raw

materials).

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings, electronic
equipment, etc.

BAE BER (R EALR - KR E A AR M BE -

H BRAUBREE  #F B EF BIIHES -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)

in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

REASSMEER, SKEEER(NE - moloh) B2FE (U T ET R
HIREE(MAGESSEM - BEREFTHE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).

BRKEREE(WUSEBEN  BEREAE) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve

them.

WAFE] L RBEERERAM S B RERRERNGELBEMERRNTE -

B& 5 AR AF Annual Report 2021 4 [E # &

emissions, GHG emissions,
wastewater discharge and

treatment
PER) —EERER RE
FEBPEW 5B K B 2

Emissions — Hazardous
waste, non-hazardous waste
PV — BEEEY B
EEEY

Use of Resources

&R A

Use of Resources — Energy
consumption

BIRER — LREF

Use of Resources — Water
consumption

BIRER — KIRERE

Use of Resources — Energy
consumption

BIRER — BERBER
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RiE - E@ KEIRRSE2021

Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)

BE- - —RIKE Description Chapter/Statement
RARBERER ik 308 1!
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for Use of Resources — Water

purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

HE SR EUGE A AR ER] BER MR - ARFTET I AKEE B IR R AES
ELHEAERERB R

Total amount (in tons) of packaging materials used in the finished products

B G248 IR 1RA2.4

KPI A2.5
and, where appropriate, the amount per production unit.

MBERIERA2S SRGAABEMBNEE (UBEAE) R(ER)BLEEEMNHE -

Aspect A3: Environmental and Natural Resources
EEA3: RERXARER

General disclosure Policies to reduce the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and

natural resources.

— R E BEBTAHRERRAAEREXNERAZENBR °
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impact of business activities on the environment

and natural resources and the actions taken to manage the impact.

BBERIERAZY  HHAEBEHHRRERRAERNEAZERERNERERTZENTE -

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BHAS4 : RIZEL
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate related issues

which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer

— AR 5R BRI M EHERRAIREHBETAEEYENERRRBBEENEE -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and

those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

MRERIERA  HABEERAURSHETAELAYENEARRGABSEE  REYHTH -
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consumption

BIRER — KRB

Use of Resources — Use of
packaging materials (Not
applicable — Explained)
BIRER — BEMEEA
(TER—2®mE)

Environmental and Natural
Resources — Environmental
impact management
RERRAER —RE®X
-2

Environmental and Natural
Resources — Environmental
impact management
RERRAER —REY
BER

Climate Change

RIERAE
Climate Change

FAEEL
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RiE A8 kEIRTHRE2021

Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)

BE- - —RIKE Description Chapter/Statement
RARBERER ik 308 1!
Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : E{&E
General disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws Employment
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
— R ERAFMERE BEREA IR RHA FTE#KE Zxt R EE
I AR LA R Bt 58 RABAE : @QEK - ROETFHETATEAZENMN
BEEMBROINER -
KPI'B1.1 Total number of employees by gender, type of employment (i.e full-time or Employment
part-time), age group and region.
A 32 45 AR 2B 1.1 mIh - BREEY(WERBEERE)  FRANRBEESOHESEE - =4
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover by gender, age group and region. Employment
BB BIEER12 RUER FRAFIRMREDHNEERALE - =2

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EEB2: REREZE

General disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B2.1

78 82 48 W5 12821
KPI B2.2
48 48 W 1ZB2.2
KPI B2.3

A 52 48 A5 17B2.3

288

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

FRRHLZETIERBERRBEEERECBMENLFLEN : @QBEK
HBETABEAZENHEBEZERRANER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three

Ke(b)i& 57

years including the reporting year.
BE=ZF(BRERFE)EFRAICTHOABERLE -

Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries.
AIBGHREATERE -

Description of the occupational health and safety measures adopted, as well
as related implementation and monitoring methods.
BTN B ERRERZ2H M URBEBRITRERFIE -
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Health and Safety

REEEZ =

Health and Safety

RRERZZ
Health and Safety
EREZ S
Health and Safety

R 2



Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)

BmE - —REE
FERERER

Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2021
RiE - E@ KEIRRSE2021

Description

o

Chapter/Statement
308 1!

Aspect B3: Development and Training

fEmEB3 : & K E

General disclosure

—RIE

KPI' B3.1

B 5 45 A 15 1RB3.1
KPI B3.2

8 82 48 W8 1EB3.2

Policies to improve employees’ knowledge and skills in performing their
duties. Description of the training activities.

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid

by the employer.

FHRTEEERTIERENABERRENRE - il BIEH -

FIEBMEEI  TREREEAHEORIMERE -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.

i

senior management, middle management).
RERNREEHEN(NEREEE TREBERE)EAINZIEEANIL -
Average number of training hours completed by each employee by gender
and employment category.

BUEMNEEERINE D  BREBETKZINFIORH

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEB4 : & T %A

General disclosure

—RIEE

KPI B4.1

78 42 A8 2 IE 1RB4.1
KPI B4.2

A 52 48 M5 1RB4.2

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child or forced labour.
BAMIEETIRAGE TN - (@QBK  MOEBTHETABERTENME
BEENBROINER -

Description of the measures to review recruitment practices to avoid child
labour and forced labour.

R BEEMNEEAERETREGST -

Description of the steps taken to eliminate the situation when a violation is
discovered.

WREHRREREAGEREEBRMRRN SR -
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Development and Training

R R

Development and Training

R R

Development and Training

R RIE

Labour Standards

TR

Labour Standards

TR

Labour Standards
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RiE A8 kEIRTHRE2021

Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)

BmE - —REE
FERERER

Description

o

Chapter/Statement
308 1!

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

fEmEBS : HEEER

General disclosure
— MR ER

KPI B5.1

8 §2 48 W FE 12B5.1
KPI B5.2

8 §2 48 15 1EB5.2
KPI B5.3

I 5 48 A5 12B5.3

KPI B5.4

B B2 48 5 13B5.4

Policies to manage the environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRE R ERERBE -

Number of suppliers by region.

BwEEONMEREAE -

Description of the practices for engaging suppliers, the number of suppliers
to whom the practices are implemented, and the implementation and
monitoring methods of the practices.

Ml A RHERNED  MERTERBEMNNHEREKE - LAKERE
HMITRERAE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HERAEAEERESEARSNIRRRESARNED - ARBEBRTR
BERAE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

i EREHRERTREZARRERRRBOED - A RABERTRE
BFE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmEE

General disclosure

—RIKE

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
FHMRHERNRBEOREEZSE EE BREREKLBSFEUARERT
EE @QBE  ROBETFTHETABERZENHBEELMAOINER -
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Supply Chain Management
fH pE gt g 18
Supply Chain Management
HEEER
Supply Chain Management
g g
Supply Chain Management

HEEERE

Supply Chain Management

e E e

Product Responsibility



Environmental, Social & Governance Report in 2021

RiE - E@ KEIRRSE2021
Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)
BE- - —RIKE Description Chapter/Statement
REARBERIER ik 308 1!
KPI B6.1 Percentage of the products sold or delivered that must be recycled for safety  Product Responsibility

8 §2 48 W 15 12B6.1
KPI B6.2

8 82 48 W5 12B6.2
KPI B6.3

88 1 48 235 17B6.3
KPI B6.4
AR AE K IE 1RB6.4
KPI B6.5

8§ 48 W 35 12B6.5

and health reasons.
EEdEEXERBEHTEAT2HERIEHAMARKNBE DL -

Number of complaints received about products and services and the handling
methods.

HRERNERERBOIRFHRE UREEH T -

Description of the practices related to the maintenance and protection of
intellectual property rights.

TR RREMBEES @B -

Description of the quality assurance process and product recycling procedures.
HIEERTRERERBKREF -

Description of the consumer data protection and privacy policies, and the
related implementation and monitoring methods.

MU EEERRERFLBECK - AREBERTRERFE -

Aspect B7: Anticorruption

BEHEB7 : RES

General disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B7.1

A 52 48 5 1RBT7 1

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
from bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRI R RFRAREDN : @QBE  kb)E
R BHHEBEERBOINER -

Number of concluded lawsuits regarding corruption brought against the issuer

THERTARE

or its employees during the reporting period and the results of the lawsuits.
RERBAHBETASHEEEREVERENESHFARENEE LFA
ke % °©

EmaE
Product Responsibility

EmEE
Product Responsibility

EmaE
Product Responsibility
EmEE
Product Responsibility

b}

EmAE

Anti-corruption

RES

Anti-corruption
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RiE A8 kEIRTHRE2021

Aspect, general
disclosure and
key performance
indicator (KPI)

BE- - —RIKE Description Chapter/Statement
REARBERIER it 308 1!
KPI B7.2 Description of the preventive measures and reporting procedures, as well as Anti-corruption

188 2 A8 235 1RB7 .2
KPI B7.3
78 2 A8 A 3E 17873

the related implementation and monitoring methods.

M SRR BRIEF  ARBEERTRERSE -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
imESFERE TRHEMREFE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

BEWEBS: HERE

General disclosure

—MEE
KPI B8.1
8§ 48 W 35 12B8.1

KPI B8.2
oA 5 45 A 5 17B8.2

Policies related to community participation to understand the needs of the
community in which the issuer operates and to ensure that its business
activities will take into account the interests of the community.
FANHEBE2ERTREENEHETENEREAEZREDH SIS ELETR
B IR o

Focus areas of contribution (such as education, environmental issues, labour
needs, health, culture, sports).
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Resources (such as money or time) used in the focus field.
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